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Abbreviations

HE:

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following
meanings unless otherwise specified:

"Articles of Association”
(A =240 A) )

"Board”
[Exe]

“Company”

[ARF

“Companies Ordinance”
INCIEESYN

"Directors”

[E%]

"Group”
[R&EE]

“Listing Rules”

[ e Al

"PRC”
[HE]

“SFO"
[& % & & 5]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 P

“HK$"and "HK cent”
[l R IEW]

"uss$”
[%&7t]

nop
[% |

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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REFHN BXEBEHMEN FIHBEBASE
AR

articles of association of the Company
NN Dol S E A e

Board of Directors of the Company

RRRZEES

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
REEBBIZERER AR

Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BB EDFE622E

directors of the Company

KRRZE=R

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARBREMERA

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B 22 P38 25 £ AR A

The People’s Republic of China
hEE AR HEME

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
B LB G (FREMES71E)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBERIMAR AR

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BILRABN EREEEHN

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of the United States of America
EEFBRERBAETER

per cent.
Aok
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to the shareholders the results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

RESULTS

On 30 October 2017, the Group disposed the entire equity interest of
Aces Diamond and its subsidiaries to an independent third party for
a consideration of HK$1. Aces Diamond is the intermediate holding
company of the GM, which holds a mining permit for a marble
site covering approximate 33 hectares at Selenrang, Bontoa, Maros
Regency in South-western Sulawesi, Indonesia. The mining properties
were fully impaired during the year end 31 December 2016. Following
the disposal of Aces Diamond Holding Limited, the Board decided
to discontinue the operation of natural resources and energy related
business and information technology and related business in December
2017.

As a result of the change of new management team, who possesses
extensive trading experience and business network in South China
region, a new segment of business in trading of building materials
was started in Shenzhen in the fourth quarter of 2017 and recorded
revenue of approximately HK$49,587,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue from its continuing operations of approximately
HK$54,531,000, increased by over 5 times from the previous year
(2016: HK$8,457,000). Loss attributable to owners of the Company
from continuing operations was approximately HK$50,855,000 (2016:
HK$19,241,000) and basic loss per share of HKO.65 cent (2016:
HKO0.27 cent). The increase in the Group’s loss from continuing
operations for the year was mainly due to the adverse change in fair
value on investment properties and increase in finance cost.

PROSPECTS

It is the intention of the management to step up its effort to improve
the financial performance of the existing businesses of the Group
and to explore investment opportunities in the properties investment,
investment holding and trading of building materials segments or other
new segments with good prospects with the view to bring substantial
value to the shareholders of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all shareholders,
investors, bankers, business associates and customers for their
continuing support to the Group, my fellow directors for their valuable
services and all staff members for their hard work during the past year.

Li Sen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2018

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEB W R D

BUSINESS REVIEW

As referred to the Company’s announcement published on 15
September 2017, Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li”) had acquired of 2,207,485,423
shares of the Company, representing approximately 29.28% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company on 15 September 2017 and
became a substantial shareholder, Executive Director of the Company
and chairman of the Board. On 23 January 2018, Mr. Li has been
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company. Since Mr. Li
possesses substantial knowledge and experience in the properties
investment and property management in the PRC, it provides more
opportunities to explore and diversify the Group’s business scope to
properties investment and development in future.

On 31 October 2017, the Company entered into a deed of assignment
with Arizona Global Limited (the “Assignee”) to assign all the debts
due to the Company by Aces Diamond Holdings Limited (the “Aces
Diamond”) (a wholly owned subsidiary of the company) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Disposed Group”) to the Assignee. On
the same day, all the shares of Aces Diamond were disposed to the
Assignee for a consideration of HKD$1.00. The Disposed Group holds
a mining permit (the “Mining Permit”) for a marble site covering
approximately 33 hectares at Selenrang, Bontoa, Maros Regency
(the "Maros Marble Project”) in southwestern Sulawesi, Indonesia
(the “GM Quarry”). The Mining Permit expired on 22 January 2017.
Accordingly, full impairment on the Group’s mining properties
in relation to the Maros Marble Project with carrying value of
approximately HK$78,747,000 was provided in 2016 and the results
of the Disposed Group were deconsolidated from the Group’s financial
statements since the respective dates of transfer of control. The
deconsolidation of the disposed group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$43,182,000. For further details relating to the disposal, please
refer to the note 29 of the consolidated financial statements.

The Group carried out the trading of information technology related
products in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") through its
indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Enviro Energy Information Technology
Limited. During the year under review, due to keen competition, the
performance of the segment in information technology and its related
business was dropped dramatically and terminated eventually. There
was no revenue incurred in 2017 (2016: HK$14,168,000).

£ )
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWKR D

On 7 November 2017, 1,507,900,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company
immediately after completion of the subscription, were issued at the
subscription price of HK$0.13 per share by way of placement. The
Board considered that the subscription of new shares could broaden
the share capital base of the Company which would be in the interests
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS OF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Properties investment

The Group’s investment properties comprising 40 commercial units
situated in Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the PRC, with gross floor
area approximately 14,182 square meters. In September 2017, 13
commercial units have been contracted to dispose to two unrelated
parties for total consideration of RMB29,326,000. In January 2018,
4 commercial units have been contracted to dispose to other two
unrelated parties for total consideration of RMB13,139,000. All of
these disposal transactions have not yet completed as of the date of
this report.

At present, the Group’s investment properties comprise the fourth
floor and the fifth floor of a building situated in Dalian City, Liaoning
Province, the PRC with total floor area approximately 2,843 square
meters are vacant and the Group intends to lease out these properties
for rental income.

The Group also owns a piece of land of gross area of approximately
4,320 square meters together with a twelve-floor property erected
thereon with gross construction area of approximately 17,800 square
meters. This property is situated in Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the
PRC and is currently being leased out for rental income.

The Group owns two parcels of land located at Bai Sha Wan, Bayuquan
District of Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the PRC with gross usage
area of approximately 59,245 square meters. The Group intends to
build commercial properties on these parcels of land and then lease
out the properties for rental income.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBER W R D

On 3 January 2017, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired Yingkou Haida Property Service Company Limited
(literal translation of the Chinese name) (“Haida”), a company
established in the PRC, which owned a piece of land with gross usage
area of approximately 5,000 square metres and two blocks of buildings
with total floor area of approximately 5,022 square meters. The Group
intends to refurbish these properties and then lease out for rental
income.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the operation’s
rental income amounted to approximately HK$3,967,000 (2016:
HK$1,022,000). The properties investment segment recorded valuation
losses of approximately HK$20,866,000 (2016 gains: HK$2,182,000)
on its investment properties, as a whole, the operation recorded a loss
of HK$21,932,000 for the year (2016 profit: HK$1,675,000).

Investment holding

On 7 April 2017, the Group subscribed for a bond issued by Huajun
Holdings Limited (stock code: 377) (“Huajun”) at a consideration of
HK$30,000,000. The principal activities of Huajun include printing,
trading and logistics, property development and investments, solar
photovoltaic and financial Services. The carrying amount of this held-
to-maturity investment represented approximately 4.0% of the Group's
total assets. This held-to-maturity investment is unsecured, interest
bearing and repayable within one year. The Group has redeemed the
bond early on 27 October 2017. During the year, the Group recorded
the bond interest income of HK$977,000. (2016: nil).

On 29 December 2017, the Group disposed its investment in Class
A Shares of China Huacai Finance Equity Investment Fund SP, a fund
with an objective to achieve capital appreciation through investing
listed securities in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan held under
available-for-sales investments for a consideration of HK$108,000,000
and generated a gain of HK$8,000,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR D

Trading of building materials

In order to widen the sources of income and improve operating profit,
the Group engages in the building materials trading business in 2017
through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Qianhai Shitong Supply
Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited (literal translation of the Chinese
name) (“Qianhai Shitong”). The Board considered that this new
business can broaden revenue base of the Group which would be in
the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

During the year, the trading of building materials segment contributed
a revenue of approximately HK$49,587,000, representing a 90.9% of
total revenue from continuing operation. The segment contributed a
gross profit of approximately HK$2,894,000, representing a 38.4% of
total gross profit from continuing operation in 2017.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

On 14 March 2018, Enviro Energy Finance (BVI) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, has acquired the entire issued share
capital of Quick Master Company Limited (the “Target Company”).
The Target Company holds a money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Board considers that the acquisition provides a prime opportunity to
diversify the Group's business scope, broaden the Group’s sources of
income and achieve better return to the shareholders of the Company.
The Board is of the view that the acquisition would be in the interests
of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

It is the intention of the management to step up its effort to improve
the financial performance of the existing businesses of the Group
and to explore investment opportunities in the properties investment,
investment holding and trading of building materials segments or other
new segments with good prospects with the view to bring substantial
value to the shareholders of the Company.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

BEMBES

BIEARATOR RN EEEF AEER T
— R 2 AN B D AR R G
(RINAERAT ([BSEE]) # FREHNHH
SR - BB AR EHTHASEE 2 W2
B WERARD R REEZ BB

FAN-BEMHE S D PRSI 449,587,000
B (IHERBELEERBINZE290.9%) - =
T—tF ZoHBEBERN42,894,000% 7T -
ERFECEERRTH Z238.4% °

EBm=

RZZE-—NEF=ZA+HA ARARHZERBR
&)Enviro Energy Finance (BVI) Limited B W88 & =
RERAFA ([BEQR]) NI EBITRE B
SORRBEB A F13EREAGIFE R
BEABR - EE2FRL WESFEATEEHIEHR
FHE SREEMNEBHBSUSZ T ER.
EERNEEHBARR  URARARRRER
FEEAR-FEEFRR KBFEFELEER
AR R BB EE F 5 o

EREEEEMANEREAEBRAEEL ZUH
R WNPERE REZERNEZEMBES D
MAEMEBREMBZFDBEREREKS
RESARRBRREREANEE-



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBER W R D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Results

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$54,531,000 (2016:
HK$8,457,000) from its continuing operations, representing an
increase by over five times when compared with the year of 2016. The
increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the start up of trading
of building materials in 2017.

The Group's gross profit from its continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$7,537,000 (2016:
HK$8,411,000) with an average gross profit margin of 13.8% (2016:
99.5%), which resulted in a decrease of approximately HK$874,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.4 % when compared with
the year of 2016.

The loss from continuing operations was approximately
HK$50,855,000 in the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$19,241,000). The increase in the net loss by approximately
HK$31,614,000 was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair value
on investment properties, increase in administrative and operating
expenses and increase in finance cost during the year under review.

Loss from the discontinued operation was approximately
HK$43,045,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$67,923,000).

As a result, the overall net loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$93,900,000 (2016: HK$34,849,000), representing an increase of
losses by approximately HK$59,051,000 when compared with the year
of 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR D

Other Comprehensive Loss

During the year ended 31 December 2017, exchange gains mainly
arose from the exchange translation of the properties investment
operation in the PRC totalling approximately HK$19,058,000
(2016 exchange loss: HK$7,234,000) as Renminbi appreciated by
approximately 7.5% against Hong Kong Dollar during the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

At 31 December 2017, other than the assets classified as held
of sale, the Group had current assets of HK$578,441,000 (2016:
HK$157,275,000) comprising prepayments for purchases of
RMB192,230,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$230,676,000)
(2016: HK$87,276,000) and bank balances and cash of
HK$154,140,000 (2016: HK$20,609,000). The Group's current
ratio, calculated based on current assets of HK$619,648,000
(2016: HK$157,275,000) over current liabilities of HK$557,169,000
(2016: HK$209,798,000), was about 1.11 at the year end (2016:
0.75). At the year end, the Group's current liabilities increased by
175% to HK$577,169,000 over last year (2016: HK$209,798,000)
and the increase was primarily due to new bank borrowings of
HK$248,716,000 raised during the year. At 31 December 2017,
the bank borrowings were secured, denominated in Renminbi, bore
interest of fixed rate and were due within one year. Subsequent to 31
December 2017, the prepayments for purchases of RMB192,230,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$230,676,000) were refunded, a
bank borrowing of RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$140,400,000) was repaid and another bank borrowing of
RMB92,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$110,400,000) was
renewed for one year to January 2019.

On 16 March 2017, the Group obtained a loan facility of
HK$100,000,000 from a licensed money lender in Hong Kong. The
facility is available for drawdown during the period from 16 March
2017 to 30 September 2018. Up to the date of this annual report, no
draw down was made.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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On 7 November 2017, 1,507,900,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company
immediately after completion of the subscription, were issued at the
subscription price of HK$0.13 per share by way of placement. The
net proceeds received by the Company from the placement were
approximately HK$196,027,000, with HK$3,770,000 was credited to
the share capital account and the balance of HK$192,257,000 was
credited to the share premium account. At the year end, the equity
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$603,238,000
(2016: HK$434,142,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the debt to equity ratio and net debt to
equity ratio of the Group, which calculated by dividing total interest-
bearing debt by total equity and dividing total interest-bearing debt
less bank balances and cash by total equity, were approximately 82%
(2016: 42%) and 56% (2016: 37%) respectively.

With the amount of liquid assets on hand and unutilised loan facility,
the management is of the view that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its ongoing operational requirements.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the investment properties of the Group
with carrying amount of approximately HK$424,380,000 (2016:
HK$217,620,000) were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group mainly earned
revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong Dollar, Renminbi and United
States dollar and no hedging measures had been undertaken. The
management will continue to monitor closely the Group’s foreign
exchange risks by entering into forward contracts and utilising
applicable derivatives to hedge out foreign exchange risks when
considers appropriate.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (2016: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2016: nil).
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EMPLOYEES INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 12 full-time employees
(2016: 21) working in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their competence, performance
and experience and prevailing market terms. Other benefits, such
as medical and retirement benefits and training programs, are also
provided.

RISK FACTORS

The Group has identified and is facing a number of significant risks
during 2017. Some of these risks are ongoing factors which the
industry has to cope with in medium to long term. Other risk factors
are specific to the Group.

1. Economic Risk

The global economic conditions and the state of international
financial and investment markets, including the economy,
financial and investment markets of the United States,
Mainland China and Hong Kong, of which the Group has
no control, have significant influences on the business and
financial performance of the Group. The management policy
to mitigate this risk is to diversify the Group’s business and
to diversify its investments (where possible) within the same
business.

2. Market Risk

The Group's trading business of building materials is operating
in a competitive environment that puts pressure on the revenue
and profitability of this business. The management policy to
mitigate this risk is to continue to put effort in enlarging the
market share and enhancing the market competitiveness of this
business by various means.

3. Environmental Risk

The Group is constantly exposed to inherent risks such as
pollution, mechanical breakdown of machinery, adverse
weather conditions, fire or other calamity. During the period
of refurbishment of investment properties and development
of other properties, the Group would expose to potential risks
such as pollution, adverse weather conditions or fire etc. Any of
these factors may cause disruptions to the Group's operations.
The Group may also be liable for compensation payable as a
result of these unpredictable events which may adversely affect
its financial performance.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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4, Customer Risk

The Group has been relied on a small number of customers
in its trading business. This has been limiting the Group’s
bargaining power on credit terms and discount rate. The Group
may not be able to significantly expand its customer base in the
short term which may adversely affect its financial performance.

5. Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to financial risks relating to foreign
currency, interest rate, equity price, liquidity and credit risk in
its ordinary course of business. For further details of such risks
and relevant management policies, please refer to note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
December 2017, there were no significant dispute between the Group
and its employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. In order to reduce
the degree of environmental damage when developing the Group’s
business, the Group strictly complies with the local laws, rules and
guidance in relation to environmental protection.
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QUALIFIED OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT OF THE GROUP

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“"PwC") issued
a qualified opinion on prepayments for purchases of HK$230,676,000
to certain materials suppliers as at 31 December 2017, including
payments of RMB75,230,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$90,276,000) and payments of RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$140,400,000) for alleged purchases of construction
materials and aluminum materials, respectively. Details of the
prepayments and reasons for the audit qualification are presented in
the Independent Auditors Report.

Background of the prepayment in respect of the
prepayment A

The Group intended to refurbish the properties (“Properties”) owned
by the Group situated in Baoyuquan district, Yingkou city, Liaoning
province, which consist 40 retail shops with the gross floor area of
approximately 14,182 square meters (“Refurbishment Project”) with
a view to increase the rental yield of the Properties. As such, the Group
decided to engage a third party to procure construction materials. An
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (”Subsidiary A")
entered into a procurement agreement (“Procurement Agreement
A") with a supplier (“Supplier A") for purchase of construction
material amounted to RMB93,000,000.

Prepayment amounted to RMB79,000,000 was made by Subsidiary A
to the Supplier A in accordance with the Procurement Agreement A
("Prepayment A").

Due to a change in the then market conditions and a change in
business plan of the Group, the Group decided to suspend the
Refurbishment Project and to dispose some of the Properties. The
Group subsequently entered into sale and purchase agreements to sell
13 retail shops and 4 retail shops within the Properties in September
2017 and January 2018, respectively.

Upon Subsidiary A's demand, Supplier A made a partial refund of the
Prepayment A in the sum of RMB1,500,000 to Subsidiary A. After
further negotiation with Supplier A, Subsidiary A and the Supplier A
entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the suspension of
the Refurbishment Project which specified the Group's right of refund
of the Prepayment A.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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As the Refurbishment Project was subsequently suspended, Subsidiary
A did not procure any construction material from Supplier A under the
Procurement Agreement A. Therefore, the Group has never received
any construction materials from the Supplier A.

At the request of Supplier A and as part of its financing arrangement,
Subsidiary A, the Supplier A and a PRC company (“Assignee A")
entered into a tri-party agreement, pursuant to which the remaining
balance of Prepayment A in the sum of RMB77,500,000 was assigned
by Hailanggu to the Assignee A.

In September 2017, Assignee A paid a sum of RMB2,270,000 to
Subsidiary A. Subsequent to the year end, Assignee A repaid the
remaining prepayment amounted to RMB75,230,000 to Subsidiary A
and as at 31 March 2018, the full amount of Prepayment A amounted
to RMB79,000,000 was repaid back to the Group.

Background of the prepayment in respect of the
prepayment B

The Group commenced the building material trading business, which
became one of the principal business activities of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017. The trading of building material
business was originally planned to be pursued in Northeast region of
the PRC.

In order to develop such new business segment, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Subsidiary B”) entered into a
procurement agreement (“Procurement Agreement B”) with another
supplier (“Supplier B"”) for the purchase of aluminium materials
amounted to RMB125,850,000.

Prepayment amounted to RMB117,000,000 was made by Subsidiary
B to Supplier B in accordance with the Procurement Agreement B
("Prepayment B").

On 15 September 2017, Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (“Mr. Suen”)
resigned from the positions of executive Director and Chairman of
the Company and Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li”) has been appointed as the
executive Director and Chairman of the Company on the same day.
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Furthermore, there were also a few other changes relating to the board
composition and senior management of the Company. Following the
change of Chairman and board composition of the Group, the Board
had carried out a review of its businesses. The Board decided to pursue
the building material trading business of the Group in Shenzhen
instead of Northeast region of the PRC because the Group could
leverage Mr. Li's extensive business network in Shenzhen.

As there was a change in Chairman and composition of the Board
shortly after the execution of the Procurement Agreement B,
Procurement Agreement B was put on hold. The Group has never
received any aluminium materials from the Supplier B. Subsequent
to the year end, Supplier B made a full refund of the Prepayment B
amounted to RMB117,000,000 to Subsidiary B.

Company’s response to the qualified opinion

In view of the qualified opinion of the auditors, the Group understands
the importance of improving its internal control procedures in respect
of making any prepayment to suppliers and record keeping to
strengthen the Group's corporate governance and avoid similar audit
qualification in the future.

The Group intends to enhance its internal control procedure in the
following aspects :—

1. All material contracts, supported by detailed business plans and
proposal, and the payment of any prepayment arising thereon,
if any, shall be approved by the chief financial controller and
the board of Directors;

2. The relevant subsidiaries shall conduct an assessment on
suppliers from the various aspects, such as its credibility,
qualification, supply timetable, prepayment requirement and
etc. before entering into any contracts with suppliers. Such
assessment shall be prepared in report format and presented to
the Board for consideration;

3. Each members of the Group shall retain proper record in
relation to business transactions; and

4. The Company shall conduct review of its internal control
policies and to report to the board of Directors regularly.

The Group believes that with efforts made in the abovementioned
areas, future requests from the auditors in this respect should be
adequately addressed.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance, the principles of which are to
uphold integrity, transparency and accountability in all aspects of
business and to ensure that affairs are conducted in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. It is believed that good corporate
governance is fundamental to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
(the "Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2017 except for the following deviation with reason as
explained:

Code Provision E.1.2

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM").

Deviation

The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the AGM for year
2017 as he had other important business engagement.

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Deviation

On 23 January 2018, Mr. Li Sen was both the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered
that Mr. Li Sen has in-depth knowledge and experience in the
properties investment related business in the PRC and therefore he is
the most appropriate person to take up the two roles. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board will review the current structure from time to
time. At the appropriate time when candidate who possesses suitable
leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or
outside the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealing in the Company's securities (the “"Own Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. Specific
enquiries have been made with the directors and they have confirmed
their compliance with the Own Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six directors,
including three Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Sen (Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (the "CEO")), Mr. Zhou Xuesheng and
Mr. Wei Junging and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the
“INED(s)"), namely Mr. Wen Guangwei, Mr. Chiang Bun and Dr. Chaio
Li. Biographical details of the directors are set out in the Directors and
Senior Management Profile section on pages 33 to 36 of this annual
report.

Mr. Lin Sen is a president of Shenzhen City Oriental Ginza Group
Company Limited (“Oriental Ginza”). Mr. Zhou Xuesheng is a vice
president of Oriental Ginza. Mr. Wei Junging is the assistant president
of Oriental Ginza.

To the best knowledge of the directors, save for the aforesaid, there
is no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships between the Chairman, CEO and among members of the
Board.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. The Board
held four regular Board meetings during the year ended 31 December
2017. The attendance of individual directors at the regular Board
meetings and general meetings during 2017 is set out in the following

table:

Exw

RPl&

THASFRIBITOREH -EES
Et?t_f*tEJr_HEJr*Elu:ﬁE%EﬂE
CTIREINBEEFR T —LFRTZE
EZefekBRRRGgZHFELE:

Number of attendance

R
Board Meetings General Meetings
EzgeR BRREXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Sen (appointed on EREE (RZT—CF 1/4 N/A i
15 September 2017) NATHBEEZT)
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng BEELRE (RZT—tF 1/4 N/A 73 FA
(appointed on 7 November 2017) +—AtBEEZT)
Mr. Wei Junging BEFSEE(RZZE—LF 1/4 N/A 38
(appointed on 15 September 2017) NAE+THEBREZME)
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul BHEAEE (RZT—+F 3/4 01
(resigned on 15 September 2017) NA+HBET)
Mr. Zhang Yuanging RITESRE (RZE—N\F 4/4 0/1
(resigned on 23 January 2018) —AZ+=H#&E)
Mr. Pu Wei (appointed on 11 January 2017 SE& L (R T —+4F 3/4 0/1
and resigned on 11 November 2017) —A+—REZER
RZE—tF
+—A+—B&T)
Mr. Lai Ming Wai RARLEE (RZT—1tF 3/4 171
(resigned on 15 September 2017) NATHBEE)
Mr. Zhu Lijia (resigned on 1 August 2017) MY RE4E (R T —LF 0/4 0/1
NA—REHT)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Chiang Bun B A 4/4 0/1
Mr. Wen Guangwei XHEEE (RZZE—LF 3/4 N/A i
(appointed on 25 August 2017) NAZ+H E =)
Dr. Chiao Li (appointed on BUBELT(RZZ—N\F N/A 8 F N/A T iE B
23 January 2018) —AZ+=HEZT)
Mr. David Tsoi BAEEE(RZT—LF 1/4 1/1
(retired on 15 June 2017) NATHRBERME)
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELL (KT N\F 4/4 0/1
(resigned on 23 January 2018) —AZ+=B&/T)
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors also
participated in the approval of routine and operational matters of the
Company by way of written resolutions circulated to them together
with supporting documents and briefings from the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”). The directors receive at
least 14 days' prior written notice of a regular Board meeting and
may propose matters for discussion to be included in the agenda. The
agenda together with board papers are sent to the directors at least
three days prior to a regular Board meeting.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors the Group's
business strategies and policies, strategic decisions and directions,
annual budget, and other major corporate matters. Besides, the Board
delegated the management team, led by the Co-CEOs, with the
authority and responsibility for the daily operations and administration
of the Group.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed. The Board is briefed on all legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance developments and the Board
has regard to them when making decisions. The Company Secretary,
together with the Board, are also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of listed issuers under
the Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchase, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and other applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. In addition, more than one-third of
the composition of the Board consisted of INEDs, so there is strong
element of independence in the Board to exercise independent
judgment. The Company has received from each INED an annual
written confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs have
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with terms of the guidelines.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of directors’ liability.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEQO") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the role of the chairman has been performed by Mr. Li and
the role of the co-chief executive officer have been performed by Mr.
Zhang Yuanging (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Pu Wei (“Mr. Pu”). The Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code has been complied with.

As at the date of this annual report, the position of the Chairman of
the Board and the positions of CEO are held by Mr. Li.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
twelve months period and subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Any
newly appointed director would receive an induction package covering
the Group’s businesses and the statutory regulatory obligations
of a director of a listed company. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated
on developments in statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Company has provided timely technical updates, including the briefing
on the amendments on the Listing Rules and the news released
published by the Stock Exchange to the directors. Continuing briefings
and professional development for directors are arranged where
necessary.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Sik Kong was appointed as the Company Secretary on 15
September 2017.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Cheng Sik Kong
had undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The biographical details of Mr. Cheng Sik Kong are set out under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages
33 to 36 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the independent auditor
provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Company

DNEWE
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with remunerations as follows: G
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Audit for current year REEZE 2,400 1,709
Non-audit service % BUR TS 195 130

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established several committees. The authority and duties
of the Audit Committee of the Company (the "“Audit Committee”),
Remuneration Committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) are set out in written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code and are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively. All committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wen Guangwei, Mr. Chiang Bun and Dr.
Chiao Li, with Mr. Wen Guangwei as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and risk management. The Audit Committee meets at
least twice a year in reviewing the interim and annual reports of the
Company before submission to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with management and external
auditors and reviews their reports. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Audit Committee met twice in reviewing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial information for
the six months ended 30 June 2017, and the internal control, risk
management and corporate governance issues related to financial
reporting of the Company. The record of attendance of each member
at the committee meetings is set out below.
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Number of
Members attendance
RE i FE R &
Mr. Chiang Bun B A 2/2
Mr. Wen Guangwei (appointed on 25 August 2017) XHELE 1/2
(RZZE—tFNAZ+HAREMT)
Dr. Chiao Li (appointed on 23 January 2018) BuUELT N/A T~ i
(RZZ2—N\F—A=Z+=HEZT)
Mr. David Tsoi (retired on 15 June 2017) BAMELE 12
(R=ZZE—tFA<A+HARME)
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REEL L 212

(resigned on 23 January 2018)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Chiang Bun, Mr. Wen Guangwei
and Dr. Chiao Li, with Mr. Chiang Bun as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The Remuneration Committee should consult with the Chairman on
its remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors, and may
access to independent professional advice if necessary. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include, among
others, the recommendation to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, the review and approval of
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives, and the determination, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2017 to review and approve the remuneration packages of
directors and senior management. During the process, no individual
director was involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
The record of attendance of each member at the committee meetings
is set out below.
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Mr. Chiang Bun B A 11

Mr. Wen Guangwei (appointed on 25 August 2017) XHERE N/A 3 A
(RZZE—+FNAZT+HBEEZME)

Dr. Chiao Li (appointed on 23 January 2018) ERVA N/A 3 FR

(RZE-N\F-AZ+=REZEE)

Mr. David Tsoi (retired on 15 June 2017) BRMESE

1Al

(RZZE—tFRATRBRERE)

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine REELT

(resigned on 23 January 2018)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Chiao Li, Mr. Wen Guangwei and
Mr. Chiang Bun with Dr. Chiao Li as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer.

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the diversity of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that the policy will be
implemented effectively.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2017 to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, assess the independence of INEDs and review the Board
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Number of
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Mr. Wen Guangwei (appointed on 25 August 2017) XHELE N/A 7~ i
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(resigned on 23 January 2018) (RZZB—NF—AZ+=BE1)
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Mr. Zhang Yuanging (resigned on 23 January 2018) RITIE L E 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company's corporate governance duties are carried out by the
Board pursuant to the following terms of reference adopted by the
Board:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

(0) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company's
employees and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensures that
the consolidated financial statements have adopted the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report section of this annual
report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems are in place for
the Group.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with reference to Internal Control and Risk Management
— A Basic Framework issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The systems are designed to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to meet the
business objectives.

The Group believes that the people and the actions it takes are the
core elements of the risk management and internal control systems.
To support this notion, the Group facilitates training to its staff to
strengthen their awareness of risk and capability to manage risks.
During the year, the Board together with the Audit Committee,
reviewed the adequacy of aspects such as resources, staff qualifications
and experience, and were satisfied with the results of the review.

The followings have been established and executed to ensure there
are appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems within the Group:

o control environment including organisational structure, limit of
authority, reporting lines and responsibilities;

° risk management self-assessment and internal control review
conducted from time to time by external consultants and the
Group;

° appropriate risk management measures such as written policies

and procedures; and

° effective information platforms to facilitate internal and
external information flow.
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In view of the qualified opinion (“Qualified Opinion”) issued by
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"”), external auditor of the Company,
the management and the Board are now negotiating with and intend
to engage an external consultant over the annual reviews of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2017 and together with the subsequent period of events. With the
assistance of the external consultant, they will assess the key risk on
the area of concern of the Qualified Opinion and investigate what
internal control procedures and measures and together with the
aspects of financial, operational and compliance control can resolve
material internal control defects in future. They will develop an
appropriate internal audit plan to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems on the one
hand and propose internal audit report, and risk management and
internal control policies and measures so as to mitigate and prevent
the occurrence of significant risks in future on the other hand. They
will propose such internal audit plan, internal audit report and risk
management and internal control policies and measures to the Board
for review and approval prior to submission of the same to the Audit
Committee for final review and assessment.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group which includes
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars, is
disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.

The Company also acknowledges that general meetings are valuable
forums for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders
and members of the Board and committees are encouraged to attend
and answer questions at the general meetings.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the directors or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the directors
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring director for election as a director of the Company
at a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
shall send a written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong or the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, during a period commencing no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting provided that such period shall be at least seven
days.

Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company to
the Board through the Company Secretary at Room 1603-5, 16th Floor,
Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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The Shareholders’ Communication Policy adopted by the Company
is publicly available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2017. A copy of the Company’s
latest constitutional documents is publicly available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

A2 B B ER AR O B BRGE AR R AT OB SR P R AR
Al #ut FARER -

ERXH

BE-FT—LF+-A=+—BLLFE AT
ZERXHTRED A D AR
5 BIRBE R RA A R 2 836 L AR -



Directors and Senior Management Profile
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The biographical details of Directors and senior management as at 31
March 2018, the date of this annual report, are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Sen (“Mrv. Li”), Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Aged 55, joined the Company as an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board in September 2017 and appointed as Chief
Executive Officer in January 2018 and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor's degree from
Chengdu University of Technology in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") majoring in radiation geophysics.

Mr. Li is a president of Shenzhen City Oriental Ginza Group Company
Limited (literal translation of the Chinese name) (”Oriental Ginza"),
a company established in the PRC which is principally engaged in,
among other things, real estate development, hotel management
and property management in the PRC. Mr. Li was awarded as (i) one
of the “China’s 100 Elites for Economy” by China Economy Daily
(literal translation of the Chinese name); (ii) one of the “Shenzhen
City’'s 100 Outstanding Entrepreneurs” by Shenzhen Entrepreneur
Association (literal translation of the Chinese name) in 2008; and (iii)
the “Influential Figure in Real Estate” by Boao Real Estate Forum in
2012.

Mr. Li has not held any other directorship in other public companies,
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.

Mr. Li is deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company,
as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO” in the Report of the
Directors.

Mr. Wei Junging (“Mr. Wei")

Aged 52, joined the Company as an Executive Director in September
2017 and is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Southwest University
in the PRC and a master’s degree of business administration with a
specialization in executive business administration from American
World University by distance learning program conducted at Wuhan
University in the PRC. Mr. Wei is also a qualified accountant registered
with the Ministry of Finance in the PRC. Mr. Wei is currently the
assistant president of Oriental Ginza.

Mr. Wei has not held any other directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.

R-ZT—N\FE=ZA=+—8 (AAFREH) &
ENEREEEBZREFBHINOT

BITES
ERAE (TERED  TERITHAAH

55m RZZB—tFNAMARRBHERTE
EREEEGEIHE UR_Z-N\F-ARZEIR
TRER TRARRZHMNBARZESE -F
EERBPEARKMBE ([HE])KEBEIAKR
BET B MR-

FRAERFIMRDBEEBBERAF (R
REE|) 2 B8 ZARRREKL T2 RS
e (ATl EHERE BEEERMEE
BEB - FREGOHETPRLCERRTER [HE
REBBHREAY Z— (R _FTN\FER
N EERBEER DRI AL DEZR100%
Z— RN —E-—FREEFHERBETR
[BWETERAZENAY] -

MEOEM AR

SEBBIEIMEMESTIS L
AIEEEAEMEER-

DR

HIMEEGRED [RIBZHFRAE GO
BHREZNMER] —HARE FEERBEAR
NAEZEERR-

BEeEEE ([BEE]D

525 RZZE—tEFNANMARABETHTE
= MARRRZENBARZES - HiIFAF
FEAZe2848 UREBTERZAS
FIg 2 4 Ip 2 &5 2R 72 8 American World University
RS TEEEBELEMN  TETRABHEER -
BRACENAT RSB EME EE SR 205t
ERNARFIREZBIEBAH -

REEVERBSFEEBRBIMEABESFTS L
MR HEMAR R REEEAEMEERG -

BuEBERERALA
T tFFR

33



34

Directors and Senior Management Profile

ESNEREERBEN

Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (“Mr. Zhou")

Aged 54, joined the Company as an Executive Director in November
2017. He holds a bachelor’s degree in economics from Heilongjiang
University in the PRC. As a standing council member of Shenzhen
Association of Trade in Services (literal translation of the Chinese name)
since August 2013, he has senior executive managerial experience in
a number of large and medium-size enterprises in the PRC. Mr. Zhou
was accredited as an economist by the Department of Personnel of
Heilongjiang Province (literal translation of the Chinese name) in 1991.
As approved by the Bureau of Personnel of Shenzhen Municipality
(literal translation of the Chinese name), he obtained a certificate from
the Department of Personnel of Guangdong Province (literal translation
of the Chinese name) in 2001 certifying that he was qualified as an
economist. Mr. Zhou is a vice president of Oriental Ginza.

Mr. Zhou has not held any other directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wen Guangwei (“Mr. Wen")

Aged 55, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director in August 2017 and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He holds a bachelor’s degree in economics from the
Finance School of Renmin University of China and a doctor’s degree
in management from the China Business School of Renmin University
of China. He is a qualified Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. Mr.
Wen was previously a professor of Renmin University of China and was
officially retired in 2015.

Mr. Wen is currently an independent director of Beijing Wandong
Medical Technology Co., Ltd (stock code: 600055), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and also an independent director of
Leyard Optoelectronic Co., Ltd (stock code: 300296) (“Leyard”) and
Spearhead Integrated Marketing Communication Group (stock code:
300071) (“Spearhead”). Both Leyard and Spearhead are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chiang Bun (“Mr. Chiang”)

Aged 48, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director in June 2015 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor’'s degree in social sciences
from The University of Hong Kong and a LL.B. from Peking University.
Mr. Chiang is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charter holder.
Mr. Chiang has held senior roles in various international banks and
financial institutions, primarily responsible for structured debt and/or
equity financing. Mr. Chiang has extensive experience in the banking
and finance industry.

Mr. Chiang has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (stock code: 723) since
29 December 2017 and was an independent non-executive director
of Burwill Holdings Limited (stock code: 24) until 2 July 2015, both
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Chiao Li (“Dr. Chiao")

Aged 51, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director in January 2018 and is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from National Taiwan University, a master's degree
in Business Administration from University of lIllinois at Urbana-
Champaign and a doctor’s degree in Business Administration from
Tsinghua University.

Dr. Chiao has over a decade of experience serving in global investment
and merchant banks, with concentration in the fields of rating advisory
and corporate finance. He was previously a director of corporate
finance department in Ming Fung Jewellery Group Limited (stock
code: 860). Dr. Chiao is currently a responsible officer of Success Asset
Management Limited, which is a licensed corporation to carry on
type 9 (asset management) regulated activity under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Sik Kong (“Mr. Cheng"”), Financial Controller and
Company Secretary

Aged 52, joined the Company as the Financial Controller in March
2017 and was appointed as Company Secretary in September 2017.
Mr. Cheng is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He holds a Master degree in
Science in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Cheng has extensive experience in financial management and
company secretarial practice.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of Group’s activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the
business, a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, can be found in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report.

“Chairman’s Statement” and

These sections form part of this report of the Directors.
FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 75 to 76.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes as set out in “Share Option
Schemes” section in this report and note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by

the Group, or existed during the year.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 79 to 80 and note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, sales to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately 97% of the Group's
total revenue from continuing operations and sales to the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 42%.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, purchases from the Group's
three largest suppliers accounted for approximately 100% of the
Group’s total purchases from continuing operations and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately
73%.

As one of the Group's five largest customers is an indirectly wholly
owned entity of Mr. Li Sen, being an executive director of the
Company and controls a company which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, he is deemed to have interest in the said customer.
Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Li Sen (appointed on 15 September 2017)
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (appointed on 7 November 2017)
Mr. Wei Junging (appointed on 15 September 2017)
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (resigned on 15 September 2017)
Mr. Zhang Yuanging (resigned on 23 January 2018)
Mr. Pu Wei (appointed on 11 January 2017 and
resigned on 7 November 2017)
Mr. Lai Ming Wai (resigned on 15 September 2017)
Mr. Zhu Lijia (resigned on 1 August 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chiang Bun
Mr. Wen Guangwei (appointed on 25 August 2017)

Dr. Chiao Li (appointed on 23 January 2018)
Mr. David Tsoi (retired on 15 June 2017)
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine (resigned on 23 January 2018)

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Chiang Bun shall retire from his office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (2018 AGM"), being eligible, will offer himself for
re-election at the 2018 AGM.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Li
Sen, Mr. Zhou Xuesheng, Mr. Wei Junging, Dr. Chiao Li and Mr. Wen
Guangwei shall hold the office only until the 2018 AGM, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the meeting.

Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul resigned on 15 September 2017, Mr. Zhang
Yuanging resigned on 23 January 2018, Mr. Pu Wei resigned on 7
November 2017, Mr. Lai Ming Wai resigned on 15 September 2017
and Mr. Zhu Lijia resigned on 1 August 2017 as executive directors of
the Company. They have confirmed that they have no disagreement
with the Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the Company
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders of the
Company.

The Company received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the
independent non-executive directors as independent.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

Biographical details of directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 33 to 36 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of directors of the Company
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules:

1. Mr. Chiang Bun (“Mr. Chiang”) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Sustainable Forest
Holdings Limited (stock code: 723), a Company listed in Hong
Kong on 29 December 2017.

2. Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li") is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Li entered into a service contract with
a subsidiary of the Company. There is no specific length of
service as stipulated under the said contract. His term of service
shall continue unless and until terminate by either party by
giving to the other three months’ period notice in writing. The
directorship of Mr. Li will be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company. Under the service contract of Mr. Li, he is entitled to
a director’s remuneration of HK$1,170,000 per annum which
has been recommended by the Remuneration Committee
of the Company, and approved by the Board based on his
qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities undertaken
and prevailing market conditions. Mr. Li may also be entitled
to receive discretionary bonuses or other benefits as may
be decided by the Remuneration Committee and the board
having regard to the Company’s and his performance. The
remuneration of Mr. Li will be subject to annual review by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board.
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Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (“Mr. Zhou") entered into a service contract
with a subsidiary of the Company. There is no specific length
of service as stipulated under the said contract. His term of
service shall continue unless and until terminate by either party
by giving to the other three months’ period notice in writing.
The directorship of Mr. Zhou will be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the Company. Under the service contract of Mr. Zhou, he is
entitled to a director’'s remuneration of HK$780,000 per annum
which has been recommended by the Remuneration Committee
of the Company, and approved by the Board based on his
qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities undertaken
and prevailing market conditions. Mr. Zhou may also be entitled
to receive discretionary bonuses or other benefits as may
be decided by the Remuneration Committee and the board
having regard to the Company’s and his performance. The
remuneration of Mr. Zhou will be subject to annual review by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board.

Mr. Wei Junging (“Mr. Wei"”) is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wei entered into a service
contract with a subsidiary of the Company. There is no specific
length of service as stipulated under the said contract. His
term of service shall continue unless and until terminate
by either party by giving to the other three months’ period
notice in writing. The directorship of Mr. Wei will be subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company. Under the service
contract of Mr. Wei, he is entitled to a director’s remuneration
of HK$780,000 per annum which has been recommended by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company, and approved
by the Board based on his qualifications, experience, level of
responsibilities undertaken and prevailing market conditions.
Mr. Wei may also be entitled to receive discretionary bonuses
or other benefits as may be decided by the Remuneration
Committee and the board having regard to the Company’s and
his performance. The remuneration of Mr. Wei will be subject to
annual review by the Remuneration Committee and the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Other than as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
its subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company and the director’s core connected persons
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES B ERTE

The purpose of each of the 2003 Share Option Scheme (hereinafter 2003F RERREG & (E& R T X)) R2011FER
defined) and the 2011 Share Option Scheme (hereinafter defined) is BB (FERTX) EEEASEERS2HE
to enable the Group to recognise the contribution of the participants EHEeRBEARARRRARZBAEZ RIHE2HEE
to the Group and to motivate the participants to continuously work to HAKBE B USB2REHBRLAEE Y
the benefit of the Group by offering the participants an opportunity to F 2 VE B B4 o

have personal interest in the share capital of the Company.

(1) Share option scheme adopted by the 1) R-ZEBEE=F—HZ+HHEXR
Company on 25 January 2003 (“2003 Share AEERMZBERAESTE ([2003
Option Scheme") FRRESE])

On 25 January 2003, the 2003 Share Option Scheme was E’\‘:g =F—AZ+HHB ARERIE
approved pursuant to written resolutions of the Company. FRFZ M E2003FERETE - B E
Details of movement of the options granted under the 2003 T—+F+-_A=+—BLFE RE
Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2017 2003@%&%&%&5&' 2 BIREZEFIF
were as follows: N
Movement in the 2003 Share Option Scheme 2003 FfEIR 151 B % &)
Name or Exercise As at Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised As at
category of price 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant  Exercise period per share 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017
88 R-F-tf RZB-t&
SREEZAER BHAH T&H k@ -A-H FREN FREN FREH FRfTE t=A=t-8
(HK$)
(A7)
Director
Bz
Mr. David Tsoi 15/06/2009 15/06/2011 to 15/06/2019 0.5145 1,064,189 - (1,064,189) - - -
(former director) 15/06/2011215/06/2019
(Note 1) 09/07/2010 09/07/2012 to 08/07/2020 0.3947 354,730% - (354,730) - = S
EREEE 09/07/201208/07/2020
(AITER)
(Hit1)
1,418,919 - (1,418,919) - - -
Other employees
HitfER
In aggregate 04/02/2010 04/02/2012 to 04/02/2020 0.3622 2,837,838 - - = - 2,837,838
At 04/02/2012£04/02/2020
09/07/2010 09/07/2012 to 08/07/2020 0.3947 2,837,838 - - - - 2,837,838
09/07/2012208/07/2020
5,675,676 - - - - 5,675,676
Others
Hib
In aggregate 15/06/2009 15/06/2011 to 15/06/2019 0.5145 28,378,379% - - - - 28,378,379
15/06/2011%15/06/2019
@it 06/10/2009 06/10/2011 to 06/10/2019 0.5286 496,622 - - - - 496,622
06/10/2011206/10/2019
04/02/2010 04/02/2012 to 04/02/2020 0.3622 71,300,676 _ = - - 71,300,676
04/02/2012204/02/2020
09/07/2010 09/07/2012 to 08/07/2020 0.3947 87,760,135 - - - - 87,760,135
09/07/2012%08/07/2020
187,935,812 5 5 = - 187935812
Total: 195,030,407 - (1,418,919 - - 193,611,488%

@t
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Notes:

(2)

(3)

Mr. David Tsoi retired as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 15 June 2017.

50% of the share options are exercisable in a period commencing two
(2) years from the date of grant and expiring on the tenth anniversary
from the date of grant. The balance of 50% of the share options are
exercisable in a period commencing three (3) years from the date of
grant and expiring on the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

50% of the share options are exercisable in a period commencing two
(2) years from the date of grant and expiring on the day falling one day
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The balance of
50% of the share options are exercisable in a period commencing three
(3) years from the date of grant and expiring on the day falling one day
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 193,611,488 (2016:
195,030,407) share options outstanding under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 2.14% (2016: approximately
2.59%) of the Company’s shares in issue on that date.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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T (=T —7N% :195,030,40710) » HE R A
ARERFZ A ZBEEITROL2.14% (ZT— X
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(2)

Notes:

(M

Share option scheme adopted by the 2) R=ZBE——FHAT-HEXRL
Company on 12 May 2011 (“2011 Share A ER 2 BB IR AE ST &l ([2011 45
Option Scheme”) EhRESTED
The Company adopted the 2011 Share Option Scheme which AABFEMAR T ——FRA T+ A#8IT
was approved by shareholders in the Company’s annual general ZARDNTBREBEFAE LERFHEZ
meeting held on 12 May 2011. Details of movement of the 201 FHEREFE - BHEZT—tF+=
options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme for the A=+—BItFE BE2011FHERE
year ended 31 December 2017 were as follows: EIRECEREZBFIFEOT
Movement in the 2011 Share Option Scheme 2011 FERIES B/ 5
Name or Exercise As at Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised As at
category of price 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant  Exercise period per share 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016
BR RZB-XF RZB-R%
SEEMLEAER RULAH M k@ -B-H FREN FREM FREH FRfTE t=B=t-A
(HK$)
(%)
Director
iz
Mr. David Tsoi 23/06/2011 23/06/2012 to 22/06/2021 0.3066 212,838% - (212,838) - - -
(former director)
(Note 1)
BREEE 23/06/2012222/06/2021
(FifF8%)
(Hi#1)
212,838 - (212,838) - - -
Other employees
HitfEs
In aggregate 23/06/2011 23/06/2012 to 22/06/2021 0.3066 4,966,2162 - - = - 4,966,216
aif 23/06/2012%22/06/2021
4,966,216 - - - - 4,966,216
Others
it
In aggregate 23/06/2011 23/06/2012 to 22/06/2021 0.3066 64,347,974% - - - - 64,347,974
23/06/2012£22/06/2021
At 31/12/2012 31/12/2013 to0 30/12/2022 0.1149 1,064,189 - - - - 1,064,189
3112/2013%30/12/2022
65,412,163 - - - - 65,412,163
Total: 70,591,217 - (212,838) - - 70,378,379%
B
Mtat -
Mr. David Tsoi retired as an independent non-executive director of the (1) BEABEER-_T—LFAATHEEEEAR
Company on 15 June 2017. RIZ B IFERITES -
50% of the share options are exercisable in a period commencing one (2) S0%BREANAEREAE—(1)FRZBEER
(1) year from the date of grant and expiring on the day falling one day HHBTRFR— B IEEBARITE R T50%ME
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The balance of fRERT B B EIRQ)F & BRER L A H
50% of the share options are exercisable in a period commencing two TEFA— A IEEREITE -
(2) years from the date of grant and expiring on the day falling one day
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 70,378,379 (2016: 3) RZE—tF+-A=+—RB ARFARE

70,591,217) share options outstanding under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.78% (2016: 0.94%) of the
Company's shares in issue on that date.

2011@%%%%2%70 378,37917 HE AR #E 18 oK
FE(ZT—RF:70,591,2171) - BE R K
NEIRZBZBEITRNHE0.78% (ZF—R
fF:094%)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company, if any, in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions of directors in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

ESRBESTHRAEBRKRG - HEB
RO RESzEERER

Fﬁ

B AFT A=+ R ARAEFREK
%ﬁﬁ AB (B RA QA AL B EHEE
(EHREFMBPEEOIEXVED) 2t - R
D REST HEAREES MBEEEIE3521F
REARRA R E RO SRR B AR A M 8% 1Pk &
METABRETESRX S 2EETR ([RES
A HERRRARBIMZEERERNT:

EERANAROREBAROGZRE

Number of Approximate
Capacity and Number of underlying % of
Name of director nature of interest shares held shares held Total shareholding
igsEiEl BARR
BEspns SO RERME kRO 8 E REBEE mat Bk
Li Sen ("Mr. Li") Interest of controlled corporation 2,207,485,423 - 2,207,485,423 24.40%
(note 1)
FHRUAEFERED ZEHIATz Ew (HtEE)
Notes: HaE -
1. These interests were held by Able Victory Enterprises Limited (“Able 1. 7% % # 2 A Able Victory Enterprises Limited

Victory”), which was a wholly owned by Mr. Li. Mr. Li was the sole
director of Able Victory. Accordingly, Mr. Li was deemed to be interested
in 2,207,485,423 shares of the Company under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company, or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes”
and "Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the directors or their respective
spouses or minor children had any rights to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE
SFO

As at 31 December 2017, the following interests of more than 5% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company

EERERONERERZ ZER

BEXBREFS REERESTRAER
By HEABRODEEFZERRER | EHAEK
BZFHEIN REREMER ARARSEEM
MEARBET LERNTY BEEEAHEEER
AR B AR AT EL AR A B B8 2 B 40 Bk (& 25 1 2 ER
Mt TMEEEARSEIRBARKFEFLAE
RBARAER  INFRITEEATZFEN -

REFHERPERGBRRBELRE
whER

RZB—tHF+-A=+—B ARAREES
NHERPIFEIB6CEREARRBAFEZERE
EMEBEBEATERRB D HITRAEEE%IA L
2

RAEQXFARGIEBEROGHRE

Number of Approximate %

Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest shares held of shareholding

RR & B SORERMEE RGO E BARRBES L

Mr. Li Interest of controlled corporation 2,207,485,423 24.40%
AL S F ek N o (note 1)
(Btit1)

Able Victory Beneficial owner 2,207,485,423 24.40%
EmER A (note 1)
(B7E1)

Hua Shang Consumer Premium Selection  Beneficial owner 1,507,900,000 16.67%
Investment Fund (“Hua Shang”) EmEAA (note 2)
Hua Shang Consumer Premium Selection (Kratz)

Investment Fund ([Hua Shang |)

Li, Stephen Hing Yue (“Mr. Stephen Li") Interest of controlled corporation 452,400,000 5.00%
Li, Stephen Hing Yue ([Stephen Li %t |) SEH| A A 2 (note 3)
(K75£3)

Cool Legend Limited (“Cool Legend”) Beneficial owner 452,400,000 5.00%
Cool Legend Limited ([ Cool Legend |) BEmfEAA (note 3)
(#17#3)

REEREREGRDA
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Notes:

1. These interests were held by Able Victory, which was a wholly owned
by Mr. Li. Mr. Li was the sole director of Able Victory. Accordingly, Mr. Li
was deemed to be interested in 2,207,485,423 shares of the Company
under the SFO.

2. These interests were held by Hua Shang. Accordingly Hua Shang was
deemed to be interested in 1,507,900,000 shares of the Company
under the SFO.

3. These interests were held by Cool Legend, which was wholly owned by

Mr. Stephen Li. Accordingly, Mr. Stephen Li was deemed to be interested
in 452,400,000 shares of the Company under the SFO.

The interests of Mr. Li and Able Victory in 2,207,485,423 shares of the
Company referred to above related to the same parcel of shares.

The interests of Mr. Stephen Li and Cool Legend in 452,400,000 shares
of the Company referred to above related to the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had
not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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1. ZEHEEAAble VictoryEHE  HBZEA4ERE
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2. ZE R HHua Shangi g - AL 1B & %3
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452,400,000/ B 10 2 #E % -
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GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group adopted the following philosophies in determining its
emolument policy:

the Group adopts a performance driven policy so that each
individual is motivated to perform to the best he/she can;

. individual competence, contribution and responsibility are taken
into account when considering the remuneration level for each
employee;

° the Company offers provident fund, medical insurance and

leave benefits to provide basic coverage to staff for retirement,
sickness, rest and relaxation reasons, respectively;

° share option grants are made from time to time to better
link the corporate performance as reflected in the share price
performance and the contributions made by the staff in the
intermediate to longer time frame; and

o the economic factors and the affordability of the Group are
taken into account in coming up with the overall remuneration
budget for the Group.

The Group has also adopted a discretionary bonus scheme. Factors,
such as overall financial performance, the affordability of the Company
and individual performance, have been taken into account before
determining the entitlement of each qualified employee.

The determination of directors’ remuneration has taken into
consideration of their respective responsibilities and contributions to
the Company and with reference to market terms.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director or other officer
of the Company for the time being acting in relation to any affairs of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur
or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto provided that the indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty of the
above persons. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the scope of connected
transactions under the Listing Rules but are exempted from reporting,
annual review, announcements or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as otherwise disclosed, none of the directors of the Company had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
at least 25% of the issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
("Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange for the year ended 31 December 2017 except for the
following deviation with reason as explained:

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Code Provision E.1.2

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM").

Deviation

The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the AGM for year
2017 as he had other important business engagement.

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Deviation

On 23 January 2018, Mr. Li Sen was both the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered
that Mr. Li Sen has in-depth knowledge and experience in the
properties investment related business in the PRC and therefore he is
the most appropriate person to take up the two roles. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board will review the current structure from time to
time. At the appropriate time when candidate who possesses suitable
leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or
outside the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 184.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and have been duly approved by the Board under the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire as auditor of the Company upon
expiration of its current term of office at the close of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Audit committee will
discuss, and if considered appropriate, to recommend to the Board
the appointment of new auditors of the Company to fill in the
vacancy arising from the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The recommendation of new
auditors of the Company by the Audit Committee will be proposed
to the Board which may, if considered appropriate, submit the same
to the forthcoming annual general meeting for consideration and
approval by the shareholders.

On behalf of the Board

Li Sen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2018

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREARS

GENERAL

The Directors are pleased to present the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2017
in compliance with the applicable code provision set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG
Guide"”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. Information
on the environmental and social aspects of the report is set out
below whilst information on the governance aspect is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 32. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied with the
“comply and explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide.

OVERVIEW

The Group has always placed significant emphasis in minimising
potential impact on the environment in conducting businesses, and in
faces of the challenges of climate changes the Group has integrated
Environmental, Social and Governance considerations into daily
operations, with a particular focus on maintaining closer connections
with stakeholders and taking on more responsibilities in the society.
Comprehensive assessments had been performed by the Group and the
Group believes that its existing businesses are not expected to pose a
material impact on the environment.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT AND ESG
STRATEGY

According to the requirements of ESG Guide, the Board has overall
responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy and reporting. During
the year, the Company has conducted internal and external materiality
assessments on the Company’s business (as reflected in 2017
Materiality Matrix of Enviro Energy). Taking into account the reporting
principles as set out in the ESG Guide, the nature of business and
principal activity of the Company, the general disclosures under the
aspects of Operating Practices and Social Area of the ESG Guide are
considered to be crucial to the Company's investors, stakeholders and
businesses.
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RIBE-HERERBS

2017 Materiality Matrix of Enviro Energy “E-tLtFREEEMEE

Materiality Matrix

EENEE

Operating practices

e Supply chain management
e Product responsibility

e Anti-corruption

Crucial
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e Community investment

EEEp

o HEEEIE
s EmAfE

s RES

HE
s HEIRE

SERRTME (HEHENTE)
2

_
wn
S
)

=
o

<
7]
X
©
S
w
c
o
-
v
©
o
£
=

-
c
)
£
w
w
]
w
w
©

©
c
S
(7]

2
3

(15

Not relevant
el
0

0 1 2 3 4 5
Not relevant Crucial
AR R BEZ

Internal assessment (impact on business)

MM (HEBNE)

54 Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HE8RERRE

Given the fact that the existing businesses of the Company does
not pose a material impact on the environment, therefore, the three
aspects of key performance indicators (KPI) under the Environment
Area, namely Emissions (Aspect A1), Use of Resources (Aspect A2)
and the Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3), are not
considered material for disclosure according to the requirements of
the ESG Guide. However, the Company recognises the importance of
environmental protection and always supports its employees to protect
the environment and use of resources and energy in the most efficient
and effective manner on one hand and considers this as one of the
assessment criteria for assessing and selecting suppliers and business
partners on the other hand.

Environmental
Emissions

Existing businesses of the Group do not produce significant amount
of waste and thus the Group does not have significant air and
greenhouse gas emissions, and none of the operations of the
Group have significant discharges into water and land, nor generate
significant hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. The Group however
considers management of impacts on the environment as one of the
assessment criteria in assessing and selecting suppliers and business
partners.

Use of resources

Among the existing businesses that the Group currently involves in,
all of which do not require consumption of a significant amount of
resources, including energy, water and other raw materials. The Group
does acknowledge that effort in promoting efficient usage of resources
and therefore make efforts in preparing and introducing policies on
efficient usage of resources in operations. Besides, the Group also
considers this as one of the assessment criteria for assessing and
selecting suppliers and business partners.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Wi HEREARE

According to the requirements of the ESG Guide, the Company has
quantified the resources usage of its office operation in Hong Kong.
The results are summarized as follows:

RBRE HERERKESINRE ARAFREE
CERBEBZMAELENERER ARG
W

2017
—E—+tF
(Electricity) (E'5 )
Electricity Consumed (kWh)' B2 (TER) 22,686
Electricity Consumed per gross floor area (KWh/m2) !%@EF BE (TERFHK 4.32
C02 Emission from Electricity Consumed (kg) RAEEEZz —SBRER(FR) 17,922
(Paper) (#ER)
Paper used (tonne) A4 (W8) 0.4584
(Water) (7)
Water Consumption? k&2
Notes: Bt 55
1. Consumption from the central building services including electricity 1. HRPREFEGENEBRPREFANE NH
usage due to the elevator and central air-conditioning are excluded from RTEEEARANEEERARN BRI TE
the reporting scope since it was not within the operational boundary of FEREEER-
the Company.
2. Consumption from the central building services for water usage. 2. PREBFRERKE:-

The environment and natural resources

Due to the nature of the Group's existing businesses, the Group does
not engage in any operations that have a significant impact on the
environment. The Group made efforts to promote, and where possible,
integration of environmentally friendly business practices into daily
operations. Practical steps implemented by the management include
concept
to employees, reminding staff the use of double-sided printing,
energy saving by switching off idle lighting and air conditioners and
using equipment carrying Energy Label issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department. Further, the Group also consider
this as one of the Group’s most important assessment criteria when

issuing notices that promote “green office management”

assessing and selecting suppliers and business partners.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HE8RERRE

Social
Employment and Labor Practices

A respectful and fair working environment for maintaining a sound
system of human resources management is considered to be vital
to the operation of the Group. The Group ensures strict compliance
with all relevant regulatory standards, particularly the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong in respect of recruitment, remuneration,
and separation. Employment process of the Group stresses the
consideration of experience, qualifications, and knowledge, with an
objective to ensure that there is no discrimination on the grounds of
age, gender, marital status, family status, gender orientation, disability,
race, nationality or religion. Upon satisfactory consideration, the Group
ensures that employment contract is fully understood by potential
employees before contracts are signed. Employment contract of the
Group includes employment terms such as job duties, working hours,
holidays, remuneration, termination process, and benefits.

The Group had adopted a five-day workweek arrangement to facilitate
work-life balance. In additional to all general holidays (including
Sundays) as specified in the General Holidays Ordinance, employees are
entitled to annual leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves, marriage
leaves and compassionate leaves with pay. Employees enjoy medical
benefits, provident fund scheme and other benefits subject to the
Group's policies.

The Group continuously evaluates the remuneration and promotion
mechanism so as to share the fruitful achievement with employees of
the Group. The Group motivates employees by promotion and salary
increment based on results of annual performance appraisal, and to
award double-pay payment and discretionary bonus in addition to
basic salary.

Dismissal is conducted with strict compliance with the Employment
Ordinance and the requirement as stipulated in the employment
contract.
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RE HEBRERRE

Health and safety

Operations of the Group do not involve heavy machinery or labor
intensive routines and are conducted in a safe office environment. The
Group does acknowledge the potential health issues that exist in office
settings, and therefore the Group promotes measures to talents of the
Group from exposure to occupational diseases or injuries, no matter
severe or minor.

The Group leverages on the promotional materials from Occupational
Safety and Health Council regarding information on providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards in an office working environment. Further, the Group ensures
full compliance towards Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
and applicable regulations that protected employees from occupation
hazards. The Group did not experience any lost days due to injury or
work-related fatalities during the reporting period.

The Group encourages contractors and business partners in placing
great emphasis on health and safety issues, and the Group shares
views with them, in particular, business partners that operate in
factories.

Development and Training

The Group has a team of professionals to manage businesses of
the Group, and it is, therefore, vital for the Group to support their
continuous professional developments. For example, the Group
provides financial support to trainings relevant to their profession,
where necessary subsidies were given to employees for participation
in training sessions which aim at enhancing their job skills. These
trainings covered the areas such as management skill and leadership
improvement, company’s organization strategy and corporate culture,
and employee’s business knowledge. From time to time the Group
also provides updates of regulatory requirements and standards to
employees. In addition, the Group provides induction training materials
for Directors.

In the face of the ever-evolving business landscape, the Group also
places emphasis on the employees’ learning experience gained through
work assignments so as to build up their on-going job skills which
benefit their career development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HE8RERRE

Labour Standards

The businesses of the Group involve specialised skill and higher level
education standards and are not labour intensive in nature. As such,
the Group does not employ under-age employees, and the Group does
not engage in forced labour. The Group conveys its stance on child
labour and forced labour to key business partners and if there is any
confirmed report of such case in relation to business partners, the
Group will conduct an investigation in detail and critically reconsider
the relationships with such party. As part of the recruitment process,
the Group performs a background check and a reference check where
deemed necessary. Candidates who do not meet the legal requirements
would not be hired. The Group fully complies with relevant regulations
that prohibit child or forced labour.

Operating Practices
Supply chain management

The Group is in the trading business and the Group recognises the
role in promoting sustainability issues within the industry. The Group,
therefore, advocates the standards and expectations in respect of
environment issues and labour practices to suppliers and business
partners, with the expectation that they will uphold standards that
are similar to that of the Group. The Group relentlessly assesses and
monitors key business partners based on a wide range of aspects and
standards, including attitude towards environmental and social issues,
to evaluate the quality as well as their moral standards.

Product responsibility

Among all business lines, the Group does not have any packaged
products being sold to general public. In the trading business, products
are specialised industrial components with detailed specifications
stipulated in trade contracts. The Group specified the product
specifications in details and documented in sale and purchase contracts
for each trading project. The commodities shall meet the guaranteed
specifications for the completion of the trade. In the course of
conducting such business, the Group made efforts to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group. The Group had not received any litigation regarding the health
and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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RE #HEBRERRE

Anti-corruption

The Group’'s commitment to preventing bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering is one of the core values and the Group
is committed to preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in all businesses dealings or transactions of the Group.
The Group has made available a whistle-blowing reporting channel
to report any suspected fraud, malpractice, corruption, or any other
unethical actions. It is the policy of the Group to maintain high moral
standards in conducting businesses.

The Group has strictly adhered to relevant laws and regulations,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. During the year ended
31 December 2017, there was no legal case or dispute in respect of
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering against employees of the
Group and the Group itself.

Community
Community investment

The Group is in the stage of expanding its business reach, and thus
by far the customer bases are mainly formed by commercial business
or strategic partners. The Group will continue to access which
particular community the Group can direct community investment
in. Nonetheless, the Group recognises the need to participate in the
community and therefore the Group both encourages and motivates
its employees to partake in communities. The Group from time to
time motivates employees to volunteer, contribute to support and
participate in community activities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 B AR

_a
pwc

To the Members of Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Enviro Energy International

Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 75 to 183, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,
o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended,
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° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ° HEZRALFENGERZEBR:
then ended;
o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ¢ HEZBILFENGERSRER R
ended; and
° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which ° EMBRRME BEEEGBRM
include a summary of significant accounting policies. °
PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OUR QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As described in Notes 24(b), 24(c) and 26(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recorded prepayments for purchases
of HK$230,676,000 to certain materials suppliers as at 31 December
2017, including payments of RMB75,230,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$90,276,000) and payments of RMB117,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$140,400,000) for alleged purchases
of construction materials and aluminum materials, respectively. As at
the same date, the Group also recorded in other payables an amount
of RMB6,658,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,990,000) due
to an affiliate of one of these suppliers. Details of these balances are
summarised below:

(@ On 21 June 2017, Yingkou Hailanggu Travel Co., Limited (literal
translation of the Chinese name of & R AIKEGRAF))
("Subsidiary A"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, made a prepayment of RMB79,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$94,800,000) to a supplier (“Supplier A")
for alleged purchases of construction materials pursuant to an
agreement dated 13 June 2017.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Subsequently on 18 August 2017, Subsidiary A received
an amount of RMB1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,800,000) from Supplier A. Management explained that
this receipt represented a partial refund of the abovementioned
prepayment. On 25 August 2017, Subsidiary A and Supplier
A signed a supplemental agreement and acknowledged that
Subsidiary A has suspended the relevant refurbishment project
but reserved the right to utilise the prepayment at a later stage.
Furthermore, on 20 September 2017, Subsidiary A, Supplier A
and a company (the “Assignee B") entered into an agreement
in which Supplier A has assigned, and the Assignee has agreed
to assume, the obligations relating to the remaining balance of
prepayment due to Subsidiary A of RMB77,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$93,000,000). On 21 September 2017,
Subsidiary A received an amount of RMB2,270,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,724,000) from the Assignee representing
a partial repayment of the prepayment as explained by
management.

In addition, as discussed in Note 26(b), during the period
from October 2017 to December 2017, Subsidiary A received
three other payments totalling RMB6,658,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,990,000) from another company affiliated
to the Assignee (“Company A"). Although management
explained that these represented further partial repayments
of the relevant prepayments, these receipts were separately
recorded as other payables due to Company A, instead of
offsetting them against the relevant prepayment balance, in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2017.

Management represented that Supplier A, the Assignee and
Company A are all independent third parties of the Group.

During the course of our audit, it came to our attention that
up to the date of this report the Group has never received any
construction materials as stipulated in the purchase agreement
dated 13 June 2017.
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As further described in Note 24(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, Subsidiary A received the outstanding balance of
RMB75,230,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$90,276,000)
from the Assignee on 21 March 2018. It came to our further
attention that, on the same date, the amount received from the
Assignee was used to partially fund the Group's prepayments of
RMB87,126,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$104,551,000)
for alleged purchases of construction materials and leather
materials from two other suppliers. It was also noted, however,
that such prepayments were subsequently refunded back in full
from these two suppliers to the Group on 28 March 2018.

During the period from August 2017 to November 2017, Huan
Neng Industrial (Yingkou) Company Limited (literal translation of
the Chinese name of IReEE % (& 0)BRAF) (“Subsidiary
B"), another indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
made five payments totalling RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$140,400,000) to a supplier (the “Aluminium
Supplier”) pursuant to an agreement dated 17 August 2017 for
alleged purchases of aluminium materials.

Management represented that the Aluminium Supplier is an
independent third party of the Group.

During the course of our audit, it came to our attention that
up to the date of this report the Group has never received any
aluminium materials as stipulated in the purchase agreement
dated 17 August 2017.

As described in Note 24(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group received the abovementioned balance of
RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$140,400,000)
from the Aluminium Supplier on 20 March 2018. We noted,
however, that the said amount received from the Aluminium
Supplier was immediately transferred to another company on the
same date before the same amount was remitted back again to
Subsidiary B on the following day.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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In respect of the abovementioned transactions and balances occurred
and recorded both before and after 31 December 2017, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence or satisfactory
management explanations to ascertain their nature, business rationale
and commercial substance, including (but not limited to) the reasons
for not receiving any materials up to the date of this report, the
rationale for the assignment of the amounts to the Assignee for
the prepayments described in (a), why the amounts received from
the relevant counterparties subsequent to 31 December 2017 were
transferred to other parties shortly after the receipts but were then
immediately transferred back to the Group before the date of this
report. We were also unable to obtain all the necessary corroborative
evidence from the counterparties to substantiate these transactions
and balances. Given these scope limitations, there were no alternative
audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to the
business rationale and commercial substance, occurrence, accuracy,
completeness and presentation of these transactions together with
the related balances, and whether the effects of these transactions,
including the related cashflows, have been properly accounted for and
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Valuation of investment properties

o Classification and recoverability assessment of loan receivable
Key Audit Matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 3(f), 4(a) and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties (including the investment properties in assets classified as
held for sale) to be HK$424,380,000 as at 31 December 2017 and a
revaluation loss of HK$20,866,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year then ended.

Independent external valuations were obtained for all the investment
properties in order to support management’s estimates.

Depending on the nature and location of the properties, the external
valuer has used the following methodologies to derive the fair values
of the properties:

- Direct comparison method;

- Income capitalisation method; and

- Depreciated replacement cost method.
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Given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, assumptions
under observable inputs, including adopted units rates, adopted units
rents and adopted reversionary yields, are required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by
the properties under consideration.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the investment
properties balance and the impact of their fair value adjustments to
the consolidated financial statements, and the use of judgements to
determine various assumptions to observable inputs when determining
the fair value of investment properties.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We performed the following procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties:

- evaluated the external valuer's competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

- assessed the methodologies used and the key assumptions,
including adopted units rates, adopted units rents and adopted
reversionary yields, based on our knowledge of the property
industry by performing market research, with the assistance
from our in-house valuation specialist to assess if the valuation
is within an acceptable range; and

- checked and assessed, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used, such as the gross floor area
and relevance of the market comparables by considering the
nature and location of the Group’s investment properties.

Based on the procedures performed above, we considered
management’s judgement and assumptions adopted to determine the
valuation of investment properties were supported by evidence we
obtained.
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Classification and recoverability assessment of loan receivable

Refer to Notes 3(k), 3(l), 4(b) and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As described in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group purchased certain properties for RMB150,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$180,000,000) from a third party (the “Vendor”)
on 29 December 2017. According to the terms of the sale and
purchase agreement signed on 29 December 2017, the Vendor should
transfer the legal title of such properties to the Group on or before 30
December 2018 which has not been completed as of year ended 31
December 2017.

At the same time, the Group entered into another property leasing
agreement with the Vendor, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to lease the subject properties back to the Vendor for three
years commencing 29 December 2017. In return, the Group will
receive quarterly lease payments and the payment of a principal of
RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$180,000,000) at
the end of the lease term, and the Vendor will have a repurchase
option to buy back the properties from the Group at RMB1 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1) upon full repayment of all outstanding lease
payments and the aforesaid principal amount.

Having considered the nature and terms of the above transactions,
including the nature and value of the repurchase option, management
has accounted for the above transactions as a loan arrangement and
recorded a loan receivable from the Vendor which is secured by the
subject properties in substance.

Furthermore, to assess the recoverability of the loan receivable,
management has obtained an independent valuation for the subject
properties which were valued under discounted cash flow method and
a legal opinion from an external lawyer with respect to the Group’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations for entering into
these transactions and its rights over the subject properties given the
legal title of the properties is yet to be transferred to the Group. Based
on the results of the assessments performed by management, no
provisions related to these transactions were made for the year ended
31 December 2017.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the loan receivable
to the consolidated financial statements and the significant judgments
involved in the determination of the classification of the transactions
and the recoverability assessment of the loan receivable.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We performed the following procedures in relation to the classification
and recoverability assessments of the loan receivable performed by
management:

- obtained and reviewed all the sale and purchase agreement
and the property leasing agreement in relation to the loan
receivable;

- discussed with management to understand the considerations
taken when determining the classification of the loan receivable
with reference to the terms and conditions of the agreements
and the requirements under relevant accounting standards;

- performed land search to confirm ownership of the properties
held by the Vendor as at 31 December 2017 and site visit to
check existence of the subject properties;

- checked all the settlement of lease payments made to date
against bank advices;

- in relation to the legal opinion prepared by the external lawyer,
we performed the following:

- evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of
the external lawyer;

- obtained and reviewed the legal opinion and discussed
with management to understand the Group’s legal
rights and priority to the subject properties. In
addition, we held a discussion with the external lawyer
to understand the legal implications behind these
transactions and the legal procedures that can possibly
be undertaken by the Group in recovering the loan
in case of default of terms and conditions under the
relevant agreements by the counterparty;
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- in relation to the valuation report prepared by the external

valuer, we performed the following:

- evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of
the external valuer;

- assessed the methodology used by the valuer and the
key assumptions including adopted unit rent used
based on our knowledge of the property industry by
performing market research, with the assistance from
our inhouse valuation specialist to assess if the valuation
is within an acceptable range;

- assessed the reasonableness of the valuation by
comparing against asking sale prices of comparable
properties within the subject development; and

- checked and assessed, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used, such as the gross
floor area and the relevance of the market comparables
by considering the nature and location of the subject
properties.

Based on the procedures performed above, we consider the
recoverability assessment of the loan receivable was supportable by
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Management Discussion and Analysis (but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon),
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the
other contents for Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement,
Corporate Governance Report, Directors and Senior Management
Profile, Report of the Directors, Environmental, Social and Governance
Report and Five-Year Financial Summary to be included in the 2017
Annual Report of the Group, which are expected to be made available
to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence about the nature of certain prepayments for purchases and
other payables, as well as to obtain satisfactory explanations about
the business rationale and commercial substance of the related
transactions and balances. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude
whether or not the other information is materially misstated with
respect to these matters.

When we read the Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement,
Corporate Governance Report, Directors and Senior Management
Profile, Report of the Directors, Environmental, Social and Governance
Report and Five-Year Financial Summary to be included in the 2017
Annual Report of the Group, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

mA R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - ZE—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—ifF ZE—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M &F FTET FHET
Continuing operations: FEREEK:
Revenue A 8 54,531 8,457
Cost of sales $HE KA (46,994) (46)
Gross profit EH 7,537 8,411
Other gains, net H i F = 9 8,810 18
Fair value change on investment properties & ¥ % 2 fo (B {E 18 (20,866) 2,182
Administrative and operating expenses TEREERST (24,420) (19,684)
Operating loss KEEE (28,939) (9,073)
Finance income B E WA 10 4 19
Finance cost & KA 11 (21,521) (10,187)
Loss before taxation BrFiAT BT 18 12 (50,456) (19,241)
Income tax s 13 (399) =
Loss from continuing operations BEREXKEE (50,855) (19,241)
Discontinued operations: ERIEREEK:
Loss for the year from ERIESEXEBFEEERE
discontinued operations 29 (43,045) (67,923)
Loss for the year FEEIE (93,900) (87,164)
Attributable to: BUTF AL
Owners of the Company KARHEEB A (93,900) (34,849)
Non-controlling interests FEERR #E 2 = (52,315)
(93,900) (87,164)
Loss per share from continuing operations N2 Al #EH A BRI EKL L5
attributable to owners of the Company K& E B
(expressed in HK cent per share) (LAERABWZ5)
Basic and diluted BERR#E 15 (0.65) (0.27)
Loss per share attributable to ARAREEAELEBRER
owners of the Company
(expressed in HK cent per share) (AERBIWZ%])
Basic and diluted EARREE 15 (1.21) (0.49)
Dividends &2 14 = =

The notes on pages 84 to 183 are an integral part of these FRAZI8IEAMH M T AZZHRE M B wE — &
yaN

o

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+-_A=+—HBItFE

2017 2016
—E—-+tF A S
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
H st FHET FHET
Loss for the year FEEBSE (93,900) (87,164)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HtzmEikz (§8)
Item that may be reclassified to AEFSEER e ZHE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from BREBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations M ZH 19,058 (7,234)
Release of reserves upon disposal of REEKERREEHZ
subsidiaries ] 29 48,348 =
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEHMEEWES,
for the year, net of tax (&1\)  mer= 67,406 |  (7,234)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHEBEASH (26,494) (94,398)
Attributable to: UTRALER:
Owners of the Company RABHEB A (26,494) (42,890)
Non-controlling interests SRR ME R - (51,508)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHFEELARE (26,494) (94,398)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to RELT 2 AKX TEE A
owners of the Company arises from: Eh2HERARE:
Continuing operations SIB IS TS (26,494) (27,282)
Discontinued operations RIS - (15,608)
(26,494) (42,890)
The notes on pages 84 to 183 are an integral part of these S BEmKk—E

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

n"/-\-'-.l_\é\ F

As at 31 December 2017 A=

3B 3%

—tF A= +—A

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b &t TER FHEIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 16 764 45
Loan receivable fEWE 17 180,000 =
Investment properties REME 18 383,173 358,279
Prepayment for investment property AV EBNRIA 24 - 25,022
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 22 = 100,200
Club memberships e 330 330
Rental deposits Heke 24 | 1,387 | .
,,,,,,, 565,654 | 483876
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 129 =
Trade receivables FEWE Z R 23 60,463 41,106
Deposits, prepayments and ®e BRRER
other receivables H WK IE 24 363,709 95,560
Bank balances and cash RITEH LIRS 25 154,140 20,609
578,441 157,275
Assets classified as held for sale PEARIELEZEE 19 41,207 =
,,,,,,, 619,688 | 157275
Total assets EEAR 1,185,302 641,151
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable ERATEBEANELELARFE
to owners of the Company
Share capital A& A< 28(a) 22,620 18,850
Reserves i 28(b) 580,618 415,292
603,238 434,142
Non-controlling interests eI A - (2,789)
Total equity wam=E | 603,238 | 431,353
BuEBERERALA

T tFFR
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

LREEAEBR

As at 31 December 2017 W= —+&F+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt it FHERT FHET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Shareholder loan EERER 34(b) 2,000 =
Deferred loan interest income RRE B RN E A
— non-current portion —JERNEREL 2,400 -
Asset retirement obligation BEREER 495 =
,,,,,,,,, e -
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables &SI 5 BR 3 I EL M B A SR 1B 26 83,623 28,914
Deferred loan interest income EEE S B WA
— current portion —BIEAEE & 1,200 =
Loan from a related company REBERAZER 34(b) 62,331 -
Bank borrowings RITE ?y’( 27 429,600 180,884
Income tax payable FETFR1S B 415 =
577,169 209,798
Total liabilities cEesE ?8}}36}; 77777777 %Q%,Z?%
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAE 1,185,302 641,151

The financial statements on pages 75 to 183 have been approved by
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Li Sen
=&

Director

BF

The notes on pages 84 to 183 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolido’red Statement of Changes in Equity

7 ﬁ‘-
lI‘/j_\ * ﬁ mom

B3k

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =%

—tF+_A=t—HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRR AR
Share Non-
Share Share Capital options  Translation Other Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Rx  BRHRE EAfE BRERE EXRGE  HERE  2HER Nt FERES @zt
TARL TAT TER TARL TARL TAT Thx TARL TARL TER
As at 1 January 2016 RZE-~%-A-H 17,630 793,430 19,980 68,924 (18,236) (39,117)  (465,159) 377,452 48,719 426,171
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (34849) (34849 (52315 (87,164)
Other comprehensive H2E (FE) /Wi
(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising from ~ BEENEBELZELES
translation of foreign operations - - - - (8,041) - - (8,041) 807 (7,234)
Total comprehensive loss EEREFRAR
for the year - - - - (8,041) - (34,849) (42,890) (51,508) (94,393)
Transactions with owners BEEANERAZ
in their capacity as owners SRETZRS
Issuance of share upon exercise  RTERRERREITR G
of warrants (note 28(a)(})) (Hi#2808)0) 2 183 = = = 22) = 163 = 163
Lapse of warrants (note 28(t)) FREZ XM (W328(0)) - 8,643 - - - (8,643) 5 S = =
Issuance of consideration shares ~ E7T{% B {3
(note 28(a)(i}) (H28)i) 1218 98,199 - - - - - 99,417 = 99,417
Total transactions with owners  EEBANEEAZ
in their capacity as owners SRETZREAE 1220 107,025 - - - (8,665) - 99,580 = 99,580
As at 31 December 2016 WZB-RE+ZA=T-H 18,850 900,455 19,980 68,924 (26,277) (47,782)  (500,008) 434,142 (2,789) 431,353

ReEEBRERAERAA

T tFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-_A=1+—HBItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAERARE
Share Non-
Share Share Capital options  Translation Other Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total ~ interests Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ks  ROEE EARE BRERE EARGE  HeRE  2HER Mt FBERER st
TR THTL TETL TER TR THTL TETL TET TR TERL

As at 1 January 2017 R-Z—+%F-f-AH 18,850 900,455 19,980 68,924 (26,277) (47,782)  (500,008) 434142 (2,789) 431,353
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year FEER - - = = S = (93,900)  (93,900) 5 (93,900)

Other comprehensive income ~ Hft2EHHE
Exchange differences arising from ~ 2EENEBELZELER

translation of foreign operations - - - - 19,058 - - 19,058 - 19,058
Release of reserves upon disposal I EMBAFAIREL 2 ffs
of subsidiaries (note 29) (#r#29) - - - - 566 47,782 - 48,348 - 48,348

Total comprehensive loss FE2EFRAE

ey e mew om0 @ - s
Transactions with owners BREANEEAZ

in their capacity as owners SBETIRE

Lapse of options (note 28(b)) BREXR(Wit230) - - - (437) - S s (437) S (437)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29)  HEK BRE (4/7229) - - - - - - - S 2,789 2,789
Issuance of shares (note 28(@)(ii)) ~ B11IR1A (M#280)i) 3770 192,257 - - - - - 196,027 - 196,027

Total transactions with owners  EEAANEEAZ
in their capacity as owners FRETZRAHE 3,710 192,257 - (437) - - - 195,590 2,789 198,379

As at 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+=A=1-8 2,620 1,092,712 19,980 68,487 (6,653) - (593,908) 603,238 - 603,238

The notes on pages 84 to 183 are an integral part of these FRARI8IEFMH I AZF 46 Mk — &

aN

consolidated financial statements. e

N
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Consolido’red Statement of Cash Flows

HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - ZE—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M aF FHET FiET
Operating activities REX®
Loss before taxation, B B AT ES 1B
including discontinued operations (BIEDRIEEEEK) (93,501) (87,164)
Adjustments for: BMTIBEBEELHAR:
Finance income L& WA 10 (4) (19)
Finance cost & BAR 11 21,521 10,187
Depreciation of property, M- -BERRENE
plant and equipment 16 12 52
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment B2 WS 16 - (26)
Fair value change on investment REMERABERE
properties 18 20,866 (2,182)
Impairment loss on exploration and BRR I EE 2 REEE
evaluation asset 29(a)(iii) - 78,747
Property, plant and equipment written off ¥ 2 « B & 5% 1 il 8 = 680
Trade receivable written off FE UL B 5 BR SR 8 - 38
Other receivable written off L & SRR I8 i 8 — 437
Write down of inventories MO & - 421
Impairment loss on an AEEERE ZRERESE
available-for-sale investment 22 200 90
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR EE 29 43,182 =
Gain on disposal of an HERH B ERE 2
available-for-sale investment 9 (8,000) -
Operating cash flow before CEEAREHAZ
movements in working capital KEFERE (15,724) 1,261
Increase in inventories & Em (129) S
Increase in trade receivables JE UL & 5 BR FR 4 0 (22,319) (34,211)
Increase in deposits, Ze ENRIER
prepayments and other receivables H 4t JiE I SR IEE hn (134,821) (52,915)
Increase in trade and other payables FERTE SRR K
H fth FE < SIS 0 64,755 1,311
Net cash used in operating activities KEXBMAZRESFE ~ (108,238) |  (84,554)
BuEBERERALA

T tFFR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-_A=1+—HBItFE

2017 2016
S —E-RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M it FERT FHET
Investing activities REEH
Bank interest received 2HERITHIE 10 4 19
Purchase of property, BAME - WFE RZME
plant and equipment 16 (259) (23)
Proceeds form disposal of property, HEME BER&REZ
plant and equipments Fr1S 3E 16 - 47
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QA 29 (36) -
Additions of investment properties REREME 18 (3,210) =
Settlement of consideration payables for S ffURIERE M=~
acquisition of investment properties EARE - (96,882)
Consideration paid for acquisitions WIEHBRARZENRE
of subsidiaries (net of cash and (MEBRFkE 2R R
cash equivalents acquired) REEFEW) 30 (27,063) (104,256)
Payment for acquisition of an TRHBBAIHEERE
available-for-sale investment 22 - (100,000)
Loan to third parties ME=ZFHRLEER (180,000) =
Entrusted loan to third parties ME=ZFAREZTER (28,546) =
Proceeds from repayment of FE=REERZTERNR
entrusted loan from a third party Fr 1S 3H 14,249 =
Net cash used in investing activities REFBMA RS FRE (224,861) | (301,095
Financing activities RMEED
Proceeds from exercise of warrants TERBRIEFSRIA 28(a)(i) = 163
Proceeds from placing of shares it & IR 1D AT 1S 58 28(a)(iii) 196,027 =
Interest paid EAFE (21,521) (10,187)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE RIS HIA 410,863 105,550
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (183,382) -
Proceeds from loan from a related xR E BERFZ
company AT RIA 240,000 =
Repayment of loan from féf i ?K BEEARIZER
a related company (177,669) -
Proceeds from shareholder loan IR R B AT1S RIB 2,000 -
Net cash generated from financing activities Bt & /EENFTE 2R & /F58 466,318 95,526

82 Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Consolido’red Statement of Cash Flows

HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =%

—tF+_A=t—HLEFE

2017 2016
—Z—tF BN
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FET FET
Net increase/(decrease) RITHGBRESEM
in bank balances and cash (RD) FE 133,219 (290,123)
Bank balances and cash at FU2RITHEB LIRS
beginning of year 20,609 310,736
Exchange difference on RITHEBREBF e ZELZR
bank balances and cash 312 (4)
Bank balances and cash at end of year FRZBITHEHRIRE 154,140 20,609

The principal non-cash transaction was the settlement of consideration

in relation to an addition of investment properties by allotment

and issuance of new shares of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 as set out in note 28(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no material non-cash transactions for the year

ended 31 December 2017.

The notes on pages 84 to 183 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

TRFRERFGEARABE_T—R"FT-A
=t HLEFEERREBERBETHRO 2HTAE

H%E&é%%Zﬁf‘; £
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on 3 July 2002. The shares
of the Company are listed on the The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group is principally engaged in trading of building
materials, investment holding and properties investment.

As at 31 December 2017, the Board considers that Able
Victory Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, as the ultimate holding company of
the Company, and Mr. Li Sen, an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board, as the ultimate controlling party of the
Company.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board on 31 March 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for investment properties and available-for-
sale investments which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Nofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IS AR MY R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(a) The following new standards/amendments to standards
are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2017.

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements

Project 2014 — 2016 Cycle
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
(Amendments) — Disclosure Initiative
HKFRS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
(Amendments) Assets for Unrealised Losses

The adoption of these new amendments to standards
does not have any significant impact to the results and
financial position of the Group.

(b) The following new standards/amendments to standards
have been issued, but are not effective for the Group’s
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2017 and
have not been early adopted.

mBEE (&)

(a)

(b)

THAR-_ZE—+tF—HA—HzZ
&6 < & 5T BRI & ) AL 2 #RT
AR AR ZAERT AR

FEYEEE ZE-MFEEZE-RN

FREzEEYE

BEESHERNETS AeRER-RBEL
(BFIR)

ERMHREED HABRER
F125 (BFTK) RETHBEE

RAZEMERNZAEFT AL EEH A
SEZEARMBRREREMNE
N2

TIREAEER —T—+F—H—
BRmz 2t HIMEB|ME R AR E
R IR BRI 2 AT R
Al ZAERT AR

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

THB#Ez

#RRZ

BHHBEN

HKAS 28 (amendments) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2018
BEBG RN E28% (BFIA) REEERRIREEDRINKRE “Z2-N\¥—-A—H
HKAS 40 (amendments) Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018
BAGENEIOR (BFIAR) HEREAME —Z-\¥-A—-H
HKFRS 2 (amendments) Classification and Measurement of Sharebased Payment Transactions 1 January 2018
BERUBHRELMNER (BFTA) BRONRRGHOHERFE —E2-N\¥—-A—H

HKFRS 4 (amendments)

BAMBRELA SR (BTR)
HKFRS 9

BERUBRELAFER

HKFRS 9 (amendments)
BEERBREENET (BFTX)
HKFRS 15 (amendments)

AR BRELEAE 155 (BFAX)

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

RAEEMBRERAEIT [RREF]E
—HEAEEMBRELEREIR [MBIA]

Financial Instruments

1 January 2018

“F-N\F-F-H

1 January 2018

SRIA —E-N\%—-A—H
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019
AEamBEZRAMBIEMT “Z-N¥-A-R
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018
BBEBBYBRELEREISH —NF—-A—H

REBEBRERERAA

T tFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S R MY R

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) (continued)

RBEE (&)

(b) (&)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

T E#HZ
(31

S HBEEXR

HKFRS 16

ERVBREENS 165

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(amendments)

ERMBREENFEI0FRR
BAGENE28% (BFIA)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

EE (BRVBHREZEEZEE)
—ZREE225

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

EE(BRMBRERAREES)
—RRBE3R

Annual Improvements Project

FEYERE

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for financial

assets.

While the Group has yet to undertake a detailed
assessment of the classification and measurement of
financial assets, as at 31 December 2017, the Group
does not have any significant equity instruments
currently classified as available-for-sale financial assets
for which a fair value through other comprehensive

income election is available.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

Leases

BE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

REEREBENAIAERRAIZEMEELER IR

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

MEZXHRBIRE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

S BiE I a A HEE

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
SE-MEE-F-ATEBZEENE

A/

1 January 2019
—E-NE-A—H

To be determined

1 January 2018
—E-\§-A—H

1 January 2019
—Z-NE-A—H

1 January 2018
—E-\§-A—H

BB BHREERFEIN [T

R EANHHEREENSHEA
BHDE FHEMRILER L3
EEF ST HOFRAMESBEED
R ERE -

BEAKERAHEHEENTE
MEFEETHANE R_F—&
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MRAPRAIHHESRHEEMH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= AR

e IR R R

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: recognition and measurement”
and have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, contract
assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on the
historical experience of the Group, the default rates
of the outstanding balances with customers are low.
Hence, the Board does not expect that the application
of HKFRS 9 would result in a significant impact on the
Group's impairment provisions. The historical credit
losses are immaterial.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature and extent of the
Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
does not intend to adopt HKFRS 9 before its mandatory
date.

2

mBEE (&)

(b)

(4&)

BB BHREERFEIR [T
A/ (&)

At AE BB ES T EHE
CRMEENDBENFEREARY

@,
=

HRFREEFERIEERBERE
s AREAEIENERAER
i MAKBYEEAZER
B ALE T EHAKRENSHE
Bt REBEAZE - KILHE
RARASI BB G ERIFE395%
[ERT A BRARTE] WEML

FOREREERREBHREEER
M IF AR IR & & & 7RI F 3957 A%
ERBEEELNEREERERRE
B RERRRBHEKAS BN
EREE BREMEZEBRAZR
REEFENEH TR BEWH
BREENEISR[EFPAQOWRAI
THANEE BEHEAERE &
PAEENRETHRERAL - RIE
AEBEZBERR BEPAEERA
BZENERE-E - EFEHE
HERBEAMBHRSEAFIR
SHAKEZRERBENEAT
2-FrEEBBEEM-

FTAER JRAE A0 T IR ER AR E MG A
N RGN EAEEFHAES
MTANBFEEEMEE  LEE
FEEANRANFEA -

EETHRE LB VAL
T NF-A—BHZEFRBENYT
MEERER NEBTHRMNHER
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R B S R M R

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

This new standard replaces HKAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11 which
covers construction contracts. The new standard is
based on the principle that revenue is recognised when
control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The
standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining when to recognise revenue and how
much revenue to recognise through a 5-step approach:
(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify
separate performance obligations in a contract (3)
Determine the transaction price (4) Allocate transaction
price to performance obligations and (5) recognise
revenue when performance obligation is satisfied.
The core principle is that a company should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to the customer in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It
moves away from a revenue recognition model based
on an ‘earnings processes to an ‘asset-liability” approach
based on transfer of control.

The Group has performed preliminary assessment on the
adoption of HKFRS 15, and the initial result indicated
that the impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statement are not expected to be significant other than
changes on the disclosure.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. At this stage, the Company
does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(Continued)
HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group had non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$10,171,000 (note 35). The new
standard will therefore result in an increase in assets and
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. As
for the financial performance impact in the consolidated
income statement, the operating lease expenses will
decrease, while depreciation and amortisation and the
interest expense will increase.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before
its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group.

2

RBEE (&)

(b)

(4&)

BB BHEEEREI16% [#HE]

ARV BREENE 165 EBR
ABOHAERBEERBERER R
ARKelEamEHENE N
WM ER - R TR T - T AR
E(EBEEREE 28N k[
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EHEEEZHEE
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EAED-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B ERRME

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FESHHEHE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued) (a) #ZEKRHE (#)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition— by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from intercompany transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B S AR MY R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)
(iiij)  Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as a joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

3

FESHBEBE (@#)

(a)

(b)

“HeREB (#)
(iii) HEKBLE

RARE R E T HIEE R
ERZIRERRIRK
EENEERAZAREES
ﬁ?g FREEZZHNE

MmAER - BBER ARRIIER
BRRIRNERMEEZRERE
@ B ARBERTGE
EE- N RN EME
HERAREREZEREH
ZEASRIRENASED
BERHLERFHEERERZ
IRAARR - WA REBRE L
RIAEE M2 WA RTER
CRENOEEESE-

BYMHEER

RHB AR Z RERRAHRRE
IR - AT BREENEEEN
A - M B AR ZEERARAEIR
B B BARR -

R R HEBE RS AN E AR
Z R AR - S NE S B
RZBERAMEBERAMBRE
FRZBERERFZFEE (B
BER)ZREE MSAHERHE
DR ZFEERENH -

BuEBERERALA
T tFFR

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer
(the "CEQ") who makes strategic decisions.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses, including
foreign exchange gains and losses that related
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “administrative and operating expenses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B ERRME

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-
for-sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Group companies (Continued)

(b)

(@)

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on

the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated

as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity

and translated at the closing rate. Currency

translation difference arising are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical

cost less depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost of the assets to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Land

Indefinite useful life
— Leasehold 3 years or over the lease term,
improvements whichever is shorter

— Plant and machinery

5 years

— Computer equipment 2-3 years

— Office equipment
— Motor vehicles

and software

5 years
4 years
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Nofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IS AR MY R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain and loss on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
in the

and are recognised within “Other gains, net”

consolidated income statement.
Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the Group. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property
is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
properties are carried at fair value, representing open

investment

market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

()

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated
at cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is
reviewed annually or when there is any indication that
the club memberships have suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method, which comprises invoiced cost
and other incidental expenses. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Impairment of non-financial assets
other than exploration and evaluation
asset

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B ERRME

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operation and cash flow of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the consolidated income
statement, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss
of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amount
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“loan receivable”, “trade and other receivables”
(note 3(m)) and “bank balances and cash” (note
3(n)) in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently carried at fair value.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as “Other gains, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IS AR MY R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

)

Financial assets (Continued)
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

0]

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017

FESHBEBE (@)

(1

TMEERE (&)

(i)

A5 Rz & E
(#4&)

BB 3R 8 WK TR KR B
5 BERBNREBEEER
HEREZSHEEERER
M RBBMAEFT RRRE R
E(MBRIDAREEZRK
ERBEX) 2REMEZE
AT E - BEREET AHI
B MR BAESE K
BmRMER - MERIFHFEER
HRERFHNE FEML
MREBEZBRESRA
FREE . ERERAE
RATHREZE  ANEER
REBERATEREMETEDN
XTARABEFEER
B

R RERERZ R
B TR A AR R b B
CERHERAESBELF
 (PIanfEH A Z (5 AR
BFERE) Rl ZBTE#R
ZREERAER S KER
REEREME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Assets carried as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash include cash in hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

Share capital and equity instruments
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, from the proceeds.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs.
Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled
by a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments are classified as
equity instruments (“other reserve”). The reserve will
be transferred to the share capital and share premium
accounts upon the exercise of the warrants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B AR MY R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Share capital and equity instruments
(Continued)

On the commitment day for the issuance of equity
instruments by the Company, a derivative for the
commitment arises, which will be measured as financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, is recognised
at fair value. Upon the issuance of these equity
instruments, such financial liability is remeasured at fair
value and the fair value change is recognised in the
profit or loss. The financial liability is then derecognised
and recorded as equity instruments.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Other payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer).

3 FESHHREHME @)

(o)

(p)

(a)

RAKRERT A (&)

RARREHEEITHERTIAZA
MEAFEEZTET A TSR
ARBEFAEZZEREBE I
EBEARBEER RETHEES
TH ZemABERAABEEN
e -mMAnBERARREBEZT
TR HMmBEEGIUSERIS
RAEmTIHE-

BN E SR

ENESERANBEEEBBIER
P8 7 B8 B 78 am SRS T B 2 3K
TR o R E B R RAR — F A
N(IBREZEBEBLREZER
HR) X RInBRRBaE &
25 BIEREAE-

R B BB R R A A B E
5B HLA B30 PR B R R DA 8 8
WA E-

H ftb & 13 K TH

H i N RIBAIR IR A L E(E
B BIRAIE R BB A FOX A#E 55
RAF & - HEBNRAER—FK
MR (B2 FHEBERLE
FEERA) 2 AT B E Al 8 S FRIR
BRRBEE

BuEBERERALA
T tFFR

105



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B S AR MY R

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FESHHEHE (@)
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax (s) EHRELEFEH (&)
(Continued)
Deferred income tax EEFTEH
Inside basis differences AHER L ZE

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(iii)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

(t) Employee benefits

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B AR MY R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the PRC, the Group is required
to contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on the wages for the
year of those employees in the PRC. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are charged to
the consolidated income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments - share options
granted to employees

For grants of share options which are conditional
upon satisfying specified vesting conditions, the
fair value of services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). The
impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

For share options which are vested at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to the consolidated
income statement.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to profit or loss.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that created a
constructive obligation.
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A B S AR MY R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Where there are a number of
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amount receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of sales related
taxes, if any.

Revenue from the sales of building materials, marble
products, solar panels and electronic components are
recognised upon the delivery of goods.
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R B S AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Investment income from the available-for-sale
investments are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
resources can be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognized in revenue on a straight line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

B WmaR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(z) Assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held-for-sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The
investment properties, which are classified as held-for-
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out in note 3(f).

(a)(a) Prior year reclassification

The Group has changed certain classification in the
consolidated financial statements with effect from 1
January 2017. Management considered that the current
classifications are more appropriate. Comparative
information has been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The fair value of investment properties are determined
by an independent valuer in an open market for existing
use basis. Details of the key judgement and assumptions
have been disclosed in note 18.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 December 2017 was HK$424,380,000 (2016:
HK$358,279,000).
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R B S AR M R

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables, loan
receivable and other receivable

The policy of impairment of trade receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of trade receivables and management’s
judgment. Judgment is required in assessing the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
counterparty. If the financial conditions of counterparty
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, provision for impairment
might be required.

The Group makes provision for impairment of loan
and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impaired receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of the receivables and the related
provision for impairment in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists solely of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves. Capital as at 31 December 2017 amounted
to HK$603,238,000 (2016: HK$434,142,000).

The Directors review the cost of capital and the associated risks
on a regular basis, and take appropriate actions to adjust the
Group's capital structure in a timely manner.
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5 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

In order to fund the Group’s trading business, properties
investment and current development, significant amounts of
capital in the form of borrowing or equity, or a combination
of both, are considered to be necessary in the future. The
Directors consider such funding for the future development will

5

EXRBERE (&)

BUAREBSRE MEREUREA
ZRERES AKERRARVEAES
ERIBEIMELECREREES B
ARBERME EERREARTERE
REHER-

be available as and when required.

The gearing ratio was as follows: BEARB B EEHINOT
2017 2016
—2-tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank borrowings (note 27) WITER (K 5227) 429,600 180,884
Shareholder loan (note 34(b)) R E R (K aE34(b)) 2,000 =
Loan from a related company (note 34(b)) KEBEARZER
(H75E34(b)) 62,331 =
Less: Bank balances and cash (note 25) B RTTEBR IR S
(Kiat25) (154,140) (20,609)
Net debt FEE 339,791 160,275
Total equity ey e 603,238 431,353
Gearing ratio BERBELE 56% 37%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's major financial instruments include loan
receivables, available-for-sale investments, trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowings,
shareholder loan and loan from a related company and
a shareholder. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk, other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The Group’'s management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

6
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R B S AR M R

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
the PRC with most of the transactions settled in
HK$, United States dollars (“US$"”) and Renminbi
("RMB") and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations.

The assets are primarily denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB") and the United States dollars
("US$").

As HK$ is pegged to US$, foreign exchange
exposure is considered as minimal.

At 31 December 2017, the foreign exchange
exposure between HK$ and RMB was
insignificant to profit or loss. At 31 December
2016, if the HK$ had weakened/strengthened
by 10% against the RMB with all other variables
held constant, post-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$393,000 lower/higher.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on interest bearing bank balances at prevailing
market interest rates. The management monitors
interest rate exposures and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.
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6

B WmaR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances at the
balance sheet date. The analysis is prepared
assuming the relevant assets outstanding at
the balance sheet date were outstanding for
the whole year. If interest rates had been 1%
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2017 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$724,000 (2016: HK$33,000).

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk as a result of its loan receivables and
bank borrowings which are at fixed rates. The
Directors monitor the related interest rate risk
exposure closely.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to changes
in the fair value of fixed rates loan receivables
and bank borrowings at the balance sheet date.
The analysis is prepared assuming the relevant
assets and liabilities outstanding at the balance
sheet date were outstanding for the whole
year. If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2017 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,958,000 (2016: HK$1,510,000).

MHEEREEREMIA
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(a)

MHERREE &)
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R B S AR M R

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
their investment in listed equity securities,
which was fully impaired during the year ended
31 December 2017. The Group considers its
exposure to equity price risk is not significant.

Credit risk

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk, which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties,
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet.

There is concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
standing.

As at 31 December 2017, in respect of
trade receivables, the Group is exposed to
concentration of credit risk to the extent that
HK$27,314,000 (2016: HK$40,128,000) of
trade receivables is attributable by the largest
customer. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at
each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.
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6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (Continued)

The non-current loan receivable was secured
by the properties from the counterparty.
Management has obtained an independent
valuation for the properties which were valued
under discounted cash flow method and a legal
opinion from an external lawyer with respect
to the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations for entering into these
transactions and its rights over the properties
given the legal title of the properties is yet to
be transferred to the Group. No provisions were
made based on the results of the assessments
performed by management.

For entrusted loans, prior to the lending of loan,
the financial strength, purpose of the borrowing
and repayment ability of the borrowers are
reviewed to ensure the default probability is
acceptably low.

Liquidity risk

The Directors have built a liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group's short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.
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R B S AR M R

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are
within one year as at the respective balance
sheet dates, and the undiscounted cash flows
equal their carrying values, as the impact of
discounting is not significant. Subsequent to
31 December 2017, the Group has successfully
renewed one of the short-term bank
borrowing of RMB92,000,000 (approximately
HK$110,400,000) by extending the maturity
date to 16 January 2019 and is in the process of
renewing another short-term bank borrowing of
RMB70,000,000 (approximately HK$84,000,000)
to March 2019.

In order to fund the development of the Group's
various businesses and other normal operating
disbursements, management will consider if
additional capital in the form of borrowing
or equity, or a combination of both, will be
necessary in the future. The Directors consider
such capital will be available as and when
required.
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6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

(a)

(v)

6 HBEREEREMIA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)
Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BMBEERBEZE &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) v) FEELEE (&)
The table below analysis the Group's financial REBEZ BB ERERR
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HHREA AT B E FIERER
on the remaining period at the end of the FIAAE RS BB R 5 4B
reporting period to the contractual maturity ZOMEBR TR AR
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the i s @B AB KRS
contractual undiscounted cash flows. REME -
Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR BB—F 5t
TR FTER TERT
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tF
+=ZA=+-
Trade and other payables B SRR K
H A & T OB 83,623 - 83,623
Loan from a related company REBEAR ZERK 62,331 - 62,331
Bank borrowings and RITERRER TS
interest payable 442,262 - 442,262
Shareholder loan REREF - 2,000 2,000
588,216 2,000 590,216
As at 31 December 2016 R-B—RE
t+=ZA=+-
Trade and other payables [EE SRR K
H A & T R 28,914 - 28,914
Bank borrowings and RITERRERNFE
interest payable 183,254 - 183,254
212,168 - 212,168
BREEBRZRERDR

T tFFR
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R B S AR M R

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group's assets that are

MHEREEREMTIA

(#&)

(b) 2 REEME

TRAMBEEED TR AEES
FZEBTR-TRAERZERN

T

RBEEEXABIAETS
BE (RHARB) (F—H) -

BE—RBREZBENUIN
REEXAGBENEE (A
B1%) s & (Eﬂ@fﬁﬁ?—%
HBEMBZE8E (F
&) e

MEEXBBEIWIFUTIES
BB BEAEEZH
B (AN BB TS EIE)
(B=) -

TREJNAEEZAABEFEZ

measured at fair value: BE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
E— -t 1 E=R Mt
FTHER FTER FTHER FEx
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF
t=A=+t—-H
Asset BE
Available-for-sale investments ] fit H &R & - - - -
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZZE—-RE
-|- R=t+-8
Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments A fit £ &€& & 200 = 100,000 100,200
There were no transfers of financial assets between HE-_ZT—tFR-_T—RF+=
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy A=+—BLEFE HESHEE

classification for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instrument included
in level 1 comprised a listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investment denominated in CAD as at
31 December 2016.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. As at 31 December 2016, instrument included in
level 3 comprised an unlisted equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investment denominated in US$.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in Level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2017 and

MHEREEREMTIA

(#4&)
(b)

R REEMS (&)

TREVWNEHE_Z—tFRER_ZF
—RNE+-_A=+—BILEFEEZSE

2016. =RIAEH-
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 100,000 =
Disposal k=S (100,000) =
Addition RE = 100,000
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 - 100,000
Categories of financial instruments (0 €&WMIAEHR
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and receivables B3 e E
Loan receivables JE U E R 180,000 =
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 60,463 41,106
Deposits and other receivables e RHEMEWFIE 125,030 7,931
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBERS 154,140 20,609
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE - 100,200
519,633 169,846
Financial liabilities =]
Amortised cost fig: X =] DN
Trade and other payables ERE ST R
H fth & - 5R08 83,623 28,914
Shareholder loan EEE R 2,000 =
Loan from to a related company RKEBERRZERK 62,331 =
Bank borrowings RITEK 429,600 180,884
577,554 209,798

Except for available-for-sale investments which are
carried at fair value, all financial assets and liabilities are

carried at amortised cost.
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B Ww AR M A

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In order to broaden the sources of income and improve
operating profits, the Group commenced the Building material
trading business as one of the principal business activities of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017. The
Board considered that the new business can broaden the
revenue base and improve the financial position of the Group
and that will be in the interest of the Group.

Furthermore, following the disposal of Aces Diamond Holding
Limited (“Aces Diamond”), the holding company of PT. Bara
Hugo Energy (“BHE”) and PT. Grasada Multinational ("GM"),
the Board decided to discontinue the operation of natural
resources and energy related business and information
technology and related business in December 2017. Hence,
the results of these segments were presented as discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

On 23 January 2018, the CEO changed from Mr. Zhang
Yuanging to Mr. Li Sen.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the CEO, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments:

(i) Properties investment

(i) Investment holding

(iii) Trading of building materials

(iv) Natural resources and energy related business
(discontinued operation) (note 29)

(v) Information technology and related business
(discontinued operation) (note 29)

TEHER

RBARBAR S IE & E R T RNEH
RBE-FT—tHF+-_A=1T—HLFE
ERBUEEENHEZIED  FRAE
BHNIEXBEH - BEGRAR/TE
T AL 4 KR SR B 2 Wi o A e e B 2 B R
W WA & RSB Z & o

It Sh - 3 H & PT. Bara Hugo Energy
(IBHE J) ®PT. Grasada Multinational
(fGM 1) K #E #% A B]Aces Diamond
Holding Limited ([ Aces Diamond ] )& -
EEZERTN - +HE+-ARIRE
RABIR KRR ER A REMBE K
HEEB At 2S5 B2 EEREE
—+tFERZE-ARFTZA=+—H
IEFE2IABKIEEEER-

R-ZE-NEF-—AZ+=HB 1THEHS

RITBEERBFEREL -
NEBE2RER FITREH 27—
REBZFATAZ2HOE:

0] MERE

(i HEER

(i) BEMBPES

(iv) RABRREFREBAERS (DRIE
REETE) (Bit29)

(v) EBEAMREEBEL (ERLERLE
%) (KHi29)
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R B S AR M R

7 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CEO monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following basis:

(a)

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of club
memberships and other unallocated corporate assets.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the
exception of bank borrowings and other unallocated
corporate liabilities.

Segment results are allocated to reportable segments
with reference to sales generated and expenses incurred
by those segments, together with other gains, net,
impairment loss on exploration and evaluation asset,
loss/gain on fair value change of investment properties,
selling and distribution expenses and administrative and
operating expenses.

The amounts provided to the CEO with respect to the
information mentioned above are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
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7  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7 HER (#)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, certain assets, AEEA2HDH 2 AEEWRA 4
liabilities and capital expenditures for the Group's reportable ETEAE BEBERERARAIZIZAONNAT:
segments is as follows:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BREEEY BRIEEEXY
Natural
resources Information
Trading of and energy technology
Properties  Investment building related and related
investment holding  materials Subtotal business business Subtotal Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRERR
BEMR BR  EARHR

nERE  REER % M RBEE ARER Pt 58
TER TER TER TAR TER TER TER TER

For the year ended BE-Z3-tF

31 December 2017 TZAZ+-ALEE
Segment revenue AHHA 3,967 977 49,587 54,531 4,697 - 4,697 59,228
Gross profit £ 3,666 977 2,894 1,537 137 - 137 1,674
Other gains, net EthFa - 8,652 - 8,652 - - - 8,652
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARER - - - - (43,182) - (43,182) (43,182)
Fair value change on investment RENEAABES

properties (20,866) - - (20,866) - - - (20,866)
Impairment loss on exploration and BV R EEEZ

evaluation asset REBR - - - - - - - -
Selling and distribution expenses HERAWHX - - - - - - = =
Administrative and operating expenses {TH K& &5 % (4,732) - (925) (5,657) - - - (5,657)
Segment results ABEE (21,932) 9,629 1,969 (10,334)  (43,045) - (43,045)  (53,379)
Unallocated: KAR
Other gains, net Ef gl 158
Administrative and operating expenses 7 R & 4 B % (18,763)
Operating loss LeEB (71,984)
Finance income BERA 4
Finance cost BERA (21,521)
Loss before taxation BEAER (93,501)
Income tax FriGH (399)
Loss for the year FEBR (93,900)
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7 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Continuing operations

i)

BER

(#&)

Discontinued operations

BEREXE BALEBEER
Natural
resources Information
Trading of and energy  technology
Properties Investment building related and related
investment holding  materials Subtotal business business Subtotal Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRERR
NERE  REEBR g% Mt BEEE BBEE At &a
TER THR THT THER THET TER THET TER
As at 31 December 2017 RoB-t%
t=A=+-A
Segment assets PHEE 474,530 336,002 214,788 1,025,320 852 - 852 1,026,172
Unallocated assets PREE 117,923
Assets classified as held for sale PRBBIFLEZEE 41,207
Total assets EELS 1,185,302
Segment liabilities PHER (18,981) (36000  (57,714)  (80,295) (4,702) - (4702)  (84,997)
Unallocated liabilities *PEEE (497,067)
Total liabilities BELE (582,064)
For the year ended BE-Z-t&
31 December 2017 TZAZ+-ALEE
Capital expenditures EARX
(including additions of (RERERENE
investment properties and NED% BERk&E)
property, plant and equipment) 31,882 - - 31,882 - - - 31,882
Unallocated capital expenditures FRAREARZ 754
32,636

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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mE B ERRME

7

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7 DEER (@)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FEEEEK BRIEBERH
Natura
resources  Information
Trading of and energy  technology
Properties  Investment building related  and related
investment holding materials Subtotal business business Subtotal Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARERR  EABEKR
NERE  REER BEMHES PGt RREEEE  REEB gt wa
T TiEn T T FEL T TR T
For the year ended BEZZ2-1E
31 December 2016 +ZR=t+-BLEE
Segment revenue FHBA 1,022 7,435 - 8,457 161,970 14,168 176,138 184,595
Gross profit E7 976 7435 - 8,411 4,205 209 4,414 12,825
Other gains, net e 6 134 (90) - 44 7,750 802 8,552 8,596
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAFER - - - - - - - -
Fair value change on investment RENERABERE
properties 2,182 - - 2,182 - - - 2,182
Impairment loss on exploration and ~ EJR RAFEEEZ
evaluation asset REBE = = = = (78,747) - (78,747)  (78,747)
Selling and distribution expenses HERAERX = = = = (80) = (80) (80)
Administrative and operating expenses 1TH & & &5 3 (1,617) = = (1,617) (2,062) = (2,062) (3,679)
Segment results AREE 1,675 7,345 - 9,020 (68,934) 1,011 (67,923) (58,903)
Unallocated: KRR
Other gains, net EthFa (26)
Administrative and operating expenses {TH & & & 5 3 (18,067)
Operating loss MEER (76,996)
Finance income BEMA 19
Finance cost HERK (10,187)
Loss before taxation BRAER (87,164)
Income tax Frigst -
Loss for the year FEBE (87,164)

BHEBERERALA
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R B S AR M R

7  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7 HWESR &)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
SELEEH BRIEEERHK
Natural
resources  Information
Trading of and energy  technology
Properties  Investment building related  and related
investment holding materials Subtotal business business Subtotal Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
RARERR  EMBER
NERE  REER REMHES Pt EREEEE  BEEE it &a
FiEm THER FiE THR TET THR FiBT TR
As at 31 December 2016 RIB-RE
tZR=t-H
Segment assets ABEE 384,656 107,635 = 492,291 143,275 - 143,275 635,566
Unallocated assets PEEE 5,585
Assets classified as held for sale PERBIFLEEE -
Total assets EEg® 641,151
Segment liabilities AHERE (18,224) - - (18,224) (8,064) - (8,064) (26,288)
Unallocated liabilities AAREE (183,510)
Total liabilities BEEA (209,798)
For the year ended BEZZ-1F
31 December 2016 TZAS+-BLEEE
Capital expenditures EXRY
(including additions of (AERERENE
investment properties and PYE R N E )
property, plant and equipment) 274,348 - - 274,348 - - - 274,348
Unallocated capital expenditures AARERRZ 5
274,348
The Group's non-current assets other than available-for-sale REBR-_ZE—+FEN_ZT—XRF+A
investments and loan receivable as at 31 December 2017 and =S+ —HZERBEE (BRAIHRHERE
2016 are further analysed as follows: RIEWEFRIN) 2 E—F DT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) A (GEMp b E) 2,439 330
The PRC T 383,215 383,324
Indonesia ENfe - 22
385,654 383,676
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n‘/T\

B Ww AR M A

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7 SHER(#)

Revenue individually generated from the following customers AT B 5l 3 P 8145 BV U A G AR SR B A IR
contributed more than 10% of the total revenue of the Group: A10% LA E -

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Customer A EFPA 22,634 =
Customer B =FB 13,580 =
Customer C BPC 10,612 L
Customer D 2FD 3,826 1,022
Customer E EPE - 7,435

Revenue from external customers/sources by geographical

BRBINBEF /IR PREH IR R E D

locations, based on the location of the external customers/ RENNBFEL,RRZWA
sources:

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RHEF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (A 2h) 977 7,435
The PRC H 53,554 1,022
Indonesia e - -
54,531 8,457
REBEBRERERAF

T tFFR
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R B S AR M R

8 REVENUE 8

Revenue represents amount receivable for goods sold and

WA

WATHERBERBRRANISEFLER
fn S AR AR T 2 MR IE A R 3B A

services provided to external customers in the normal course of

business and income from investments.

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: REBZWADHTAT
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Continuing operations: HEKSEEK:
Sale of building materials SHE EEME 49,587 =
Investment income & WA 977 7,435
Rental income e WA 3,967 1,022
54,531 8,457
9  OTHER GAINS, NET H it 7F W z8
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Continuing operations: BREKSEEK:
Gain on disposal of an HENHEERE 2 s
available-for-sale investment (note 22) (Hiat22) 8,000 =
Impairment loss on an AHEERE ZREEHE
available-for-sale investment (note 22) (KraE22) (200) (90)
Interest income from entrusted loan REZFTERZFERA 764 -
Gain on disposals of property, HEWME BE R
plant and equipment JE 2 W - 26
Others, net Hih - 58 246 82
8,810 18
10 FINANCE INCOME 10 BEWRA
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Bank interest income RITH BUA 4 19

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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n‘/T\

1

12

B Ww AR M A

FINANCE COST 11 BEKK
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Interest on bank borrowings wholly /,\BAfilfﬂi%Zfé B2
repayable within one year RITERHF S 21,521 10,187

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

The Group's loss before taxation is arrived at after charging the

12

B %t Al &5 18

AREBEZBRBABEDIERTIIEE:

following:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BEQEER BRIEEEER Et
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF —ZE—tfF ZE—RF —E—tF ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold EHFERE 46,693 = 4,560 171,303 51,253 171,303
Depreciation of property, plant  #1%  B&E kX ERE
and equipment 12 6 - 46 12 52
Auditor's remuneration ZEE &
~ Audit services —ZBR% 2,400 1,709 - - 2,400 1,709
— Non-audit services *#V%ZHW& 195 130 - - 195 130
Operating lease payments KT E R 1,474 2,234 - 146 1,474 2,380
Legal and professional fees f{i&ﬁigﬁ 3,864 3,180 - 72 3,864 3,252
Staff costs, including directors’ EEMY (BEEEME)
emoluments
- Salaries, allowances and -5& EUREMETR
other benefits 9,852 8,880 - 358 9,852 9,238
— Retirement benefit scheme ~ —RIRIBEFEH B4 5
contributions 259 292 - - 259 292
— Social insurance —tgRE 150 54 — = 150 54
Exchange loss, net fE N B 18F 5 1,223 529 - - 1,223 529
Write down of inventories WmTE - - - 421 - 421
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1%  B5 K 5% & i 8
written off - - - 680 - 680
Trade receivable written off BN B 5 BR SR8 - - - 38 - 38
Other receivable written off H fth B W R IB M 8H - 420 — 17 = 437

BHEBERERALA
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R B S AR M R

13

INCOME TAX 13 FEB
No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as the Group AR AEEEE _T—+tF+_A=+—
did not have any assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year ALtEETERREBEEERT EF -
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil). MW EREEFERELBE (Z2—X
Fom|)o
Enterprise Income Tax of HK$399,000 has been provided for a ARABREMHFPE—HEHNBRARNEEZE_-Z
subsidiary in the PRC for its assessable profits during the year —+tFEF+ A= TR LEFEZERT G
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil). MFHR B ESTRE399,0008 7T (= F
—RNE ) e
Corporate Income Tax has not been provided for the HRENEMBAREE=ZT— F+=A
subsidiaries in Indonesia as they did not generate any ST+ —BLEFETEEAERTAN W
assessable profits during the year ended 31 December 2016. WERENEREMISTHIEL BE -
The tax on the Group's loss before taxation differs from the REBBRBATEE ZRIE BRIREBES
theoretical amount that would arise using domestic income tax HEBERAMBEANMERBEETEMSEH
rate applicable to losses/profits of the consolidated entities as B SR NEReE MHET
follows:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BREEER BRLEGEEY @t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E2-tf ZE-RE —E-t& —E-RF —E2-tf ZE-RE
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
TR FHL T T TR FHL
Loss before taation REAIEE (50,456) (19,241) (43,045) (67,923) (93,501) (87,164)
Tax calculated at the domestic income K& BB AFIEHRH R E
tax rate in the respective countries BB (11,868) (3,899) (7,102) (17,495) (18,970) (21,394)
Tax effect of: WTERZBBZE:
- income not subject to tax ~BERHRBA (1,320) (1,230) - (183) (1,320) (1,413)
~ expenses not deductible ~FANHRX 5,251 2,848 7,125 17,678 12,376 20,526
- tax losses not recognised - kERHEER 8,336 2,281 (23) = 8,313 2,281
Income tax R 399 - - - 399 -

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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mE B ERRME

13

14

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets from
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$19,899,000 (2016:
HK$11,601,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time. As at 31 December 2016, the
unrecognised deferred tax assets from estimated tax losses
arising from the subsidiaries in the PRC are approximately
HK$6,076,000 (2016: HK$475,000), which would expire in five
years from the respective year of loss. Also the unrecognised
deferred tax assets from estimated tax losses relating to
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are approximately HK$13,823,000
(2016: HK$11,111,000) that have no expiry date. As at 31
December 2016, the unrecognised deferred tax assets from
estimated tax losses related to Indonesia operations that would
expire in five years are approximately HK$2,000, HK$5,000,
HK$5,000 and HK$3,000, which would expire in 2018, 2019,
2020 and 2021 respectively.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: nil).

13

14

s &)

AEBERGEANRBEBEERERELER
T8 & FE4919,899,000/8 7T (=T — N4
11,601,000 L) IR NKBEEEE
BRAAIRABER ST - EBEAEEHEEJ?
BEEE —BERESBEENNEA

EAIIEH\AEJEEA#JEE?EEEEE@L%RIEQ\F°
RZE—AF+ZA=+—8 BHEH
WMEAREAZHFATIEBEEEZ AER
RIEFTHE E 4 56,076,0008 L (=%
— N 475,000 ) - BB REEEE
FERBFTRAFERER -RBEEBENEB
“ﬂZﬁéﬂ’*)%’IEEﬂéz;kﬁEwFL%RIE
B EHH13,823,0008 T (ZF — /N4
11,111,000 L) ' WEERBH R ==
—RNE+_A=+—R HAHEE%KEH
ZIAETHIEBE ARREEREEER
R F A& - H % #92,0007% 7T - 5,000
7 7T ~ 5,000 7T 3,000 7T © L H & 58

BABIR-F— N\ B-NFE %
TEFERCE—FER-

g2
WTERBEE_ZT—+F+_A=+—RH1

EE&HEX%&JEEH&E (ZF—RF:
&) e

BHEBERERALA
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15 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following

15 BREE

(a)

BRERNBEIRBE_T—tF
R-_ZB—RE+-A=+—RItF
B2 ARRBHEA ARBERENID
BT BBRMNEF OGS -

ARREENREGRERERERT
BIATERAE

data:
2017 2016
—E-+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the A BEBREABEZ
Company for the purpose of calculating AR & HE A EILEE
basic loss per share (HK$'000) (F&7m)
Continuing operations HESEER (50,855) (19,241)
Discontinued operations B IEEEETR (43,045) (15,608)
(93,900) (34,849)
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ Bt EEBREAEE 2
shares for the purpose of calculating LA MEFHE (TR)
basic loss per share ("000) 7,767,162 7,152,413
(b) The Group had share options outstanding as at 31 (b) REER_ZT—+tF+A=+—

December 2017. The share options did not have a
dilutive effect on loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: same).

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 V¥ BERRZRE

Computer
Plant  equipment
Leasehold and and Office Motor
Land  improvements machinery software  equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RENE ERRER
1t % BEREE B BAERE "E @3
ThEn TR TR TR FEL FEL THATL
At 1 January 2016 W=Z-xE-A-H
Cost KA 652 1,107 74 49 255 89 2,226
Accumulated depreciation 2HE = (1,107) (59) (38) (195) (67) (1,466)
Net book amount REFE 652 = 15 1 60 2 760
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ-F -5
+-AZ+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 652 - 15 1 60 2 760
Exchange differences ERERE 2 - 1 1 (10) 1 15
Additions NE - - - 23 - - 23
Written off (note (ii)) W (M) (674) = 6) = = = (680)
Disposals e = = S S (16) (5) 21
Depreciation charge (note (j)  17& (M) = = (10) (6) (18) (18) (52)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - - - 29 16 = 45
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZH=+-H
Cost KA - 1,107 - 71 95 - 1,273
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE - (1,107) S 42) (79) S (1,228)
Net book amount REEE - - - 29 16 - 45
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ-Z-+%
TZAZ+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FORERE - - - 29 16 = 45
Exchange differences EREH - - - (1) S = (1)
Additions RE - 495 - 19 240 - 754
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR (Hit29)

(note 29) - - - (5) (17) S (22)
Depreciation charge (note (i) & () - - . S (12) 5 (12)
Closing net book amount EXREFE - 495 - 4 27 - 764
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t&+ZA=+-A
Cost A - 495 - 84 239 - 818
Accumulated depreciation ZithE = = . (42) (12) 5 (54)
Net book amount REEE - 495 - 4 27 = 764

AEEMEREARLT |37
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16

17

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% BERSKE @

(Continued)

Note: BT

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the depreciation (i) BE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIHF
charge for continuing operations amounted to HK$12,000 B REKEEBZITER12,0008 7T
(2016: HK$6,000) was charged to the administrative and (ZZ—"F:6,0008L) ENLZEE
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement. WEHRPTRREER T AR -

(ii) The Group's interests in land in Indonesia were freehold and it (ii) AEBEREEZ TR BK A R -
was fully written-off during the year ended 31 December 2016 HRBEXEXCDZERE  WEREBE
as a result of the full impairment of the mining properties. ZE-RFF+ZA=+—HLEFEEH

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEVE BERREMBRE

and equipment

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Net book amount FREFE - 21
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE WE R
plant and equipment B2 W - 26
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME WEER
plant and equipment #2 PisRIA - 47
LOAN RECEIVABLE 17 EBWRERK

On 29 December 2017, Qianhai Guoxing Finance Lease
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (literal translation of the
Chinese name) (“Qianhai Guoxing”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party (“Vendor”), pursuant
to which Qianhai Guoxing has agreed to acquire certain
commercial properties from the Vendor for a consideration
of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$180,000,000) and Qianhai Guoxing paid the full
consideration to the Vendor on the same date. Pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the sale and purchase agreement, the
Vendor is required to complete all the procedures necessary to
transfer the title of these properties to Qianhai Guoxing on or
before 30 December 2018.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

RZE—+tF+-_A=-+NALB £2QF
ZEEZENBRARMSRERERE
(FIDERLF ([AIEHE])EE =
F BRI LEE WS Bt AlE
HECREAS T BEETHRADE:
KRB A AR ®150,000,0007T (B E R
180,000,000/ 70) * BB EE R R B [
BEHINE2ERE - BREBEEHZE 2GR
g EHER-_E—NE+-_A=+
Btz AISEi BBz S ME A TR
HEETENEFE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

e IR R R

17

LOAN RECEIVABLE (continued)

On the same date, Qianhai Guoxing entered into another
agreement with the Vendor, pursuant to which Qianhai
Guoxing has agreed to lease the abovementioned properties
back to the Vendor for a period of 3 years starting from 29
December 2017. Upon the commencement of the lease, the
Vendor paid RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,600,000) to Qianhai Guoxing as a form of non-
refundable pre-lease interest. Lease payments, calculated as
interest charged at a fixed rate of 9% per annum against a
principal of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$180,000,000), are repayable quarterly. At the end of the
lease period, upon full settlement of all outstanding principal
and interest from the Vendor to Qianhai Guoxing, the Vendor
can repurchase the subject properties from Qianhai Guoxing for
RMB1 (equivalent to HK$1).

Considering the economics of the above transaction and
the nature and value of the repurchase option, it is almost
certain that the repurchase option will be exercised. Therefore,
sale and lease back accounting does not apply to the above
arrangement, resulting in the principal of RMB150,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$180,000,000) being
accounted for as a loan receivable with the properties acting as
a security against this receivable.

To assess the recoverability of the loan receivable, management
has obtained an independent valuation for the subject
properties which were valued under discounted cash flow
method and a legal opinion from an external lawyer with
respect to the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations for entering into these transactions and its rights
over the subject properties given the legal title of the properties
is yet to be transferred to the Group. Based on the results of
the assessments performed by management, no provisions
related to these transactions were made for the year ended 31
December 2017.

17

EWEFR &)

BE FEEEEE IS — Dk
Bt fISBRECRERME LA YWETF
BEHF BZE—tF+ A=+ hLHR
AH=-F -REHEHKE BAHE A
B B AR #3,000,0007T (HEE R
#93,600,000/& L) tE B T A REFEMEF
B oSN AF BN YE - I A
R4 % AR #150,000,0007T (HEERL
180,000,000/ Jr ) 1 & & F F L9%5t
g ARFEEE -NHEEHR FEHH
AEREEBEEMBREEASRAE
% BHAUUARE T (BERIET)E
AT EEEED B IZ % -

ERE FMR S 2 ERG  BREIRIEE
ZIEE REE - E AN A RE T B R R
EaFE A ERAESHRETEAR
Lt BUEA SR AR 150,000,000
7T (F8E 1 49180,000,0005% 7T ) ARSI A&
FE U B 5K - T 52 55 0 % RUE B bt B UK RRIB
2R

REHEEKERN AT EEED
BEMEESBELGHE (REBRASR
BEAE) R ARERTIZERSM
BT HEBERMEREENRBEME 2 E
MERNZEMEZLEMERRAER
TAGH) ERINBREMIEZERR - RIE
EREEETZAE BE_E—tF T
A=t ALFEBRERZERXSFELE
B -
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REWMZE
2017 2016
—E—+fF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&ET
At fair value RAREE
At 1 January n—HA—H 358,279 96,882
Transfer from prepayment for R—IBREME
an investment property (Note) BIENRIBE R (M) 25,022 =
Acquisitions g =1 - 99,417
Acquired through subsidiaries FERME QR
(note 30(a), (b) and (c)) (Ht7#30(a) ~ (b) % (c) 28,672 174,908
Additions NE 3,210 -
Currency translation differences BEEH®RE=ES 30,063 (15,110)
Change in fair value NABERAE (20,866) 2,182
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale ®#BEENBEAFIELEY
(note 19) BE (Hi19) (41,207) -
At 31 December BR+=—HA=+—8 383,173 358,279

Note:

On 30 December 2016, the Company completed the acquisition of
Yingkou Hailanggu Travel Co.,Limited (literal translation of the Chinese

name) (“Hailanggu”) which owned two parcels of land located at Bai

Sha Wan, Bayuquan district of Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC.

Amongst the two parcels of land, the land use right permit for a parcel

of land had not been obtained as of 31 December 2016. Accordingly,

the payment made was accounted for as a prepayment for an

investment property. As at 31 December 2017, the land use right permit

was obtained and was transferred from prepayment to investment

properties.
(a) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties

Rental income of approximately HK$3,967,000 (2016:
HK$1,022,000) and direct expenses of approximately
HK$301,000 (2016: HK$46,000) were recognised in profit
or loss for investment properties during the year ended 31

December 2017.

(b) Non-current assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2017, the investment properties of
HK$424,380,000 (2016: HK$217,620,000) were pledged for

bank borrowings (note 27).
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RIZ-—RE+ZA=1+8 KRATKEEE
AERAIRBEERAR ([ERA])  EEEM
BAURFEREEELEATHBERADE
PR MR E P — iR 2 L b (5 R MR
AR -ZFE—R"E+A=1+—BHEKXRE-
Bt EXf 2 REEINE-EREYEZTR
NRE-R_F—LF+-_A=+—H ERE
THEREARELSER - BREMEZHE
NRBEEEREYE-

(a) BRRENMENBEEBRAZEHE

BE-_Z—+tH&+-_A=+—8B1
FE REEAVENREBEZBERAS K
A#)3,967,0008 L (=T — XN F:
1,022,000/ 7T ) R E # F X £9301,000
BT (=T —/N4F:46,000087T) °

(b) FRBEESEBERER

R-E—+EFE+-A=+—H BE
¥ %424,380,0008 L (=T — < F:
217,620,000 7T ) © & 38 A FEER SR 17
B (K:#27) °
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REWE (@)

Note:

(c)

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the investment properties was

Hist: (48)
(© ARBEER
B (HEMAFT I EEEERARE

performed by an independent valuer, RHL Appraisal Limited to MEEMEETELMGE UEETRE
determine the fair values of the investment properties as at 31 MERTE—LF+-A=+—RH2ZAQ
December 2017. REE-
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
using significant using significant
other observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (level 3)
BERHMEEry EREEFTHE
ABRREARETE WABESNE
AREE(E=HK) 2REBE(E=HK)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurements LEMARBENE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZF-—tH+=-A=+—H
— Various retail shops located at Liaohai Garden, —fiz# $;;;éM El ﬁ
Bayuquan district, Yingkou city, A E R EGTE % fHl
Liaoning province, the PRC TEE 94,440 =
- Wuzi Composite Building, R EEEREEON
South of Huanghe Road, Bayuquan district, HAaERENRERE
Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC ME BiRe Kig = 139,200
— Retail portion on the fourth floor and the — IR EEEL RETH IR
fifth floor of Block A, Bao Hua Wang Yuan, RERLIEAREAE N
Zhongshan district, Dalian city, FSENZEHMHD
Liaoning province, the PRC 89,040 -
— Industrial complex located at Qinghua Avenue, —fI AR B EZERZ O rn
Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC SHEAENIERA - 29,580
- Two parcels of land of approximately 59,245 —f{IRA R EHEEL &0 m
square meters in Bai Sha Wan, Bayuguan HAERADE
district, Yingkou city, Liaoning province, #959,245%F 75 3K 2 WM 1E i 2
the PRC 72,120 -
255,600 168,780
Recurring fair value measurements KEMDARBENE
At 31 December 2016 R-FB-AE+=A=+—-H
— Various retail shops located at Liaohai Garden, —fIAFEEZEELLOH
Bayuquan district, Yingkou city, hEEEESTEEMNZME
Liaoning province, the PRC TEE 91,894 =
— Wuzi Composite Building, —fRFEEELEEOM
South of Huanghe Road, Bayuquan district, HAERENEEREN
Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC ME Rire RE - 125,726
— Retail portion on the fourth floor and the — (AP EEEERENPILE
fifth floor of Block A, Bao Hua Wang Yuan, REMIEAREARE N
Zhongshan district, Dalian city, FSEMNZTEIMH
Liaoning province, the PRC 96,471 -
— Parcel of land of approximately 36,835 square —{IRAFEFEELEOH
meters in Bai Sha Wan, Bayuquan district, HAERADE
Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC #)36,835F oK Z b 44,188 =
232,553 125,726

BHEBERERALA
T tFFR

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B S AR M R

18 REWE (&)

maE: (&)

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

(c) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (c) DAREERSR (FE)

AEBZBRINERZER 2 E X
MR IR EEE RERE AR BEERR
RZEAREL-

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of the fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

Fair value
measurements
using significant
unobservable
inputs

(level 3)
EREE
IRk
BABEL 2
NAEE
(B=M)
HK$'000
FHET

125,726

As at 1 January and 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE-—A—AR+=ZA=+—H

(d)

Additions

Currency translation differences
Change in fair value

Acquired through a subsidiary

Valuation process of the Group

NE
R ZHE
NABEDE

BEBHEARWE

RHL Appraisal Limited holds a recognised relevant professional

qualification and has recent experience in the locations and

segments of the investment properties valued.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations

performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting

purposes. The finance department reports directly to the CEO.

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between

the CEO, the finance department and the independent valuer

on an annual basis.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

2,139
11,648
595
28,672

168,780

(d) rREZGEERF

KMITHERRARARBERHERE
BERER BOHNKREMEZ R
DEITHABGBELR-

AN (B B 75 0 2R B B L ik (B A L B TS B
HEMATETNGE BB EE AT
BABHRE - TTHREH M RIB L
HEMTFAREERZFRER-
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note:

(d)

(e)

(Continued)
Valuation process of the Group (Continued)

At each financial year ends the finance department:

. verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;
. assess property valuations movements when compared

to the prior year valuation report; and

. holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation method

Fair value measurements using significant observable inputs
(level 2)

Direct comparison method is based on comparing the property
to be valued directly with other comparable properties, which
have recently transacted. However, given the heterogeneous
nature of real estate properties, appropriate adjustments are
usually required to allow for any qualitative differences that
may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under
consideration.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(level 3)

Income capitalisation method is based on the capitalisation of
the net income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from analysis
of sale transactions and valuer’s interpretation of prevailing
investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing market
rents adopted in the valuation have reference to recent lettings,
within the subject properties and other comparable properties.

Depreciation replacement cost method is based on an estimate
of the market value for existing use of the land, plus the current
cost of replacement of the improvements less allowance for
physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation.

18 REWE (@)

Bz ()

(d)

(e)

rEB2EERF (F)

REVRFEEZEER BB

REBUGERSZAAETIE
A

. EMEGERR E-FEM
ERENBEZES: K

. BB A ERMR -

& BT

EREETBERGABBER
(B4

REE

BEELBOEDBATHEZDXERSR
MHIR R Z Bl & L8 1T I
WA EXNEHEDELE TR
WA AL B E R ET
ERNERNERTENERIELES
R -

EREZTAERGABBNEDAE
B(E=H)

WaHERAMOEBEBI BRI THER S
RAEMHRITREENT LM EM
BSHOABEEAR LR SFRARE
REN T AERE - HEMRAHRTT
mHEEEC2ZRENENEMBAAL
B EAHOBEBEARR

FEREERAZSRERE LER
RAEHTSEENEERBHEBOHERT
RAREERBREMTEEAEANE
e R B MR -

BHEBERERALA
T tFFR
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note:

(e)

(f)

(Continued)
Valuation method (Continued)

Signification unobservable input used to determine fair value

The adopted reversionary yield is estimated by valuer based
on the risk profile of the investment properties being valued.
The higher the yield, the lower the fair value. At 31 December
2017, the adopted reversionary yield of 5.5% was used in the
income capitalisation method valuation.

At 31 December 2017, adopted site unit rate of RMB397
(equivalent to HK$476) per square meter and adopted unit cost
of RMB4,509 (equivalent to HK$5,411) per square meter were
used by valuer in the depreciation replacement cost method
valuation. The higher the unit rate and cost, the higher the fair
value.

Minimum lease receipts

Certain of the investment properties located in Yingkou city,
Liaoning province, the PRC, are leased to tenants under long-
term operating leases ranging from 3 to 5 years. Management
intends to lease the remaining investment properties to earn
rental income.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases

18 REWE (&)

wtar: (&)

(e)

()

Es (&)

ANEEAABENEZTABERA
iz

TRz B HE R TR EAEMB RS
HEREYENRBAES ETHE 8
BREEES AABEMKE -R=F
—+t&+ZA=+—8 KFEXLZE
HERA55%AEE RS X -
R-Z—tF+-_A=+—8  HEHM
RITERBEERAEGHERRATES
KARE3977T (FHE 47618 7T) 1115
B AL LR R G T KA RKE4,5097T
(FEER5,4118TT) BRI AN - B 4L
hERKAES  AREBESS -

EHREES

NARFREEERLEOMNE TIRENME
DRERPKEEEHETER HE
PNF==nF EEEHROBERREK
BMEARBE S WA -

RZB—tF+ZA=+—H F&H
R B EHE TR RIR K

as follows: HEREABHIWT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Not later than one year —F R 8,841 4,088
Later than one year but not later than five years —&F&ERFRA 23,169 14,996
32,010 19,084

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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nm
19 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 19 F7HEABFHEZEE
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has REBEEZE_ZE—+tHF+_A=+—HILF
entered into sales and purchase agreements to sell certain of its E-AEEFVEERRLEAREER
investment properties with a carrying value of HK$41,207,000 41,207,000 28 TREY X - 81517
comprising of 17 retail shops located at Liaohai Garden, MR REEZEELOMEgARBRESIE
Bayuquan district, Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC. As BEMEEE - RZE—+tF+ZA=+—
at 31 December 2017, the sales of these properties were not A ZEWMEIRENRTN B %%
yet completed and as a result, they are presented as Assets MERGEEEABRREINN RO BERRHE
classified as held for sale on the consolidated balance sheet. HEZEE-
20 INVENTORIES 20 7§
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Building materials EEM K 129 =
For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no written BHE_Z—tF+_-_A=+—RHILtFE"
down of inventories (2016: nil) for continuing operations in the AEBIWENGEREZRF ﬁ B
cost of sales in the consolidated income statement. BZHEERAAMBTE (ZF—RF:
/®) .
21 SUBSIDIARIES 21 KMIBLFE

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Group as at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

RZE—+F+_A=+—0B FAEEH
BZEXEMBRRZHBNT

Place of incorporation

Particulars of issued/

Percentage of equity

Principal activities

Name and kind of legal entit reglstered share capital attributable to the Company and place of operation
MBI FAEEREABRER B /2RRAEN AAREAERADL TEXBREEHE
Direct Indirect
EE 53
Rich Concept Technology Limited BVI, limited liability company 10,000 Ordinary shares of 1 US$ each 100 = Investment holding in Hong Kong
EBRABE BRAT FREE1%7T.210,0008 % # R REBREER
Qianhai Shitong Supply Chain PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 - 100 Trading of building materials in the PRC
(Shenzhen) Company Limited
(“Qianhai Sitong")* N
gt dftEE (R) HE EREEAT AR #20,000,0007 RAEEERENHAER
BRAR ([FEHR])
Qianhai Guoxing Finance Lease PRC, limited liability company UsD30,000,000 - 100 Finance leasing in the PRC

(Shenzhen) Company Limited

( Qianhai Guoxmg )*
Iiﬁinﬂﬁﬁ% )

ﬁ A ([ABEIE])

HE ERERAR

(paid up: USD15,000,000)

30,000,000% 7
(2 :15,000,000% )

REEREEE

BHEBERERALA
T tFFR
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21

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation

Particulars of issued/

Percentage of equity

Vi NGIRE J)

Principal activities

Name and kind of legal entitl registered share capital attributable to the Company and place of operation
B SRR SR EARRER BRT/AMREER RAREEREAD L TEEBREERY
Direct Indirect
EE 4
Enviro Energy Management Hong Kong, limited liability company 1 Ordinary share - 100 Provision of management service in
Services Limited ‘ Hong Kong
RRERRBERAT EE ARAA 1RERK REBRUEERE
Enviro Energy Information Hong Kong, limited liability company 1 Ordinary share - 100 Trading of information technology
Technology Limited ‘ related product in the PRC
R AANRERAR EE ARAA 1RERK RAEEEAARNAEER
Enviro Energy Minerals Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company 1 Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding and trading of base
oil in the PRC
RREERAA EE ARAA 1RERK RAERAEREEEERH
Huan Neng International Trading PRC, limited liability company RMB100,000,000 - 100 Properties investment in the PRC
(Yingkou) Company Limited
"HNYK")* ) - o
ReBRE5 (B0)BRAA FE BRELAA AR#100,000,0007C RPBETNREE
([ReeEnl)
Liaoning Taogibao Mall Management  PRC, limited liability company RMB100,000,000 = 100 Properties investment in the PRC
Co. Ltd. ("Liaoning Taogibao")* . B ) o
EERREAAEEARAR PE BREARA AR 100,000,000 ROEETNERE
(EERFE])
Huan Neng Industrial (Yingkou) PRC, limited liability company RMB8,000,000 - 100 Properties investment in the PRC
Company Limited
(“HNV\ndusma\”)* ) B o \
R EX (BR)ARAA PE BREARA AR 8,000,000 RAEETHERE
(MR&EX])
Hailanggu PRC, limited liability company RMB28,880,000 - 100 Properties investment in the PRC
BRA PE BREARA AR 428,880,000 RAEETNERE
Yingkou Haida Property Service PRC, limited liability company RMB40,000,000 - 100 Properties Investment in the PRC
Cqmpanva\m\ted ("Haida")* ) B o \
EOEENRRBERAA PE BREARA AR %40,000,0007 RAEETNERE

(182

td Literal translation of the Chinese name

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B S AR MY R

21 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 MIEBATE (&)
B IR R GMR IR

(@) Ordinary shares and warrants in GM (a)

GM was acquired on 15 May 2012 through acquisition
of subsidiaries. GM had 13,500,000 outstanding
warrants as at 31 December 2016 which were
exercisable. Assuming the full conversion of all
outstanding warrants of GM, the Group would hold
approximately 54.15% controlling interest of the
enlarged capital and have control over the financial
and operating decisions of GM. Accordingly, the Group
consolidated its interest in GM as a subsidiary during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

GMAR - Z——FAF+HBE
BT B D R U e N =
E-XRE+-_A=+—H GME
13 500,00017 A T 17 fF 2 R AR #E

rﬁ%ﬁ@é BRI MARITEZ

MBI BEEHE % ZKEE
H%%%ﬁ%«%)%ﬂx$2% Hl a4
54.15% I;TGMZHM&&%«%J&

REABEHE-BIL REEZZF
—RNEFE+_A=Z+—HBHLEFEE K
EEBENGMZ BT AFER
—RHW B R A

Number of
ordinary shares Number of
with par value warrants
EEmHE
L mAR 8 A R EE B
2016 2016
—E—RF —ET-RF
‘000 ‘000
F & F &
Issued and outstanding: ERTRRITE:
At the beginning of year and end of year A& 4] & F 4
Ordinary shares with par value EEmEZLBER 24,000 13,500
Number of ordinary shares and warrants A ERFEHES 7 LR KR
owned by the Group as at end RN RS A
of the year 9,000 13,500
BREEBRZRERDR

T tFFR
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21

(a)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 WEBRXE (@)
Ordinary shares and warrants in GM (a) EBERKRGMARER
(Continued) (%)
Details of outstanding warrants of GM and their GMERITERBEZ R ERABITE
respective exercise price were detailed as follows: BaEEHINNAT:
Outstanding at
31 December Exercise price
Expiry of warrants 2016 ('000) (IDR per share)
R R W R_ZE—RF
+=-—A=+—H 1TE(E
HMATTE (THh) (SRAEEL)
A Warrant 3 months after commencement of marble production 2,250 444
ARIREE REKXREAE3EHA
A Warrant 3 months after commencement of marble production 2,250 888
ARER REXREAE3EA
B Warrant 6 months after commencement of marble production 2,250 888
B RIMERE IREKEBLOEGMEA
B Warrant 6 months after commencement of marble production 2,250 1,333
BRERE KREKEBALHEGMEA
C Warrant 12 months after commencement of marble production 4,500 1,779
CREESR RBRERERRZI2EA
13,500

(b)

No ordinary shares and warrants in GM were
outstanding as at 31 December 2017.

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no non-
controlling interests as they were disposed on 31
October 2017 (note 29). As at 31 December 2016, the
total non-controlling interests are attributable to BHE
and its subsidiary, GM (together, the "BHE Group”).

Set out below are the summarised financial information
of BHE Group that has non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group as at 31 December 2016.
The amounts disclosed are before inter-company
eliminations.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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(b)

R—F—tF+=-A=+—8"
1L R A X GMER R HE 28 1 R 1T
e

ERFERESR

MAREERESZN T —tF 1+ A
=t+—HELE HAEERZ=ZT
—+F+ A=+ BAEIMIE
TR RE RS (A 3E29) - R Z B — X
FE+-A=+—H FiEmRRERS
BREF B NBHER E B A 7IGM
(%78 [BHEE®]) -

RZB—R"F+ZA=+—H#HE
HAEENSBEAZIFERER
ZBHESHE 2 % E R 2 &5 0
ToMEBEEBEANRMEHENE
B
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 KWERE (#)
Material non-controlling interests (b) ERFERER &)
(Continued)
2016
AN
HK$°000
FHET
Summarised balance sheet EEEEREE
Current E
Assets BE 102
Liabilities =R (18,195)
Net current liabilities MBI BEFRE (18,093)
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 22
Liabilities BE =
Net non-current assets ERBEEFH 22
Net liabilities EEEE (18,071)
Accumulated non-controlling interests Rt IEERER (2,789)
Summarised income statement G L
Revenue N 76
Loss for the year FEEE (5,291)
Other comprehensive loss HEth2HEER (114)
Total comprehensive loss *HEEARE (5,405)
Group level adjustments SERE 77,308
Total comprehensive loss allocated to A EEFERER 2 HEELE
non-controlling interests (51,508)
Summarised cash flows ReREHRE
Net cash used in operating activities KEXEBMAZRSFRE (607)
Net cash generated from REFMS RS FRE
investing activities 58
Net cash generated from BMEEBE 2R EFHE
financing activities 442
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR& MR & EEYR L F5E (107)
Bank balances and cash at beginning FYZHRTEREIRS
of the year 132
Bank balances and cash at end of the year F# Z R{T&# LIRS 25
BREEBRZRERDR

T tFFR
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22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

22 AEHERE

2017 2016

—E—+fF ZT—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At 1 January ®—A—H 100,200 290

Addition NE - 100,000

Disposal & (100,000) =

Impairment loss (note 9) EEE (Hi79) (200) (90)

At 31 December R+t=-—A=+—H - 100,200
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEERERE:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Listed equity securities, at fair value ETRARBSE ZALEE - 200

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value FELTRAZTS 1% BE = 100,000

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held 1.9% equity interests
in Petromin Resources Ltd, a company listed on Toronto Stock
Exchange, with a carrying value of HK$200,000. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, considering the prolong
suspension of trading since April 2017, the Directors have
decided to record a full impairment against such investment,
resulting in an impairment charge of HK$200,000 recorded for

the year ended 31 December 2017.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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RIBE—RNF+_A=+—8 XxEEH
5 Petromin Resources Ltd (—ER %@ %
BERGHLEM AT Z21.9%8H# - BR

& /A200,0008 T - HE-ZT

—tFr=

A=+—BLHFE ZRIE -_FT—tF

MAENERMRZEE

EXEREHE

BREETEZERE BERBE_T
—tF+ZRA=+—HIFEHSHER

4200,0005% 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

e IR R R

22

23

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22 AHEERE @)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2016, the Group held 1,282.87 Class A RZE—RE+ZA=+—8 KEEN
Shares of the China Huacai Finance Equity Investment Fund HFH%10,000E T ERFFH1,282.87&+
SP at a price of US$10,000 per share (“Class A Shares”) with BEEMSRRBERERS ZAERNS (TA
a carrying value of HK$100,000,000. On 29 December 2017, ¥R ] ) - BRTE {E /4100,000,0007% 7T ©
the Group disposed all Class A Shares for a consideration of RZE—+F+_AZ+NB Xx&H
HK$108,000,000 to a third party, resulting in a gain on disposal mM—BE=FTHEMBAERG RER
of available-for sale investments amounted to HK$8,000,000. 108,000,000/ 7T - BEHER L EIRE
The consideration receivable, amounted to HK$108,000,000 as 28,000,000 L - R=_E—tF+=A
at 31 December 2017, was settled in full on 9 March 2018. =+—HzEKRA{E108,000,0008 T E
RZE-—NF=ZANABHEE -
The impairment during the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_Z—+F+_A=+T—RBLFE
represented the listed equity securities represent approximately ZRHERLITRAZTLHFFBE MLmR
1.9% (2016: 1.9%) equity interests in Petromin Resources Ltd, N FE F HE P 7R & B A B 2R R Petromin
a former related company of the Group. The disposal during Resources Ltd#J1.9% (=ZF — XN &F:
the year ended 31 December 2017 represented the unlisted 1.9% )2 AR - BE_ZT—+F
equity securities related to the subscription of Class A Shares TZAZT—RLEFELHEEEBAR
of China Huacai Finance Equity Investment Fund SP in an BHRENeRREREECHESEAR
aggregate amount of HK$100,000,000. 100,000,000/ 708 AR R 17 KO 3E_E T AR AR
EE-X)
As at 31 December 2016, the available-for-sale investments RZZE—XF+_A=+—H A#HHEE
were measured at fair value. The listed equity securities were HEBURABEFTE  EMBRAFARE
denominated in CAD. LA TTEHE ©
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23 BWEZERM
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables & W B 5 8RR 60,463 41,106

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit for which the credit period is generally for a period of 30
to 180 days.

AEFEHEEFPYEFERTEEEER
X EEH—HRH30BE180B %

BHEBERERALA
T tFFR
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23 EWEZERNX#®)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at AEBEREEARBEERAMIEKES
BRRZERDTMT

the balance sheet dates, based on invoice date, is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 30 days 30B A 60,463 978
31-60 days 31HZE60H - -
61-90 days 61HZE90H - 7,010
91-120 days 91THZE120H - 18,089
121-150 days 121H &150H - 15,029
60,463 41,106

R-ZE—+HF+-_F=+—H FERELK
ESRACOPEIERE(ZFT—X
£ :40,128,00087L) - RZZE—RF+=
A=+—R ZE5RKFEE—RIHT
BEHCHNBYRFPEBREEBHEIRN
308 -

As at 31 December 2017, no trade receivables (2016:
HK$40,128,000) were past due but not impaired. As at
31 December 2016, these receivables were related to an
independent customer with no recent history of default and
were past due for less than 30 days.

AEBERWE SRR ZEEENA TG

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are

denominated in the following currencies: FHE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT - 40,128
RMB AR 60,463 978
60,463 41,106

BHE-_Z2—tFRrR=-ZE—X~"F+=A
T BUHFE - YEEKESHEINE
-

There were no provision for impairment of trade receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

] 52 Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



24 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

e IR R R

24 BE BANFERHEABERR
|

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current B
Prepayment for investment property (note 18) 1 EWMETBNZE (#:£18) - 25,022
Rental deposits HEZRS 1,387 -
1,387 25,022
Current RE
Deposits ®e 1 390
Prepayments AT RIE
— Prepayment for purchases of solar panels — R K5 ee EMA M
(note (a)) e RIE (Wt (a)) - 87,276
— Prepayment for purchases of construction — R ERBIENRIE
materials (note (b)) (Kiatm)) 90,276 =
— Prepayment for purchases of aluminum — KB EM BN RIA
materials (note (c)) (B1az(c)) 140,400 =
— Other prepayments —H M T RIE 9,390 353
Entrusted loan receivable (note (d)) B ETE R (it ) 15,120 =
Investment income receivables JE W38 & WA - 7,435
Consideration receivable from disposal of an HENHDEREREKNRE
available-for-sale investment (note 22) (B1a222) 108,000 =
Other receivables H b fE W 5K IR 512 106
363,709 95,560
Total deposits, prepayments and Re BENRER
other receivables H iR RIERE 365,096 120,582

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2016, prepayment for purchases of

Bt

solar panels amounted to HK$87,276,000. In March 2017,
prepayment amounted to HK$4,560,000 was used to offset
purchases for solar panels. On 21 November 2017, the
remaining prepayment balance amounted to HK$82,800,000
was assigned from the solar panels supplier to another third

party (“Assignee A"), pursuant to an agreement entered into

between the Group, the solar panel supplier and the Assignee

A. The remaining prepayment was refunded in full to the Group

in November and December 2017.

R=ZZF—A"E+=-A=+—8"%5
BEABEESLATNENRES
87,276,000 L - AT —+F =7~
$ %8 54,560,000/ T2 A RIBBAR
KB EAGREENEF R=2F—+t
F+—A=Z+—RH BEAXKEE K
e EBEGHREIRS —EZE=H
(IZFEHFADEENGZ HBSHEA
82,800,000/ T 2 BB RIBLE SRS
BEEMATHEREETIEIAH
BREMRBEBER-_Z—tF+—AK
+_RAEBERETALERE-
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24

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(b)

(Continued)

On 21 June 2017, Hailanggu, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, made a prepayment of
RMB79,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$94,800,000)
to a supplier (“Supplier A”) for purchases of construction
materials.

On 18 August 2017, Hailanggu received a partial refund of
the abovementioned prepayment from Supplier A. On 25
August 2017, Hailanggu and Supplier A signed a supplemental
agreement and acknowledged that Hailanggu has suspended
the relevant refurbishment project but reserved the right to
utilise the prepayment at a later date.

Furthermore on 20 September 2017, the remaining balance of
prepayment due to Hailanggu of RMB77,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$93,000,000) was assigned to an
another third party (“Assignee B”) pursuant to an agreement
entered into between Hailanggu, Supplier A and Assignee B.
On 21 September 2017, Hailanggu received an amount of
RMB2,270,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,724,000)
from Assignee B, representing a partial repayment of the
prepayment. As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding
prepayment amounted to RMB75,230,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$90,276,000), and paid back to Hailanggu by
Assignee B on 21 March 2018.

During the period from August 2017 to November 2017, HN
Industrial, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
made five payments totalling RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$140,400,000) to a supplier (the “Aluminium
Supplier”) pursuant to an agreement dated 17 August 2017
for purchases of aluminium materials. On 20 March 2018,
the Aluminium Supplier refunded the abovementioned
balance of RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$140,400,000) to the Group.

On 29 December 2017, HNYK, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an entrusted loan
agreement with a commercial bank in the PRC (“Entrusted
Party”) and a third party (“Borrower”), pursuant to which
HNYK agreed to provide an entrusted loan amounted to
RMB12,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,120,000)
to the Borrower through the Entrusted Party, bearing interest at
a fixed rate of 9% per annum for a period of six months. The

entrusted loan was early settled in full on 20 March 2018.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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(b) RZEBE—+tFEA-Z+—H BRA

(BARR—HEEZ2EMRBRR)M
—ZEE ([HERAIEEER
A AR #79,000,0007T (BERLY
94,800,000 7T ) A B B 22 &4 k) o

R_ZE—tFNATNB BRAK
HEMARE AR FRIBNI D RE
KRB FNANAZTHRB BR
AEEBHARE —DETHE ER
BRACEEEERABH TR ARE
RFNERBRBRAZERNREA

o R=ZFE—tFAA=+AH RE
HRA HEBARS—RE=H (2
EABEBZHE ERNERANTE
TR IB 8258 AR #77,500,0007T (HEE
7 #993,000,000/570) BE 8% T 2%
B-R—T—+HENA-+—B HRA
B 5 A BUCE A R#2,270,0007T (48
B 1R 492,724,000 T ) 2 FRIE - BDIELS
FEZEHNER - R_T—tE+_-A
=t+—H XEEBENFBEBAEBAR
#75,230,0007T (#8E 5 490,276,000
) BRZZE—NE=A=+—H
A ZEABMETERA

R-_ZE—+tFNAE_ZE—tF+—A
M REEE (ALARAR—HEER
EWBRARDRE—HBAHA-ZT—+
FNAR+EBEBRBEMZHER
—HptER ([EEEFDELRERN
oA ARY117,000,0007T (HER
#7140,400,000 ) - R=ZZE—\F=
A-+RH RHEFCAANEEEE
it 45 #& A R #117,000,0007T (& R
49140,400,0005 7T ) °

R-ZE—+HFE+-_A-+hHB B
N(AXARR—EREZEHBAR)
M -EEERT (2R R—
EE=ZF(ERFNITL—HER
BERB#H Bl REEOREEBRT
AARAERTRE—Z22BAARE
12,600,0007T (& M #115,120,0007%
TL) 2 EFEER  REFI%ME T X
B BHANEAR -ZEZRAERDR
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25 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25 HBITEHBRRES
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
i85t Tt
Cash at banks and in hand BT NFEIRSE 154,140 20,609

RITEHRER S ZEEELTIIEE

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are

denominated in the following currencies: i
2017 2016
=E2—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 149,852 16,262
RMB AR 4,267 4,252
us$ ET - 34
IDR EEEL - 9
CAD it 21 39
SGD ¥ T - 13
154,140 20,609
26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 ENEZRIARHEMENRIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Trade payables (note (a)) e E SR (M iF@E)) 56,643 231
Construction and other costs payables FREE R HLfh FE A B AN 3,129 8,107
Other payables (note (b)) b JE A 5RIB (HTaE b)) 16,508 10,001
Consideration payable (note 29) e B (K7 5£29) - 7,800
Receipt in advance from a customer BEFWE 2 #5K 4,702 =
Accrued liabilities EETaE 2,641 2,775
83,623 28,914

BHEBERERALA
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 26 BENESRERRHEMEMKE
(#)
Notes: Mt -

(a) The amounts are repayable according to normal credit terms of (a BHERERE—REEHI0OBZEC0RE

°

A

30 to 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the balance REER REBEEEAHCZENESER
sheet dates, based on invoice date, is as follows: RZEERDTMT

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 30 days 30B A 56,643 231
(b) During the period from October 2017 to December 2017, (b) N-_E—+F+AE-_ZE—+E+—=
Hailanggu, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the RHME BRA(BEARF —BEME
Company, received three payments totalling RMB6,658,000 2EMBAR)NREEEANS —RHE
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,990,000) from another BMARWB ZENR BEAARK
company affiliated to Supplier A (Note 24(b)) represented 6,658,000 T (HHE M #7,990,000/8
further partial repayments of the relevant prepayments. These Jt) (M s¥24(b)) - BNMEEEFE R FRIAH
receipts were separately recorded as other payables due to AP ER - ZERFRAEER
Company A, instead of offsetting them against the relevant —E—+tF+_A=+—BHZEEH
prepayment balance, in the Group's consolidated financial BRRWEBEBAKRY AENATANE
statements as at 31 December 2017. R MIEA R A BE AR
fh o
/= +
27 BANK BORROWINGS 27 RITER

As at 31 December 2017, the analysis of the carrying amount RZBE—tF+A=+—H HITEK

of bank borrowings is as follows: ZEREES T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Current &

Bank borrowings — secured WITER—GER 429,600 180,884
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27

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

On 28 January 2016, HNYK, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower, entered into a bank
borrowing agreement for RMB92,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$110,400,000) with a commercial bank in the
PRC. On 17 January 2017, HNYK renewed the bank borrowing
agreement with the bank for one year to January 2018. The
bank borrowing was secured by various retail shops located
at Liaohai Garden, Bayuguan district, Yingkou City, Laining
province, the PRC with carrying amount of HK$94,440,000 as
at 31 December 2017. Subsequently, the bank borrowing was
renewed for another year to January 2019.

On 20 July 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
of Liaoning Taogibao which had a bank borrowing of
RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$84,000,000)
with a commercial bank in the PRC. On 23 March 2017,
Liaoning Taogibao renewed the bank borrowing agreement
with the bank for one year. The bank borrowing was secured by
Wuzi Composite Building, South of Huanghe Road, Bayuquan
district, Yingkou City, Liaoning province, the PRC with carrying
amount of HK$139,200,000 as at 31 December 2017.

On 21 June 2017, Hailanggu, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower, entered into two bank
borrowings of RMB52,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$62,400,000) and RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$32,400,000), respectively, with a commercial
bank in the PRC. The bank borrowing was secured by two
parcels of land of approximately 59,245 square meters in Bai
Sha Wan, Bayuquan district, Yingkou city, Liaoning province,
the PRC and the industrial complex located at Qinghua Avenue,
Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC with carrying amount
of HK$72,120,000 and HK$29,580,000, respectively, as at 31
December 2017.

27

RITEFR (#)

RZE—AF—-—A=Z+/N\H ERgE&ED
(BARR—HRE2ENBAR) (1A
fBRA) BRE—EEERTITLARE
92,000,0007T (48 & 7 4110,400,000/%
TIZBITERB#F - R —EF— A
T+ B RELOBEZBITZHRITER
WEREE - FE_T—NFE—F %ET
BEXBAR T —tF+A=+—HKE
E/94,440,0008 T2 RHPBIEES &
AmiAaBERFESTENZHTE/EER
H-Hi% ZRTENCEE —FE_Z
—hE—A-

RoE—RELtA-+H REFWEE
BHARE Z100%M#E iz Am EAE—H
PEBRITHERITERARET0,000,0007T
(BE A #184,000,000/ ) - R T —+
FZA-+ =B BEEEHREBEZET
ZRITERMHEE —F-ZRTERMN
RZZE—+tF+-_A=+—HEEEA
139,200,000 L2 i RHPBIEELE O
THABRETREBRNMEREE NE
{EHE IR -

R-ZE—+EXA-+—H8 BERA(A
ARr—HEEZEWBRAR) (FA
BRA)EPH—EHERITILIMG
2Rl A AR #52,000,0007T (HHERH
62,400,000/ 7t.) & A R #27,000,0007T
(8% MW #932,400,0008 T) 2 SRITE XK
WE - ZRITEFEAR_ZT—tF+=A
=+—RREMES /72,120,000 T &
29,580,000 L 2 i AR BEEELEAM
R [ A B M8 #959,245F 5 K Y
A RNRFREFEEEEOMEEAE
BT ERAEBERR-
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27 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 27 SRITER (&)
On 18 August 2017, HN Properties, an indirect wholly owned RZE—tFENA+TN\R ReEWE (R
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower, entered a bank ARal—fMEE2EWNBLAR) (EAE
borrowing agreement of RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to RA)EPE-—EEERTIZLARE
approximately HK$140,400,000) with a commercial bank in 117,000,0007T (HE 7 #J140,400,000
the PRC. The bank borrowing was secured by the retail portion BIRIZRITERBHE -ZBITERH
on the fourth floor and the fifth floor of Block A, Bao Hua RZE—+F+_A=+—RKREER
Wang Yuan, Zhongshan district, Dalian city, Liaoning province, 89,040,000/ JT 2 il FA /1 B 38 22 & K&
the PRC with carrying amount of HK$89,040,000 as at 31 MHILEBEREFIBARBIERFEENT
December 2017. On 21 March 2018, the bank borrowing was EHBOEER - K- NF=A=+—
repaid in full. H ZRITERDBEER-
As at 31 December 2017, these bank borrowings carried a fixed RZEBE—tF+_A=+—8 ZEE1T
rate ranging from 7.1% to 7.5% (2016: 7.1% to 9.0%) per BERZETFENENTIA%NETS% (=
annum. The exposure of these bank borrowings to interest rate T—RNEFE 71%E9.0% )it B - ZHRIT
changes and the contractual repricing dates at 31 December EXR_ZE—+tF+-A=+—BrAx
2017 are one year (2016: one year). BYRENENTEEBRAMAENRR R
—F(ZE—RF:—F)-
28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 RAKFE
(a) Share Capital (a) B
Number of Share
shares capital
RO EE ;S
("000) HK$'000
(Fr%) FHET
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each &R E{E0.0025% 7T 2 & @ i’
At 1 January 2016, 31 December WZZT—X&—AH—H"
2016 and 31 December 2017 —E-RFETZA=T-BR
—E—+F+A=+—H 20,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-—XRF—H—AH 7,052,007 17,630
Issuance of shares upon exercise of ~FA7T {5 72 A% 1% 7% b5 85 17 37 A% 1D
warrants (note (i)) (HiaEG) 775 2
Issuance of consideration shares BITRERD (A7)
(note (ii) 487,162 1,218
At 31 December 2016 RZB-—RF+ZA=+—H 7,539,944 18,850
Issuance of shares (note (iii)) BATRR O (AT 22 (i) 1,507,900 3,770
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZB—tF+=A=+—H 9,047,844 22,620
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Share Capital (Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(if)

(iii)

December 2016,
approximately 775,000 shares of the Company

During the year ended 31

were issued as a result of exercise of approximately
775,000 units of warrants by warrant holders at the
exercise price of HK$0.21 per share. The proceeds
from the exercise of the warrants were approximately
HK$163,000 among which approximately HK$2,000
were credited to the share capital account and the
balance of approximately HK$161,000 were credited to
the share premium account.

On 18 October 2016,
487,161,789 shares of the Company as consideration

the Company issued

shares for the acquisition of an investment property
(note 18). The fair value of such investment property on
18 October 2016 was approximately HK$99,417,000,
with HK$1,218,000 was credited to the share capital
account and the balance of HK$98,199,000 was
credited to the share premium account.

On 7 November 2017, 1,507,900,000 ordinary shares
were issued at the subscription price of HK$0.13 per
share by way of placement. The net proceeds received
by the Company from the placement was approximately
HK$196,027,000, with HK$3,770,000 was credited
to the share capital account and the balance of
HK$192,257,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

All the above shares rank pari passu in all respects with

other shares in issue.

28

& SE=E - RE )

(a)

A (&)
Wit
() BE-F-AET-A=t-

(i)

(iii)

BIEFE ARBREZREA
171E49775,0001 SRR HE 75 - B¢
1T#9775,00008 &R R & AR (7 -
BRATEBO.217 T - 1T E R
HEEZ TS R IE X /163,000
T HAR492,00078 AR
ZNBR - A #249161,000% 7T Bl
STARG R ERR -

RZZE—R"E+A+N\B-
KA F B #17487,161,789
BAABRGIERYE—E
BEMEZRERD (F T
18) - ZBEHREWMER T
—RNET+ARATNBZAARE
{49 7/599,417,000/ T * &
1,218,000/ 7L E 5T ABRANER -
i £4 898,199,000/ 7T B E &f
AR5 BB o

RZZTE—+&+—A+tH-
1,507,900,0000% & 3 % 7 i Bt
EFARRBEETRIZET
BT o ANR R YEBL & FT U2 T
183/ IEF E 4 /196,027,000
# T B 93,770,000 L 2 5t
AR - 82 %8192,257,000
BT RIE T ARG RER

BFAEBRNRAE T EELME

ﬂ&h%ﬁﬁﬁmu°
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 BAKRE &)

(b) Reserves (b) fREfE
Share
Share Capital options  Translation Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BB EE AR BRERE EifE Hfbfite 2 ER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAT TART TET THTL THT TAT

Asat1January 2016 RZT-E-A—H 793,430 19,980 68,924 (18,236) (39,117) (465,159) 359,822

Loss for the year FEBR - - - - S (34,849) (34,849)

Exchange differences ~ HEFHNEBELZ
arising from translation [ ¥ %%
of foreign operations - - - (8,041) - - (8,041)

Issuance of share upon BT {5 70 18 s

exercise of warrants Bk

(note 28(a)() (Hii2806)) 183 - = = (22) S 161
Lapse of warrants (nofe) RREZXR (H3F) 8,643 = S S (8,643) S =
Issuance of consideration %47 R {7

shares (note 28(a)(i))  (Hi28(a)i)) 98,199 - - - - - 98,199

As at 31 December 2016 R=E—F

+-A=1+-H 900,455 19,980 68,924 (26,277) (47,782) (500,008) 415,292
Asat1lanuary 2017 R=%-tF-A-0 | 900455 19980 68924  (26277)  (47,782)  (500,008) 415292 |
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (93,900) (93,900)

Exchange differences ~ BEFNEHELZ
arising from translation [ 5 %%

of foreign operations - - - 19,058 - - 19,058
Release of reserves upon 1A H &N B L AR

disposal of subsidiaries i 7 f & - - - 566 47,782 - 48,348 |
Lapse of options (note) ~ EEMRIER I (Hiz2) - = (437) = = = (437)
Issuance of shares BRG

(note 28(a)(iif)) (Hi#228(a)i)) 192,257 - - - - - 192,257

As at 31 December 2017 R=8—t&
+=B=t-H 1,092,712 19,980 68,487 (6,653) - (593,908) 580,618
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 BARKEE @)

(b) Reserves (Continued) (b) & &)
Note: Bt iz -
On 20 November 2016, the subscription rights attaching AZE—RF+—HA=Z+H XRAH
to the outstanding warrants of the Company expired and RITERREFEMIN 2 RERELE E
HK$8,643,000 was reallocated from other reserve to share W 8,643,000/ L BN A E
premium. FORERMDEE -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no HE-_Z—+tH5+=-A=+—HI
grant, exercise or cancellation of share options (2016: nil) and FRE-BERE TENTHBERRE
1,631,757 number of options amounted to HK$437,000 were (ZZT—NEF:#)K%437,0008 T2
lapsed (2016: nil). 1,631,757 EREE XM (ZT— R
Fofm)o
29 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 29 BRILEKREXR
Following the disposal of Aces Diamond Holding Limited, the RZZE—+F+HA=1+—HHEBHER
holding company of BHE and GM on 31 October 2017, the GMHZ % A Bl Aces Diamond Holding
Board decided to discontinue the operation of natural resources Limited8 EE@AER T —tF+=
and energy related business and information technology and R ERAER KRBT IA R
related business in December 2017. BB RAEEER -
(a) Analysis of the results of discontinued (a) CRIEREEK X£E
operations paliy
2017 2016
—E-+t#F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
Revenue WA 4,697 176,138
Cost of sales 4 & AR (4,560) (171,724)
Gross profit EH 137 4,414
Other gains, net H by & - 8,552
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAGZEE
(Note (1) (B1aEa)) (43,182) -
Impairment loss on exploration and WHREFHEEZ
evaluation assets (Note (iij) WAEEE (K7 G)) - (78,747)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX - (80)
Administrative and operating expenses 1T M 4% & B % - (2,062)
Loss before tax from discontinued ERIEEEEB 2
operations G0 SR (43,045) (67,923)
Income tax FRiE - =
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEEEXBFERERE
operations (43,045) (67,923)
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29 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 29 BRIEEEXER w)
(a) Analysis of the results of discontinued (a) BRUEREEK 2 XED

operations (Continued)
Note (i):

On 31 October 2017, the Group disposed the entire equity
interest of Aces Diamond and its subsidiaries to an independent
third party for a consideration of HK$1. Aces Diamond is the
intermediate holding company of the GM, which holds a mining
permit for a marble site covering approximate 33 hectares at
Selenrang, Bontoa, Maros Regency in South-western Sulawesi,
Indonesia. The mining properties were fully impaired during the
year end 31 December 2016.

The aggregated net liabilities at the date of disposal were as

*ﬁ ( /IE
Bia) -

RZZ—tHF+A=+—H0 rKH
H & Aces Diamond R E B AR 22
BRAEZTF 2B LE=H RE
B17 70 ° Aces DiamondAGMZ # [
BERARZARZAEMREDE &
Jﬁk@%ﬁfﬁ%ﬁiﬁlﬁﬂ’]l\ﬂarosﬁmntoam
Selenrang )33 AERIBATES 2 &
ERRTE ZEBYEREBE=Z
—ANEFETZA=+—RHILFEE2ER
Ee

WHERBzBBBEFENT:

follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 22
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %% ~ B/ 708 & H {th fE U 7178 78
Cash and cash equipment RekReFEY 36
Trade payable BB SRR (231)
Other payables H fth fE A RRIE (7,860)
Less: Non-controlling interests R IEE R 2,789
Net liabilities disposed of It EaEEHE (5,166)
Add: Translation reserve released upon m-REENBARRBL 2 REHFE
disposed subsidiaries 566
Add: Other reserve released upon disposal of — hll : FAH &M B R RSB H 2 s (A7223i))
subsidiaries (Note (i) 47,782
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWRB ARz EE 43,182
HK$'000
FHET
Net proceeds received from disposal of B EH B R RKRERZ A8 RIEFE
subsidiaries -
Satisfied by: UTHAERXZA:
Cash consideration RERE =
Net cash outflow from disposal of RELHEMBLARZERESRE:
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration received IR & R E =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FEERERREEED 36

] 62 Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B ERRME

29 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 29 BRIEREER @)
(a) Analysis of the results of discontinued (a) CRIEREEK XED
operations (Continued) &)
Note (ii): Kiazi) -
Other reserve represented 13,500,000 outstanding warrants of HAth %8 GM (Aces Diamondz —fdl
GM, an indirect subsidiary of Aces Diamond. MM B AR ) 213,500,00013 R1T{E

R ERE

Note (iii): Ktz (i) <
Exploration and evaluation asset IR R AT R EE
Movement of the mining properties during the year ended 31 RIZB-RF+ZA=Z+—RILEFE"
December 2016 was as follows: BEEEZZHHI|INT:
2016
—EF— /\E
HK$'000
FHET
At cost £ W
At 1 January n—A—H 77,500
Exchange differences EHERE 1,247
Impairment loss REEE (78,747)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H =
At as 31 December 2016, the Company indirectly holds RZE—RF+ZA=+—8B &2
approximately 90% interest in BHE, a subsidiary of the AR EBHE (RARIZHM B AR
Company which in turn holds 37.5% interest in GM. GM #990% < B # * BHEEF EGM37.5%
held a mining permit (the “Mining Permit”) for a marble site Z R HE - T GMBIFF A L R ED e & i
covering approximately 33 hectares at Selenrang, Bontoa, JEk 78 5 78 R &6 3t [& #Y MarosTh Bontoa
Maros Regency (the “Maros Marble Project”) in southwestern K Selenrang #I33 R B KIE A S
Sulawesi, Indonesia (the “GM Quarry"). (TGMER %) ([Maros KR IE
B 1) 2 HEERRKT A& (9 E R AT
BEADE
The Mining Permit associated with the mining properties HBEXEEAACBERKTIZER
expired on 22 January 2017, and the extension of which was ZE—tF-AZ+-HIH WERF
subject to the approval by the Provincial Government of South MEHNEAE BRI ERTAIER-
Sulawesi.

BHEBERERALA
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29 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

29

BRIEREER &)

Analysis of the results of discontinued () CRIREXERIXED
operations (Continued) &)
Note (ifi): (Continued) wtat i - (#4&)
Despite the attempts by BHE to apply for the recommendation B EBHEMMarosth it 5 BX i B9 55 HE B
from the local government of Maros Regency which was & (HH AL A BT RS TR E
essential for obtaining the New Mining Permit from the FERRT R EE REE) - MarosT i 77 K
Provincial Government of South Sulawesi, the local government FIE D88 Fi@AMBHER EBIR L A B
of Maros Regency verbally informed BHE that it refused BE RAEANEERRKITIEMSR
to give such recommendation because the location of the 2 A5 2 (B FE P Marosth 2 5t &l
relevant mine subject to the New Mining Permit fell into the REERE THEETHRELTE RN
planning tourist development area of Maros Regency which EEOEBAE BHEREEIRENES K
was no longer intended for mining activity. Upon receiving EERR -REBEBHERGZAEER -
the verbal notification, BHE immediately sought for legal TR B MarosTi it 757 U (EEHEE & 2
advice in Indonesia. Based on the legal advice obtained BN - B ARRLB AR & BUR SR AT Akt
by BHE, the Provincial Government of South Sulawesi was EHBERRFUEZHB B R
unlikely to approve the application of the New Mining Permit ZE-RFE+ZR=+—HLFE"
in the absence of a positive recommendation from the local BRAREEMaros K AER REERN
government of Maros Regency. Accordingly, full impairment on 78,747,0008 T2 BEEXEEHEE
the Group’s mining properties in relation to the Maros Marble BUE
Project with carrying value of approximately HK$78,747,000
was provided during the year ended 31 December 2016.
On 31 October 2017, the Group disposed the entire equity R-T—tF+A=+—8 F£EH
interest in Aces Diamond, the holding company of BHE at a £ Aces Diamond (BHEZ#EREAR]) 2
consideration of HK$1 to a third party. 2HRAERT —BRE=FH REA
BT
Cumulative gain/loss recognised in (b) REME2EWEER 2HE
other comprehensive income related to CRIEREEBERANE
discontinued operations stz B
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Translation reserve BRERE - 566
Other reserve Hib R = 47,782
- 48,348
Analysis of cash flows () BHERESD
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Operating cash outflows KER S M 14,885 70,368

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30 WEBEKELQA
(a) On 3 January 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity (a) RZZE—+tF-—HA=ZH K&5H
interest of Haida for a consideration of RMB24,650,000 WHEBZEZ100%KkE REAR
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,063,000). No AR #24,650,00070 (FHBE KL
material acquisition related costs were incurred in 27,063,000 7T ) © 7 B8 U i I
the acquisition. Before the acquisition by the Group, EEERNREBBEKRAR - REARE
Haida has no business activities except for holding of EWER REEREMEINE
investment properties. Accordingly, the directors of the FEUREMERES Bt AR
Company are of the opinion that the acquisition of RESERA WHEEEDTEKE
Haida did not constitute a business combination but an BEM EBRKEEE WE2
acquisition of assets. The effect of the acquisition was %%*ﬂ% LN
summarised as follows:
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the RUBEHZEWBEERCER
date of acquisition: =R
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties (note 18) "EME (HiE18) 28,672
Other payable H & <5108 (1,609)
27,063
Net cash outflow from acquisition of a subsidiary: KE—EHNBEARZRESREF
A
HK$’000
FHEIT
Consideration paid in cash [RENE X 27,063
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE s Re RIReEEY -
27,063
BREERZERERDA

T tFFR
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

On 20 July 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Liaoning Taogibao which owned investment
properties in Yingkou city for a consideration of
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$116,863,000) a third Party (“Vendor of Liaoning
Taogibao"”). The consideration included RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$35,059,000) which
was settled in cash and the assumption of liabilities
due by the vendor to Liaoning Taogibao amounted
to RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$81,804,000). No material acquisition related costs
were incurred in the acquisition. Before the acquisition
by the Group, Liaoning Taogibao had no business
activities except for holding of investment properties.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the acquisition of Liaoning Taogibao did
not constitute a business combination but an acquisition
of assets. The effect of the acquisition was summarised
as follows:

30

A= FNCIRE )

(b)

R-TE—RNFELtA-+8 A&£EH
ME=F(EERARBENEH])
WHEEERRE 2100% K% Z
ANEREOMBAEREDE RE
A AR #100,000,0007T (&R
#9116,863,000%7C) - BEARER
EAR 2 B8 AKRK30,000,000
7t (8 & M #935,059,00058 7T )
EBEEAHEREENRENE
& AR #70,000,0007T (HE R
81,804,000/ 7T ) © 2 KX U B I f%
EEERNWEEBKAR R AR
EEKER  BREBEREMEIN
EERAREWHRAEMEL T
I ARREERE BEEHRE
Z N B ES A O B
UREE BB - 2R EE 2 & uti
T

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the REBARZEWBEERERR
date of acquisition: a8E:
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties wEYE 130,720
Amount due from Vendor of EREERARENE 7 RIE
Liaoning Taogibao 81,804
Other receivables H WK IR 19
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEEZEY 13
Bank borrowing RITEX (81,804)
Accruals and other payables FEEH & A K H M FE 1~ 5RI8 (13,889)
116,863

Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries:

WEMBARZRERHFER:

HK$'000

FHET

Consideration paid in cash BENESNKE 35,059
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ks ReRBEEESED (13)
35,046

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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30 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30 WEIBKE AT (&)
() On 30 December 2016, the Group acquired 100% (c) RZE—RF+ZA=+H K&

equity interest of Hailanggu which owned two parcels
of land in Yingkou city for a cash consideration
of RMB62,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$69,227,000). No material acquisition related costs
were incurred in the acquisition. Before the acquisition
by the Group, Hailanggu had no business activities
except for holding of two parcels of land. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the

E BB RA Z100%K#E  Z A
AIREOMFAMBEMEE  RENR
BA AR%62,000,0007C (HER
#969,227,000/8 7T ) - /XY E I
BELERNRBRENAE - R A
EEWRER - BRIFEMIEDIRIN
ERAWEAMEREE - At
ARREERA BRAZWET

acquisition of Hailanggu did not constitute a business TEXEBEH HEERKEE
combination but an acquisition of assets. The effect of EomRWEz ZEMmnT
the acquisition was summarised as follows:
Assets acquired at the date of acquisition: RUBEHZECWBEE
HK$'000
FHET
Investment property KEYE 44,188
Prepayment for investment property (note 24) 1% &¥% 2 BN A (#fit24) 25,022
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 17
69,227
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries: WEMEBAR 2R RE T
HK$’000
FHET
Consideration paid in cash BENBEEKE 69,227
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE s Re kRIReEEY (17)
69,210
BREERZERERDA

T tFFR
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31

CASH FLOW INFORMATION - FINANCING 31

ACTIVITIES

This section sets out the movement of liabilities from financing
activities for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

BeRBEN -BEEH

FEHHINBE_T-—LFR_F—RF

T-_A=+—RLFEREBREEZHEE

288
Liabilities from financing activities
REMETH2EE
Loan from
Shareholder a related Interest Bank
loans company payable  borrowings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REBERAF
BRREM ZEX ERFE RITER ®mat
FTER FER THER THER FTHER
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—F—H - - - 180,884 180,884
Cash inflows BEmRA 2,000 240,000 - 410,863 652,863
Cash outflows Ben = (177,669) (21,521) (183,382) (382,572)
Non-cash movements FReE - - 21,521 - 21,521
Foreign exchange S| EE 5 B
adjustments - - - 21,235 21,235
As at 31 December 2017 MZZ—+F
+=-A=+—H 2,000 62,331 - 429,600 493,931
As at 1 January 2016 RZZE—-RFE—-A—H - - - - -
Cash inflows BERA - - = 105,550 105,550
Cash outflows Be R - - (10,187) = (10,187)
Non-cash movements FReEH - - 10,187 81,804 91,991
Foreign exchange S| EE 5 B
adjustments - - - (6,470) (6,470)
As at 31 December 2016 A ZZE—RF
+-A=+—8 = = = 180,884 180,884

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

On 25 January 2003 and 12 May 2011, share option
schemes (“2003 Share Option Scheme” and “2011
Share Option Scheme”, respectively) were approved
and adopted pursuant to resolutions of the Company.
The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme and
2011 Share Option Scheme was to enable the Group
to recognise the contribution of the participants to the
Group and to motivate the participants to continue
working for the benefit of the Group by offering the
participants an opportunity to have personal interest
in the share capital of the Company. The Board of
Directors may, at its discretion, grant share options
to any employees, consultants and advisers of the
Company or its subsidiaries, including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The 2003 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme remain
in force for a period of ten years with effect from 25
January 2003 and 12 May 2011, respectively.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company may not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company,
or may not exceed a maximum of 30% should the
shareholders of the Company renew the 10% limit,
from time to time which have been duly allotted and
issued.

The exercise price for shares under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme may
be determined by the Board of Directors at its absolute
discretion but in any event will be at least the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares on the date of grant of the option.

32

BRErE

(a)

KRR -_EZE=F—A_-+HAH
k—Z——FRA+-BREAR
AIRFRIEV R AEREE
(9B A 20035 BB H#ETE ] &
(2011 BB RR#EETE]] ) - 2003F /8
B HE 5T 8 220116 BE AR 5T 81 1Y
ENEEBRHETLEENREADT
RABEEAESOKES FAE
B ST HlEHASEMEDN
R U EBLEEEEALAEE
MFEE T BB RIBRER
R AE T AN A B S E KT B A RHME
fAEE -BEEZABER 2EHR
T ERITRBIIERTES MU
REEA N RIRLD ° 2003 F BB AL RERT
B0 ERBEAEDRE S
E=F—A-+HRBERZ-ZZE—F
FA+t-BHER+FERER-

R AR20034F & AR 4 51 8 R20114F
BE AR ME AT 81 Ko AR R )T f] E Ath BE AR
TR AL BERE S R 2 R
MEE ZZTBEBBARQR T
FXRERETHEEITRAN
10% A RRIREEFH10%H
PRl BlfxZ T A HEiE30% °

2003F HE AR R AT &) k2011 F B IR
EETEIBTROITFEEITHESS
PRBBRE  BERATEABR TR
DEBATHESE : ()L BEH
(WEREER )BT BWMEM
HeOBRmHKTE: ((BEREEH
BREABIAEEEABIMNE
HImEKFAHEMFARMDKTE: &
(iR L ERELBHNROEE-

BHREBERERALA
T tFFR
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
of the Company or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates,
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant and
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company at the date of grant in excess
of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
In addition, any share options granted to any one
person in excess of 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time, in any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The share options granted may be exercised at any time
or times during a period to be determined and notified
by the Board of Directors which period of time shall
commence after the date of grant of the share options
and expire on such date as determined by the Board
of Directors in any event no later than 10 years from
the date of the grant of such share options. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of a share option under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

32 BERERTE (@)

(a)

(%)

REA+TZ@ABE FRETFA
NEEEW RSB IEMITEE K
FRAFEESACHEATHER
MR BBEREBBRABBER
ANEDBITRMN0.1% ZIRAE L
AEARRRGKRMEERER
85,000,000 L Y HBBE LR
PR K BORAR RAL & o BE o 1
Efa]+ — 18 B HARS 1% P (Ef] A L 1B
BARBMEABEEETRD1%
R EA R BB ERBRE
RS HORAR AL

ERHHBRETREETGRER
WA EE NBERTTE - ZERE R
BRHOBRERSERAG YRES
SRER B HIE M - EEEAER
THARERELAEEREE R
RET T < RIR2003F B AR M T &I
K201 FREAERT & AR
BREAMBTERREAR
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32

Movements in the number of share options outstanding (b)

and their weighted average exercise prices for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

BRESS (@)

REZE—

—tFERZE-REF

+t=A :-1—— BLIEFE  mARITE
ﬁ%%%%ﬁ( B REMEFHTEREZ

""""" BEHmT

Weighted average

exercise price

Outstanding

(per share) options
nwEFEH
1T E i ARITE
(Z%) 0 iz HE
HK$
BT
As at 1 January 2016 and RZE-—REF—HA—BAk
31 December 2016 —E-XF+=-A=+—H 0.37 265,621,624
Exercisable as at 31 December 2016 R-_Z— X XFE+-_A=+—8B %
and 1 January 2017 ZE—+tF-A—BATIE 0.37 265,621,624
Lapsed B R 0.46 (1,631,757)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H 0.37 263,989,867
Exercisable as at 31 December 2017 R -Z—+H&+_-A=+—H
Al FATE 0.37 263,989,867
Share options outstanding as at 31 December 2017 RZE—+FR=T—~F+=A

and 2016 have the following expiry dates and exercise

=t BERITEBREZERB

prices: RITEEBHT:

Outstanding
Adjusted options as
Exercise price at 31 December
(per share) 2016
RZZE—RF
+ZA=+—8
KRBEITEE M ARATIE
() pd: 1y

HK$

Expiry date fEwm A BT
15 June 2019 (note 2) —NEXA+RB (Hit2) 0.51 29,442,568
6 October 2019 (note 2) —NE+ANAB (HF72) 0.53 496,622
4 February 2020 (note 2) ZEZEFAWEA (Wi2) 0.36 74,138,514
8 July 2020 (note 3) ZEZEFEANB (H3) 0.39 90,952,703
22 June 2021 (note 4) —E-—EXA-+-B (Kit4) 0.31 69,527,028
30 December 2022 (note 4) —E-—F+=-/A=+8 (#i74) 0.11 1,064,189
265,621,624
BREREREREAD

T tFFR
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32 BR#EE
(b)  (Continued) (b) (&)
Outstanding
Adjusted options as
Exercise price at 31 December
(per share) 2017
R-E—+tF
+t=ZA=+—H
ARITHEE EERES
(81) pdi 1
HK$

Expiry date fE i B BT

15 June 2019 (note 2) ZE-NAFRATEB (HiF2) 0.51 28,378,379

6 October 2019 (note 2) —E-AF+ARBE (HiF2) 0.53 496,622

4 February 2020 (note 2) —ETF-AMA (Kiz2) 0.36 74,138,514

8 July 2020 (note 3) —EZEFLANB (Hi23) 0.39 90,597,973

22 June 2021 (note 4) —E-—FXA=-+=8 (#it4) 0.31 69,314,190

30 December 2022 (note 4) —E-—F+=-A=+8 (#it4) 0.1 1,064,189

263,989,867

Notes: Htat -

1. The exercise price of share options was adjusted upon 1. BEREZITEBEREARA
the subdivision of shares of the Company which came BOFAR_ZZTLFNAR
to effect on 29 August 2007 and completion of an ZHNABAEBRARBERZ
open offer with effect from 17 November 2014. TE-WHE+—A++BAREKE

TEH P EE -

2. Regarding the share options granted on 19 June 2. MRZZZNERA+NAA
2008, 15 June 2009, 6 October 2009 and 4 February —EEAFEXRA+HRA - =F
2010, 50% of which shall be exercised in a period ZTHET+ARNBR-_Z—TF
commencing two years from the date of grant and “ANBEHECERENS
expiring on the tenth anniversary from the date of HA50%r IR T B BT M
grant. The balance of 50% of the share options shall FRITE YRR E AL
be exercised in a period commencing three years from W F 2 BE W88 T50%8
the date of grant and expiring on the tenth anniversary fEAERT A IR A 8318 = F BT
from the date of grant. ERNABRERTEZBIER

T
3. Regarding the share options granted on 9 July 3. RRZZE-—ZFLAABRY

2010, 50% of which shall be exercised in a period
commencing two years from the date of grant and
expiring on the date falling one day preceding the
tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The balance
of 50% of the share options shall be exercised in a
period commencing three years from the date of grant
and expiring on the date falling one day preceding the
tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

4. Regarding the share options granted on 23 June
2011 and 31 December 2012, 50% of which shall be
exercised in a period commencing one year from the
date of grant and expiring on the date falling one
day preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of
grant. The balance of 50% of the share options shall be
exercised in a period commencing two years from the
date of grant and expiring on the date falling one day
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2017,
there was no share-based payment expense in relation
to share options granted to employees and non-
employees of the Group.

The fair value of the services received by the Group is
measured by the reference to the fair value of the share
options granted as consideration because the fair value
of the services cannot be measured reliably.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2017
had a weighted average remaining contractual life of
3.54 years (2016: 4.54 years).

If options are forfeited before expiration or lapsed, the
related share option reserve will be transferred directly
to profit or loss.

At 31 December 2017, the Company had 263,989,867
(2016: 265,621,624) share options outstanding
under the share option schemes, which represented
approximately 3.50% (2016: 3.52%) of the Company's
shares in issue at that date. Share options do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

32

BRESS (@)

(b)

(%)
Hax: (&)

4. BR=ZTE——F~A=+=H
kZF—=—%+=ZRA=+—H
BREMBRERS  HF50%
AREE B RS —FR’T
fF WREE AR BT
Al — B JE W © 88 T50% i A% 7
AR B R R ERT
fF WREE ABHET BT
Al — B & o

RBE-_ZE—XRNFR-ZT—tF
+ZA=+—HLEE BEEF
FTAREERERERIFREZBRES
o R NN

BRI 2 AR BEEEAR FEHE
B HARERRHEZIRE AN
BED2ZERRERD ZBRE
ZRSAEEAE

R-E—+F+-_A=+—BiEx
TEZEREZIMETABRTEL
FHIAR354F (=T —NF :4.54
F)o

i 5 s AR X 0 SR SR BT 02 K -
FRBRERBRERERER

N9
ZS o
I

R—_ZT—+tE+_-_F=+—
H A Al iREBRETSE
263,989,867 (=& — /N F:
265,621,62417) ) BEIRIE ) AR T1E
HERARRANZA 2B ETRMG
#93.50% (ZF—"F :3.52% ) °
BRI EmAE TR AR S K
RIRRARERE 2R -

BuEBERERALA
T tFFR
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33

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(a)

Employee retirement benefit

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under the control
of trustees. The retirement benefit cost for the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid to the fund by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total cost charged to consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$259,000 represents
contributions paid to these schemes by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$292,000).

The Group contributed to certain retirement benefit
schemes based on the wages for the year of those
employees in the PRC. The total cost charged to
consolidated income statement of approximately
HK$150,000 (2016: HK$54,000) represented the social
insurance expenses paid in the PRC by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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33 EERAMAX

(a)

EERKER

AEBERMEREREZRRE
EFH B -RERFECEERAR
BXEAMEGZEEDRRE -
RERA ARG 28BS S
BRABAKAEAREEZRED
ZRAEEZLEEMEENZ

K o

RIEERERNB 2 BRELD
259,000 T BN A B RE £ =
T—+F+_A=+—HILEEE
MZEFAFEZFTZ2HR(ZE—R
:292,00087T) °

AEBBRETFEEENFEHFRET
RIREFETEMER e lamEN
B #9 BK N 42 88 4150,00058 T (=
T — N 54,0008 L) FE AN EH
REBEEZZT—+F+ZA=+—H
FTFERFTFRENAZASREFA
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33 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 33 EERANBEXZ @)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all
(2016: four) of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group were directors of the
Company, whose emolument are disclosed in note 39.

Details of the emoluments of the one individual for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are as follow:

(b)

AfumEEHMAL

RBE_T—tFt+_HA=1T—8H
EFE - $%l SRR EVFEZPN
T B (ZE-RF:EHH)A
ITRARRES HMEENME
394k EE -

HE-_Z-—R"F+A=+—81t
FE-EfR—BATHMEFED
T

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, allowance and other benefits %% « Z 8 R E i@ F - 546
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & {Rk#& 7 5t 2] {1t 3% = 18
Discretionary and performance related 185 kFRIREIGEE) T (S FA
incentive payment - -
- 564
The emoluments were within the following bands: BN FATAAR
2017 2016
—B—t&E —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T - 1
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 BEREEALRS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

E?Z*’*\ﬁﬂxiﬁi\%ﬁi\mimﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬁﬁl\'

REBEZ

E—tFRZEB-RE+ZA

=+—-HIEFE- ZK;’%@:J_LTL}{"FEK
BEEALR G-

BuEBERERALA
T tFFR
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel
compensation

Key management includes executive directors of the
Company, chief financial officer (who resigned during
the year ended 31 December 2016), financial controller
and company secretary of the Group. The compensation
paid or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

3 BEEREAXLRS (@)

(a)

TEEEAEHE

TE2EEABBEARANTE
FAKBERVBE (AREE
ZE-RFTZAZ=+T-HILEFE
BHE) BB R A RMWE - BE
ERBONIENEIRZERARZ
wWmEDT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T FHET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 4 - 284 & H {127 4,788 4,699
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR {K#& M52 it 7% 122 123
Discretionary and performance related By & R IR A9 48 E) = 1+ 50 H
incentive payments - -
4,910 4,822
Shareholder loan and loan from a (b) BRERKRXREBEEARDT
related party ZE®

On 5 October 2017, the Company entered in to a
shareholder loan agreement with Mr. Li Sen with a
facility amount of HK$100,000,000. The Company draw
a loan amount of HK$2,000,000 in October 2017. The
loan was interest free, unsecured and repayable at the
end of eighteenth month from the date of drawdown
which was classified as non-current liability in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017.
The loan was denominated in HK$ and approximated to
its fair value.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Shareholder loan and loan from a
related party (Continued)

On 13 December 2017, Qianhai Guoxing, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered in
to a loan agreement with Shenzhen Dongyin Financial
Holdings Company Limited (literal translated of the
Chinese name) (“Dongyin”), a related company
which was controlled by Mr. Li Sen, to borrow
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$240,000,000) from Dongyin. The loan was interest
free, unsecured and repayable within six months.
The loan amount of RMB148,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$177,669,000) was settled before
year end. The remaining outstanding loan amount of
HK$62,331,000 was classified as current liability in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017.
The loan was denominated in RMB and approximated to
its fair value. Subsequent to the year end, the remaining
outstanding loan amount was fully settled.

In addition to those disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial

3 BEHEEAXLRS (@)

(b)

(c)

BRRERRREFAERT
ZER (&)

RZE—+F+ZA+=0" 78§
BE#E (AARRZHAZEZEMER
7)) BiShenzhen Dongyin Financial
Holdings Company Limited
([Dongyin] " FEHREEES 2
BAERNR ) LERBZE AR
Dongyinf& 5 A K #200,000,000
7t (& K #240,000,000%
L) ZERBLEE EEAR
BARANEAREZ-EXeBEA
R #148,000,0007T (HHE R L
177,669,0005 7T ) B 10 F 4 H Al
#EE - AT R B RE 562,331,000
BTR-ZZE—+F+A=+—8H
ZIHREBEEABERANSBERND
BE-ZERDRAREHE H
REESEAAEBEES RNFEH
% BRTREBEREEHRLE

BREEMBBERZARE
FH RAKE R EREEH

statements, related party transaction, EITZEBEALIRZ M
which was carried out in the normal T
course of the Group’s business, was as
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Sales of goods to Shenyang Oriental A Shenyang Oriental Ginza
Ginza Pullman Hotel Management Pullman Hotel
Company Limited (literal translated of Management
the Chinese name), a related company  Company Limited
which was controlled by Mr. Li Sen (R EZESZ
FELRHEEMm 2,348 -
REEREREGRDA

T tFFR
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35 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35 REMEERE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments NEE B - ARERBEBR AT BELEHE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable ERGKEESRIBZAEERNATAH
operating leases which fall due as follows: SEN
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year 3,372 472
After one year but within five years —FRERFNR 6,799 1,741
10,171 2,213
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHERIBEASEREETHAEYD
Group for certain of its office properties for lease terms ranging ¥Rz BEHNT—ZE=F-
from one to three years.
36 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36 BEAEE
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any capital T—tF+=H :‘f‘—E CREEN
commitments (2016: nil). ﬂf?cﬂéfﬁ?%ﬁ* (ZE—RF:|)-
37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37 RAERE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any

contingent liabilities (2016: nil).
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38 EEEGBRRAATREED
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 (a) XARR=-"ZF—tHFE+=
December 2017 A=+-— EIZﬁF‘ﬁLE%%
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RMBRARZIKRE - -
Available-for-sale investment At HERE - 200
,,,,,,,,,,,, ~ | _____200
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries W B B R 388,440 444,679
Deposits, prepayments and ?zizj': TR ﬁ&ﬁ’rlﬂf”lﬁl
other receivables FRIE 669 461
Bank balances and cash ﬁﬂ?f%ﬁﬁﬁliiﬁfﬁ 20,947 334
,,,,,,, 410,056 | 445474
Total assets EEHAE 410,056 445,674
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable KRATEE AE
to owners of the Company EXAREE
Share capital fi& 7= 22,620 18,850
Other reserves Hile | 382,078 | 412,064
Total equity L 2-208 N 404,698 | 430,914
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables HoAth JE A5 30 2,255 2,425
Amounts due to subsidiaries & fF WF A 3,103 12,335
Total liabilities CREEL N 5358 | 14,760
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAT 410,056 445,674
The balance sheet has been approved by the Board of BEBERLESEN_Z—\F
Directors on 31 March 2018 and is signed on its behalf =A :‘f'—E!ﬁt/E&EHTﬁlJi$ﬁ
by: REEGERE
Li Sen Zhou Xuesheng
=% AEE
Director Director
EZE EF
BuEBERERALA

T tFFR
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38 BESEBXREAQRTREED

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AATREEES
Share
Share Capital options Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R RE BERFEE BRERE Hittf# 6 RitE#E ‘et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THER THER TER FTERT
As at 1 January 2016 E@:ié—ﬁﬁ—ﬂ—5777779§,i137()7 oo 68924 400,180 777(§1§,§4j1)7777f1{67,576177
Comprehensive loss 2 EE#E
Loss for the year FEEE = e s (132857) (132,857)
Transactions with HBEEANEEAZ
owners in their BRETZRS
capacity as owners
Exercise of warrants TERREE
(note 28(a)(i)) (Wti28(3)0)) 183 - - (22) = 161
Lapse of warrants RIREE R
(note 28(b)) (Hiz228(b)) 8,643 - - (8,643) - -
Issuance of consideration 17K E Mk {5
shares (note 28(a)(ii)  (H1£28(a)i)) 98,199 - - - - 98,199
Total transactions with B HAUNEGAZ
owners in their FETZR 5B
capacity as owners 7771702,92757 e (§§675)7 S ?87,37697
As at RZTE—RF
31 December 2016 +-A=+—H 900,455 871 68,924 391,515 (949,701) 412,064
As at 1 January 2017 R=-Z—tF—HA—H - 9709,55757 - §U 77777 6 §,22747 e 7?191{1757 o 7(9742,2071)7 o il‘l}ﬂfﬁ |
Comprehensive loss 2 EE#E
Loss for the year FEERE |- - - = = (221,806)  (221.806) |
Transactions with HBEEAUNEEAZ
owners in their BRETZRS
capacity as owners
Lapse of options BRERH
(note 28(b)) (Hiz£28(b)) - - (437) - - (437)
Issuance of new shares 17 # %17
(note 28(a)(iii)) (Hiz£28(a)ii)) 192,257 - - - - 192,257
Total transactions with E#EEAREFAZ
owners in their FETZR 5B
capacity as owners 192,257 - (437) - - 191,820
As at R-Z—tF
31 December 2017 +ZA=+—-8 1,092,712 871 68,487 391,515 (1,171,507) 382,078
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s

The remuneration of every director and chief executive is

set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

39 EEREAMRESR

(a) EERESTHAEZH
%
EEERBBTRALZHMHT
T
BE-®—tE+-A=+-AL
R

Emoluments paid to or receivable by the person in respect of a person’s services

as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

—BATRECES (ERAFLAAEMBAAXF2ES) L RBCEIARERzME

Salaries, Employer’'s
allowance contribution
Directors’ and other to pension Share-based  Discretionary
fees benefits scheme payments bonus Total
2= 3104 BRkeiE DY $)
EsHe Hib @R [E2E XRE HiERA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors HTESE
Mr. Li Sen IREE
(Appointed on (R=F—+%F
15 September 2017) NATRERAEZMA) - = = = = =
Mr. Wei Junging RESEE
(Appointed on (R=F—+#F
15 September 2017) NATHRBERME) - = = = = -
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng BA2ELE
(Appointed on (R=ZF—+%
7 November 2017) +—AtREZMA) - = = = = =
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul LA
(Resigned on (R=Z—+%F
15 September 2017) NATHEBET) - 743 37 - = 780
Mr. Zhang Yuanging RITERE
(Co-CEOQ) (Resigned on (B EITHaE)
23 January 2018) (R=Z—-N\F
—AZ+=H#E) - 1,300 18 - - 1,318
Mr. Lai Ming Wai REAREE
(Resigned on (R=F—+%F
15 September 2017) NATHEBET) - 372 18 - = 390
Mr. Zhu Lijia RIREE
(Resigned on (R=Z—+F
1 August 2017) NA—HEHE) - 770 1 = = 781
Mr. Pu Wei (Co-CEO) BEAL (BRITHER)
(Appointed on (R=F—+#F
11 January 2017 and —At-REZER
Resigned on RZE—+F
7 November 2017) +-AtLBEHE) - 794 14 - - 808
Independent BUFHITES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wen Guan Wei XREEE
(Appointed on (R=ZF—+%
25 August 2017) NAZ+RBEZT) 53 - - - - 53
Mr. David Tsoi BR#@EE
(Retired on (R=Z—+%F
15 June 2017) ~NATERRE) 69 - - - - 69
Mr. Chiang Bun %ﬂﬁi% 150 - - - = 150
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine 2EBE4L+
(Resigned on (RZZ-N\EF
23 January 2018) —A=-t=H#&M") 150 - - - - 150
Total @t 422 3,979 98 = - 4,499

ReEEBRERAERAA

T tFFR
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

Note:

Mr. Li Sen has been appointed as the CEO on 23 January 2018.

Dr. Chiao Li has been appointed as the Independent Non-

executive Director on 23 January 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2016:

39 EERANKRER (&)

(a)

EERESTTRABRZMH
® (&)

HiaE

FRELER-_ZE-NF-A-+=H
BRERITHAE -

Syt =-_T—N\FE—A=+=H
BEZIABIIENTES-

HE_ZT—R"F+A=+—RHLF
=

Emoluments paid to or receivable by the person in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

—EAIHECER (ERAFAAREMBAREB ES) LRBEEXAREL I HE

Salaries, Employer’s
allowance contribution
Directors’ and other to pension Share-based Discretionary
fees benefits scheme payments bonus Total
e RMR BAREEE IR H
kS Hi a7 EEXH® XA WA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TER TER TER FHT T
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul  FSE%EE - 1,040 52 - - 1,092
Mr. Zhang Yuanging RILERE
(Co-CEO) (BEITHER) - 1,210 15 - - 1,225
Mr. Lai Ming Wai R EE = 520 26 = = 546
Mr. Zhu Lijia RMIKEE - 1,157 15 - - 1,172
Independent BUKHITES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. David Tsoi BAKSE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Chiang Bun BakE 150 - - - - 150
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine 2Z &+ 150 - - - - 150
Total @it 450 3,927 108 S - 4,485
Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EEENKER

There were no retirement benefits paid to directors
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: same)
by a defined benefit pension plan operated by the
Group in respect of the services as a director of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(o)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Director’s termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was
no board resolution to early terminate of the director’s
appointment in office (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for
making available of director’s services during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-

loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
arrangement in relation to loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of the directors of the Company,
the controlled bodies corporate by and the connected
entities with such director (2016: Nil)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 34, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to Group's
business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year (2016:
Nil).

39 EERAKRER (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EERIEEF

HEZZ—tF+=-A=+—HLt
FE- ﬁﬁ?%ﬂ¢§$%%25
EERBR(ZE—RFE) -

MERUESERBMmMS T
B=HzRE

BE_T—tH+_H=1t—H
IHFE BEARERMEEREM
BTE=TT2REB(ZE—RF:
&) o

BBUNES ES 224
FERREEEAZHEA
ZER EERRHMRS
ZE#

HEZZ—tF+=-A=+—HLt
FE- *E%ﬁﬁﬁmz}& BES %
BRI AERBEERECE
FOEBERREMZ ZHEBILHE
(ZE—RF:8\)-

BEENRZ  REREHZ
EAER

BREFE34EE SN AR BB EL
AEBRBAVEARBDEEHER
KEEBEEEARSE AR FELER
h&if@&ﬂ%ﬁh%ﬁﬁz
BEXRG RHRAH(ZE—R
£

BuEBERERALA
T tFFR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEMBHRE

Bl L AAMBER AREREBECLLES
RERIBEEBIHOEE AERAMBER
mT e

The consolidated results, and assets and liabilities of the Group from
both continuing and discontinued operations for the last five financial
years are summarised below.

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=+-HLEE

184

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E2-t% ZE-RF —Z-nf —E-RmF —F2--f
TER FET FAL THL THT
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BERE 1,185,302 641,151 536,901 1,156,289 1,254,391
Total liabilities BEEE 582,064 209,798 110,730 241,027 258,074
Capital and reserves attributable ARAEAAELEER
to owners of the Company i 434,142 377,452 626,642 686,173
Results E4
Revenue W 59,228 184,595 13,171 1,043 1,154
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable ARFEAANEEER
to owners of the Company (B#B) / &7 (93,900) (34,849) (44,720 (84,831) 20,723

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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